
Council Chamber
580 Pacific St.

Monterey, California

City Council Agenda
Council Regular Meeting

Tuesday, June 2, 2020

4:00 PM - 5:30 PM
7:00 PM – 11:00 PM

City Council
Clyde Roberson, Mayor

Dan Albert, Councilmember
Alan Haffa, Councilmember
Ed Smith, Councilmember

Tyller Williamson, Councilmember

City Manager
Hans Uslar

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Orders N-29-20 and N-33-20, and to do all we can 
to help slow the spread of COVID-19 (coronavirus):

 Meetings of the Monterey City Council and its Boards and Commissions will be 
conducted with virtual (electronic) participation only. Members of the public may watch 
the live stream of the City Council and Boards and Commission meetings 
at https://www.youtube.com/cityofmonterey (up to 10 second delay) or on television on 
Channel 25 (up to 90 second delay). The YouTube live stream has the shortest delay 
and is recommended for anyone wishing to provide public comment (see details below).

 BEFORE EACH MEETING, members of the public may participate by submitting 
comment(s) to cityclerk@monterey.org from an email account or a cell phone's texting 
app until ½ hour before the start of the meeting. These emails and text messages will be 
shared with the Council or relevant Board or Commission prior to the start of the 
meeting, but will not be read aloud during the meeting. Writings distributed for discussion 
or consideration on these agenda items, pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will 
be made available at the following link: https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

 DURING EACH MEETING, members of the public may participate by calling and 
speaking live during the designated time(s), subject to time limits that may be imposed 
pursuant to the Brown Act. To provide public comment:

o Please follow along with the meeting on the YouTube live stream, as it has the 
shortest delay, and only call when the public comment period is announced.

o When the public comment period is announced, call the telephone number that 
will be provided on-screen and announced by the Mayor. Enter the conference 
room number, then #.

o You will be muted upon joining the call.
o Enter *5 to "raise your hand." When it is your turn to speak, you will be unmuted. 

Please remember to turn the sound off on your television or computer when it is 
your turn to talk (or as soon as you call in). Leaving your television or computer 
on will cause interference with the broadcast and the audience will not be able to 
hear you.

o Between comment periods, please hang up the phone. If you wish to comment 
on another item, please call back when the public comment period is announced.

***Afternoon Session Agenda ***
4:00 - 5:30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

https://www.youtube.com/cityofmonterey
mailto:cityclerk@monterey.org
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments
https://www.youtube.com/cityofmonterey


6/2/2020 4:00:00 PM

2

PUBLIC COMMENTS
PUBLIC COMMENTS allows you, the public, to speak for a maximum of three minutes 
on any subject which is within the jurisdiction of the Monterey City Council and which is 
not on the agenda. Any person or group desiring to bring an item to the attention of the 
City Council may do so by addressing the Council during Public Comments or by 
addressing a letter of explanation to: City Clerk, City Hall, Monterey, CA 93940. The 
appropriate staff person will contact the sender concerning the details. NOTE: Public 
Comments are taken during the afternoon session and continued at the evening session. 
Individuals may choose to speak once for up to three minutes at either session, but not 
both.

CONSENT ITEMS
CONSENT AGENDA consists of those items which are routine and for which a staff 
recommendation has been prepared. A member of the public or a Councilmember may 
request that an item be placed on the regular agenda for further discussion.

Award of Construction Contracts

1. Award a Construction Contract in the Amount of $1,818,555.25 to Granite Rock 
Company for the USAG POM Pavement Repair 2019 Project for Presidio Municipal 
Services Agency Projects ***PMSA*** (Catagorically Excluded from NEPA 32 CFR, 
Not a Project Under CEQA per Pub. Resource Code, § 21080)

2. Award Municipal Improvements Job Order Contract 2020-2021 for Presidio 
Municipal Services Agency (PMSA) Projects in the Amount of $1,000,000 to The 
Don Chapin Co., Inc. ***PMSA*** (Not a Project under CEQA per Article 20, 
Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061; Excluded from 
NEPA per Title 32 CFR 651 Appendix B Categorical Exclusion (e) (1))

3. Award a Construction Contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering in the Amount of 
$550,749 for the Casa Verde / Helvic / Portola / McNear Intersection Improvements 
Project (Exempt from CEQA Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) *** NCIP***

Resolutions
RESOLUTIONS are passed to express the policy of the Council on certain items or 
programs, or are passed to direct certain types of administrative action. A resolution may 
be changed by adoption of a subsequent resolution. Resolutions only require one 
reading and are approved when "passed and adopted."

4. Authorize an Agreement with the City of Seaside to Recognize Seaside as the Fort 
Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement, 
Economic Development Conveyance Agreement, and Local Redevelopment 
Authority Successor-in-Interest (Not a Project under CEQA per Article 20, Section 
15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061)

5. Authorize the City Manager to Enter into a New Agreement Among Monterey 
County Public Agencies for the County of Monterey to Provide 9-1-1 Emergency 
Communications and Dispatch Services (Not a Project under CEQA Article 20, 
Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061)

6. Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an Agreement with 
the Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce to Administer Grants for the Covid-
19 Local Economic Stimulus Plan (LESP) Utilizing Appropriated Funds (Not a 



6/2/2020 4:00:00 PM

3

Project Under CEQA per Article 20, Section 15378 and Under General Rule Article 
5, Section 15061)

7. Adopt the Annual Reports and Approve Resolutions to Set a Public Hearing Date to 
Levy the Annual Assessment for the Cannery Row Business Improvement District, 
the New Monterey Business Improvement District, and the North Fremont Business 
Improvement District (Not a project under CEQA Article 20, Section 15378 and 
under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061)

8. Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract with POM Incorporated for the 
Purchase of Single Space Solar Smart Meters for On-Street Parking in the Amount 
of $339,692 (Exempt per CEQA Guidelines Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1)

9. Authorize an Escrow Agreement with the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) and 
City of Del Rey Oaks in order for FORA to transfer $7,269,813 for the South 
Boundary Road Project into an Escrow Account (Not a Project under CEQA per 
Article 20, Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061)

10. Authorize a Supplemental Appropriation from the Parking Fund Ending Balance of 
$336,895 and Amend Resolution 19-147 Awarding a Contract with TIBA Parking 
Systems, LLC for the Purchase, Installation and Maintenance of Parking Access 
and Revenue Control Systems (PARCS) for Off-Street Parking Facilities to 
Increase the Total Contract Amount from $1,888,372 to $2,225,267 (Exempt per 
CEQA Guidelines Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) ***CIP***

11. Appropriate $8,941 in Donated Funds to the 2019-20 Library Trust Fund Budget 
(Not a Project Under CEQA per Article 20, Section 15378 and Under General Rule 
Article 5, Section 15061

Other

12. Authorize the Mayor to Send Letters to Monterey One Water, Monterey Peninsula 
Unified School District, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, and 
Transportation Agency for Monterey County on behalf of the City Requesting these 
Agencies Consider Revising Fee Schedules for Residential Development to a 
Square Footage Basis and to Collect Fees at Certificate of Occupancy (Not a 
Project Under CEQA per Article 20, Section 15378 and Under General Rule Article 
5, Section 15061)

*** End of Consent Agenda ***

Adjourn to City Council Meeting

PUBLIC HEARING
PUBLIC HEARINGS are held to receive public comment on certain items pending 
Council action. You are welcome to offer your comments after being recognized by the 
Mayor. The Council may limit the time allocated to each speaker.

13. Amend the City General Plan and Municipal Code Section 38-107 to Prioritize and 
Require Utility Undergrounding and Amend the Cannery Row Conservation District 
and Old Town Area Plan to Delete References to Undergrounding (Exempt from 
CEQA Per Article 19, Sections 15202, 15304, 15305, and 15308 Classes 2, 4, 5, 
and 8 and Sections 15061(b)(3))



6/2/2020 4:00:00 PM

4

1st Reading by Title Only of an Ordinance Amending Monterey City Code Section 
38-107 to Require Utility Undergrounding

*** Adjourn to Closed Session (See additional agenda) ***
Council will adjourn to closed session no later than 5:00 p.m.

RECESS 5:30 p.m.

RECONVENE

*** Evening Session Agenda ***
7:00 - 11:00 p.m. 
No discussion of a new item will be started after 10:30 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CONTINUED PUBLIC COMMENTS
PUBLIC COMMENTS allows you, the public, to speak for a maximum of three minutes 
on any subject which is within the jurisdiction of the Monterey City Council and which is 
not on the agenda. Any person or group desiring to bring an item to the attention of the 
City Council may do so by addressing the Council during Public Comments or by 
addressing a letter of explanation to: City Clerk, City Hall, Monterey, CA 93940. The 
appropriate staff person will contact the sender concerning the details. NOTE: Public 
Comments are taken during the afternoon session and continued at the evening session. 
Individuals may choose to speak once for up to three minutes at either session, but not 
both.

ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM CLOSED SESSION

PUBLIC APPEARANCE (EVE)
PUBLIC APPEARANCE items are reports on non-routine issues that might stimulate 
public discussion, but that do not require formal noticing as public hearings. You are 
welcome to offer your comments after being recognized by the Mayor. The Council may 
limit the time each speaker is allocated.

14. City Manager Report on Covid-19 Response Efforts (Not a project under CEQA per 
Article 20 Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5 Section 15061)

15. Provide Direction Regarding the COVID-19 FY20/21 General Fund Deficit, 
Proposed Budget Reductions, Strategies and/or Revenue Enhancements (Not a 
Project under CEQA Article 20, Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, 
Section 15061)

COUNCIL COMMENTS
Councilmembers may ask a question for clarification, make a brief announcement or 
make a brief report on his or her activities. In addition, Council may provide a referral to 
staff or other resources for factual information, request staff to report back to the body at 
a subsequent meeting concerning any City matter, or direct staff to place a request to 
agendize a matter of business on a future agenda (G.C. 54954.2).

CITY MANAGER REPORTS



6/2/2020 4:00:00 PM

5

The City Manager may make a brief report on his activities or a brief announcement. He 
may also ask for clarification or direction regarding scheduling of Council meetings and 
study sessions.

Adjourn to City Council Meeting

ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM CLOSED SESSION

ADJOURNMENT

Members of the public have the right to address the City Council on any item on the Agenda, before or 
during its consideration [G.C. §54954.3(a)]. The Mayor will formally open the floor for public comment on 
items such as "Public Appearance" and "Public Hearings." If you wish to speak to items in any other 
categories, for example "Consent Agenda," please advise the City Clerk or the Mayor prior to the 
Council's action on that item, and you will be recognized. Notification as much in advance as possible is 
appreciated.

The City Council meeting packet may be reviewed by the public in the Library or the City Clerk's Office. 
Any writings or documents pertaining to an open session item provided to a majority of the City Council 
less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, shall be made available for public inspection at the front counter 
at the City Clerk's Office, Room 6 at City Hall, Madison & Pacific Streets, Monterey, California 93940 
during normal business hours.

Information distributed to the Council at the Council meeting becomes part of the public record. A copy of 
written material, pictures, etc. should be provided for this purpose.

City Council Meetings are cable cast live and videotaped for replay on Monterey's Government Access 
Channel 25 by Access Monterey Peninsula (AMP). 

CITY OF MONTEREY'S 24-HOUR SUGGESTION HOTLINES:
Voicemail: (831) 646-3799
Fax: (831) 646-3793
Email: suggest@monterey.org 
WebPage: http://www.monterey.org

The City of Monterey is committed to including the disabled in all of its services, programs and 
activities. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance 
to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (831) 646-3935.  
Notification 30 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements 
to ensure accessibility to this meeting [28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II].  Later requests will 
be accommodated to the extent feasible.  For communication-related assistance, dial 711 to use 
the California Relay Service (CRS) to speak to City offices.  CRS offers free text-to-speech, speech-
to-speech, and Spanish-language services 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. If you require a hearing 
amplification device to attend a meeting, dial 711 to use CRS to talk to the City Clerk's Office at 
(831) 646-3935 to coordinate use of a device.

Upcoming city meetings are listed at http://isearchmonterey.org
More information is available by calling (831) 646-3935

mailto:suggest@monterey.org
http://www.monterey.org/
http://isearchmonterey.org/


Council
Agenda Report

№07/19

FROM: Steve Wittry, Public Works Director
Prepared By: Javier Hernandez, Engineering Assistant

SUBJECT: Award a Construction Contract in the Amount of $1,818,555.25 to Granite Rock 
Company for the USAG POM Pavement Repair 2019 Project for Presidio 
Municipal Services Agency Projects ***PMSA*** (Categorically Excluded from 
NEPA 32 CFR; Not a Project under CEQA per Pub. Resource Code, § 21080)

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council adopt the attached resolution:

1. Approving the plans and specifications for the USAG POM Pavement Repair 2019 
Project, (“Project”) and granting the Public Works Director, or his designee, the authority 
to approve all amendments and addenda thereto as necessitated by conditions in the 
field; 

2. Accepting all responsive, responsible bids;
3. Awarding a construction contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder Granite 

Rock Company, in the amount of $1,818,555.25 for the Base Bid plus Additive Bid No.1, 
and Additive Bid No. 2; 

4. Authorizing the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contract upon the receipt 
of information required by the Project plans and specifications; and,

5. Authorizing staff to expend up to an additional 15% for unforeseen construction 
contingencies for timely completion of the Project.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
This action is consistent with the City’s policy to provide services to the U.S. Department of the 
Army through the Presidio Municipal Services Agency (PMSA) per the Intergovernmental 
Support Agreement (IGSA) between the City of Monterey and the Federal Government.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
On May 12, 2020, the Finance Department received and opened bids as follows:

Bidder Base Bid            Alt. No. 1           Alt. No. 2           Grand Total Bid            
Granite Rock Company $1,353,847.80 $228,880.00 $235,827.45 $1,818,555.25
Teichert Construction $1,358,109.00 $300,965.00 $56,626.25 $1,715,700.25
Granite Construction $1,422,819.00 $474,055.00 (-$134,258.00) $1,762,616.00
Don Chapin Company $1,495,250.00 $292,670.00 $110,687.25 $1,898,607.25
Cal Valley Construction $1,725,384.00 $297,285.00 $77,606.00 $2,100,275.00
MVC Enterprises Inc. Non-Responsive Non-Responsive Non-Responsive Non-Responsive
Engineer’s Estimate $1,413,705.00 $287,000.00 $279,250 $1,979,955.00

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  1.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  1.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 1, Packet Page 6



Note: The Project specifications identified that the Base Bid would be utilized for the Basis of 
Award.  The Grand totals listed above include the base bid plus two (2) additive bid alternates.  
The project expenditures listed below follow staff recommendation to award the Base Bid plus 
Additive Bid No.1 and Additive Bid No. 2, for a Total Bid amount of $1,818,555.25.
Estimated Construction Cost for Base Bid:
Lowest Base Bid $1,353,847.80
Additive Alternate No.1 $   228,880.00
Additive Alternate No.2 $   235,827.45
Construction Contingency (15%) $   272,783.29
Total Construction Cost (This Authorization) $2,091,338.54
Construction Management (City Staff & Indirect Cost) $     95,000.00
Total Estimated Cost to Complete the Project $2,186,338.54

Funding Available:
USAG POM Pavement Repair 2019 Project (POM 19-037)                         $2,187,818.50

As of June 2, 2020 sufficient IJO funding is available in project account number POM2020003 
for the construction of the Base Bid plus Additive Bid No.1 and Additive Bid No. 2.  Execution of 
this project is fully funded by the Department of the US Army through the IGSA.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:
The Department of US Army has determined the project is in accordance with the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and determined to qualify for a Categorical Exclusion under 
the provisions set forth in “Part II Department of Defense, Department of the Army, 32 CFR Part 
651 Environmental Analysis of Army Actions; (29 March 2002 Edition) Appendix B to Part 651-
Categorical Exclusions” as follows:

Environmental Protection Plan: An Environmental Protection Plan (EPP) will be required for this 
action. The EPP shall clearly demonstrate how adherence to environmental requirements (as 
included in this section) will be achieved.  The EPP shall be submitted for approval prior to the 
initiation of work to the Directorate of Public Works, ATTN: Joelle Lobo 
(joelle.l.lobo.civ@mail.mil), Environmental Division, Presidio of Monterey.  The EPP does not 
relieve PMSA from the requirements of environmental laws and regulations applicable to the 
work included in this PWS.

General: Project must operate in full compliance with the most recent Federal, State, and local 
environmental laws, regulations, and programs. 

Cultural Resources:
a. Corporal Ewing Road: Although no ground disturbance is anticipated along Corporal 

Ewing Road, a qualified archaeologist (per 36 CFR 61) and Native American consultant 
from the Ohlone/Costanoan-Esselen Nation shall be on site during road work in this area 
to ensure a prompt response in the event of an inadvertent discovery.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 2, Packet Page 7



b. Landfill Area/Mason Road: A qualified archaeologist (per 36 CFR 61) shall be on site 
during any ground disturbing activity (ex. Installation of catch basin) occurring in this 
area.

Cultural Resources: If cultural resources are inadvertently discovered during construction (eg. 
arrowheads, bones, bottles, horseshoes, etc.), work shall be halted within 30-meters (100-feet) 
of the find until it can be evaluated by the U.S. Army Cultural Resources Program Manager 
(Presidio CRM) (Laura Prishmont Quimby; 831-242-7926).  Inadvertent discoveries will require 
implementation of procedures set forth in the Presidio of Monterey's Integrated Cultural 
Resources Management Plan (ICRMP) and Army Regulation (AR)200-1, which includes 
consultation procedures and planning requirements IAW Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act (NHPA) (16 U.S.C. 470f; 36 CFR Part 800).

If an inadvertent discovery of human remains occurs, work shall cease within 30-meters of the 
find for 30 days and immediate notification must be made to the Presidio CRM.  The Presidio 
CRM will preliminarily determine if the remains are from a recent crime scene (50 years old or 
less) or are of Native American descent and will immediately notify the Presidio Garrison 
Commander.  If the remains appear recent, a 30-meter radius will be declared off limits to 
everyone except authorized personnel and the Army's Criminal Investigation Command will 
assume control of the crime scene.  If the remains appear to be of Native American descent, the 
U.S. Army will coordinate with the appropriate Native American tribes per Section 3 of 
NAGPRA. An inadvertent discovery of human remains, funerary objects, sacred objects, or 
objects of cultural patrimony will require implementation of procedures set forth in the ICRMP 
and AR 200-1, which includes consultation procedures and planning requirements IAW Section 
3 of the Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act (NAGPRA; 25 U.S.C. 3001 et 
seq.; 43 CFR 10) 

Landfill: The CERCLA of 1980 (42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq.) regulates hazardous materials released 
into the environment that occurred before 1986.  Along with the Superfund Amendments and 
Reauthorization Act of1986, it establishes the Superfund Program to clean up hazardous waste 
sites.  The DoD’s implementing program for Superfund is the Installation Restoration Program 
(IRP).

The IRP is a comprehensive program designed to address contamination from past activities 
and restore Army lands to usable conditions.  The IRP requires the Army to identify, investigate, 
and clean up hazardous substances, pollutants, and contaminants that pose environmental 
health and safety risks at active military installations and formerly used defense sites.  All IRP 
sites on the POM have been cleaned up with the exception of a closed landfill that has been 
capped to prevent exposure to the underlying soil. 

For road repairs/replacement on Mason Road between the Ord Road junction and Building 827, 
ensure no digging/grading beyond surface layer of current pavement is conducted, due to 
potential exposure of landfill materials beneath the area.  Qualified individual with gas detection 
equipment (specifically for lower explosive limit detection) must be on site during operations for 
this section of road repairs. 

Stormwater Management: Best Management Practices (BMPs) are required to minimize any 
erosion or illicit discharges to storm drains per the Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 
Systems (MS4) Permit (General Permit).  BMPs implemented must be according to the latest 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 3, Packet Page 8



California Stormwater Quality Association (CASQA) Construction BMP handbook.  Any illicit 
discharges to storm drains must be reported immediately to POM Environmental Division (Erika 
Marx; 831-242-7925).

Stormwater Management: Work on catch basins shall be scheduled during dry weather.

Stormwater Management: Ensure minimal disturbance to current landscaped and unpaved 
areas by locating temporary storage, laydown yards, and parking of equipment on 
pavement/hardscape.  Any disturbance or damage to vegetation or surrounding soil, must be 
restored to its original condition or better using Presidio of Monterey, Integrated Natural 
Resource Management Plan (INRMP) approved plants or seed mix.

Air Quality: Control of fugitive dust is required by Monterey Bay Air Resources District Rules 
400-403 and 424, and enforced by District staff. Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board 
space on haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or other loose material on the site.  Any haul trucks 
that would be traveling along freeways or major roadways should be covered.  Limit vehicle 
speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph). (2) California regulations limit idling from 
both on-road and off road diesel-powered equipment.  The California Air Resources Board 
(CARB) enforces idling limitations and compliance with diesel fleet regulations. (3) minimize 
diesel-powered equipment idling time either by shutting equipment off when not in use or 
reducing the time of idling to five (5) minutes [California Code of Regulations, Title 13, sections 
2449(d)(3) and 2485].  Provide clear signage that posts this requirement for workers at the 
entrances to the site. 

Air Quality: Portable generators must either be certified under the Portable Equipment 
Registration Program (PERP) via the California Air Resource Board or a local air district 
(MBARD) permit must be obtained prior to use. Contact POM Environmental Division (Justin 
Pryor; 831‐242‐6161) to coordinate.  Use of portable diesel generators will require certification 
with the California Air Resources Board.

Traffic: Road closures and traffic control plan will need to be coordinated with POM DPW.

Waste Diversion: The POM is required to divert (recycle, reuse, etc.) at least 60 percent (60%) 
of its yearly non-hazardous construction and demolition wastes from the waste stream.  Please 
report Solid Waste Disposal and Diversion to POM Environmental Division.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
Council could choose to reject the bids and re-advertise the project; however, that is not 
recommended, as bids received are consistent with similar work, and this contract implements 
PMSA roadwork.

DISCUSSION:
The project consists of the removal and replacement of deteriorated and damaged asphalt 
concrete (AC) along various Presidio of Monterey roads.  Road repairs include demolition, 
pavement grinding, spot repair, slurry seal, road reconstruction, utility adjustments, installation 
of curb ramps, pavement marking, and miscellaneous related work.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 4, Packet Page 9



On July 26, 2019, through the IGSA, PMSA was awarded project IJO POM 19-037 for POM 
Pavement Repair 2019.  The primary objective of this work is to repair the failing surfaced 
conditions located on Mason Road, SSG Fronins Street and Corporal Ewing Road that were 
identified in the Presidio Pavement Management Survey.

The project plans and specifications were developed by City staff and extensively advertised for 
construction bids and are available for public review in the Office of the City Engineer (580 
Pacific Street, Room 7).  Due to the work occurring, lack of a competitive, local bidding pool for 
this kind of road work at this scale, staff determined an exception to Chapter 28, Article 2, Local 
Hiring for Public Works Projects was appropriate.  Firms that perform this kind of work are 
typically larger scale operations that travel to where the job is located and bring their own crews 
to expedite the process. 

On May 12, 2020, the City received six (6) bids.  One of the bids received was deemed Non-
Responsive due to bidder using the wrong bidding form.  Due to fluctuations in the construction 
industry, staff utilized the base bid as the basis of award for this project.  The lowest responsive 
base bid was submitted by Granite Rock Company, from Watsonville, California, in the amount 
of $1,353,847.80.  Due to the available funding, staff recommends award of the Base Bid plus 
Additive Bid No.1 consisting of additional work on Mason Road from Ord Road to Rifle Range 
Road and Additive Bid No. 2 consisting of an alternative construction method that will provide 
additional road base augmentation on Mason Road.  The addition of this work results in a 
contract award of $1,818,555.25.

Granite Rock Company has performed and successfully completed this kind of work in the City 
of Monterey.  In addition, they have submitted references for its work product.  Staff has 
checked the firm’s references and are comfortable with the ability of the contractor to perform 
the work successfully. 

Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution:

1. Approving the plans and specifications for the USAG POM Pavement Repair 2019 
Project, (“Project”) and granting the Public Works Director, or his designee, the authority 
to approve all amendments and addenda thereto as necessitated by conditions in the 
field; 

2. Accepting all responsive, responsible bids;
3. Awarding a construction contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder Granite 

Rock Company, in the amount of $1,818,555.25 for the Base Bid plus Additive Bid No.1 
and Additive Bid No. 2; 

4. Authorizing the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contract upon the receipt 
of information required by the Project plans and specifications; and,

5. Authorizing staff to expend up to an additional 15% for unforeseen construction 
contingencies for timely completion of the Project.

JH/jl

Attachments: 1. Resolution

e: Angela Montes, Granite Rock Company (Awardee)
Jeffrey M. Post, IGSA Manager

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 5, Packet Page 10



Joelle Lobo, USAG POM NEPA Program Manager
Andreas Baer, Senior Engineer
Scott Lines, Senior Administrative Analyst
John Hansen, Accounting Assistant

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 6, Packet Page 11

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№07/19

AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,818,555.25 TO GRANITE 
ROCK COMPANY FOR THE USAG POM PAVEMENT REPAIR 2019 PROJECT FOR 

PRESIDIO MUNICIPAL SERVICES AGENCY PROJECTS ***PMSA***

WHEREAS, on the 12th day of May 2020, at 2:00 p.m. in the City of Monterey Council 
Chambers, the City Finance Director’s designee received six (6) bids for the USAG POM 
Pavement Repair 2019 Project (“Project”);

WHEREAS, due to the lack of a competitive, local bidding pool for this kind road work 
(slurry seal), staff determined an exception to Chapter 28, Article 2, Local Hiring for Public 
Works Projects was appropriate.  Firms that perform this kind of work are typically large-scale 
operations that travel to where the job is located and bring their own crews to expedite process;

WHEREAS, Granite Rock Company of Watsonville, CA; Teichert Construction of 
Pleasanton, CA; Granite Construction Company of Watsonville, CA; Don Chapin Company, Inc. 
of Salinas, CA; and Cal Valley Construction of Fresno, CA submitted responsive bids for the 
Project;

WHEREAS, the bid submitted by MVC Enterprises Inc. of Temecula, CA was deemed 
non-responsive for the Project;

WHEREAS, the basis of award for the project was the Base Bid;

WHEREAS, Granite Rock Company, has submitted the lowest responsible, responsive 
Base Bid in the amount of $1,353,847.80;

WHEREAS, funding is available, and it will yield a superior project, staff recommends 
the award of the Base Bid plus Additive Bid No. 1 and Additive Bid No. 2, for a total award in the 
amount of $1,818,555.25;

WHEREAS, the project is fully funded by the Department of the Army through the 
Intergovernmental Support Agreement (IGSA) and sufficient funding is available in the project 
account number IJO POM 1903702 for pavement repairs encompassed by the recommended 
award; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed work for the Department of the US Army has been reviewed in 
accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and determined to qualify for a 
Categorical Exclusion under the provisions set forth in “Part II Department of Defense, 
Department of the Army, 32 CFR Part 651 Environmental Analysis of Army Actions; (29 March 
2002 Edition) Appendix B to Part 651-Categorical Exclusions” as follows: 

Environmental Protection Plan: An Environmental Protection Plan (EPP) will be required for this 
action.  The EPP shall clearly demonstrate how adherence to environmental requirements (as 
included in this section) will be achieved.  The EPP shall be submitted for approval prior to the 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 7, Packet Page 12



2

initiation of work to the Directorate of Public Works, ATTN: Joelle Lobo 
(joelle.l.lobo.civ@mail.mil), Environmental Division, Presidio of Monterey.  The EPP does not 
relieve PMSA from the requirements of environmental laws and regulations applicable to the 
work included in this PWS.
General: Project must operate in full compliance with the most recent Federal, State, and local 
environmental laws, regulations, and programs. 

Cultural Resources:
a. Corporal Ewing Road: Although no ground disturbance is anticipated along Corporal 

Ewing Road, a qualified archaeologist (per 36 CFR 61) and Native American consultant 
from the Ohlone/Costanoan-Esselen Nation shall be on site during road work in this area 
to ensure a prompt response in the event of an inadvertent discovery.

b. Landfill Area/Mason Road: A qualified archaeologist (per 36 CFR 61) shall be on site 
during any ground disturbing activity (ex. Installation of catch basin) occurring in this 
area.

Cultural Resources: If cultural resources are inadvertently discovered during construction (eg. 
arrowheads, bones, bottles, horseshoes, etc.), work shall be halted within 30-meters (100-feet) 
of the find until it can be evaluated by the U.S. Army Cultural Resources Program Manager 
(Presidio CRM) (Laura Prishmont Quimby; 831-242-7926).  Inadvertent discoveries will require 
implementation of procedures set forth in the Presidio of Monterey's Integrated Cultural 
Resources Management Plan (ICRMP) and Army Regulation (AR)200-1, which includes 
consultation procedures and planning requirements IAW Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act (NHPA) (16 U.S.C. 470f; 36 CFR Part 800).

If an inadvertent discovery of human remains occurs, work shall cease within 30-meters of the 
find for 30 days and immediate notification must be made to the Presidio CRM.  The Presidio 
CRM will preliminarily determine if the remains are from a recent crime scene (50 years old or 
less) or are of Native American descent and will immediately notify the Presidio Garrison 
Commander.  If the remains appear recent, a 30-meter radius will be declared off limits to 
everyone except authorized personnel and the Army's Criminal Investigation Command will 
assume control of the crime scene.  If the remains appear to be of Native American descent, the 
U.S. Army will coordinate with the appropriate Native American tribes per Section 3 of 
NAGPRA.  An inadvertent discovery of human remains, funerary objects, sacred objects, or 
objects of cultural patrimony will require implementation of procedures set forth in the ICRMP 
and AR 200-1, which includes consultation procedures and planning requirements IAW Section 
3 of the Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act (NAGPRA; 25 U.S.C. 3001 et 
seq.; 43 CFR 10).

Landfill: The CERCLA of 1980 (42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq.) regulates hazardous materials released 
into the environment that occurred before 1986.  Along with the Superfund Amendments and 
Reauthorization Act of1986, it establishes the Superfund Program to clean up hazardous waste 
sites.  The DoD’s implementing program for Superfund is the Installation Restoration Program 
(IRP).

The IRP is a comprehensive program designed to address contamination from past activities 
and restore Army lands to usable conditions.  The IRP requires the Army to identify, investigate, 
and clean up hazardous substances, pollutants, and contaminants that pose environmental 
health and safety risks at active military installations and formerly used defense sites.  All IRP 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 8, Packet Page 13



3

sites on the POM have been cleaned up with the exception of a closed landfill that has been 
capped to prevent exposure to the underlying soil. 

For road repairs/replacement on Mason Road between the Ord Road junction and Building 827, 
ensure no digging/grading beyond surface layer of current pavement is conducted, due to 
potential exposure of landfill materials beneath the area.  Qualified individual with gas detection 
equipment (specifically for lower explosive limit detection) must be on site during operations for 
this section of road repairs. 

Stormwater Management: Best Management Practices (BMPs) are required to minimize any 
erosion or illicit discharges to storm drains per the Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 
Systems (MS4) Permit (General Permit).  BMPs implemented must be according to the latest 
California Stormwater Quality Association (CASQA) Construction BMP handbook.  Any illicit 
discharges to storm drains must be reported immediately to POM Environmental Division (Erika 
Marx; 831-242-7925).

Stormwater Management: Work on catch basins shall be scheduled during dry weather.

Stormwater Management: Ensure minimal disturbance to current landscaped and unpaved 
areas by locating temporary storage, laydown yards, and parking of equipment on 
pavement/hardscape.  Any disturbance or damage to vegetation or surrounding soil, must be 
restored to its original condition or better using Presidio of Monterey, Integrated Natural 
Resource Management Plan (INRMP) approved plants or seed mix.

Air Quality: Control of fugitive dust is required by Monterey Bay Air Resources District Rules 
400-403 and 424, and enforced by District staff. Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board 
space on haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or other loose material on the site.  Any haul trucks 
that would be traveling along freeways or major roadways should be covered.  Limit vehicle 
speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour (mph). (2) California regulations limit idling from 
both on-road and off road diesel-powered equipment.  The California Air Resources Board 
(CARB) enforces idling limitations and compliance with diesel fleet regulations. (3) minimize 
diesel-powered equipment idling time either by shutting equipment off when not in use or 
reducing the time of idling to five (5) minutes [California Code of Regulations, Title 13, sections 
2449(d)(3) and 2485].  Provide clear signage that posts this requirement for workers at the 
entrances to the site. 

Air Quality: Portable generators must either be certified under the Portable Equipment 
Registration Program (PERP) via the California Air Resource Board or a local air district 
(MBARD) permit must be obtained prior to use. Contact POM Environmental Division (Justin 
Pryor; 831‐242‐6161) to coordinate.  Use of portable diesel generators will require certification 
with the California Air Resources Board.

Traffic: Road closures and traffic control plan will need to be coordinated with POM DPW.

Waste Diversion: The POM is required to divert (recycle, reuse, etc.) at least 60 percent (60%) 
of its yearly non-hazardous construction and demolition wastes from the waste stream.  Pls. 
report Solid Waste Disposal and Diversion to POM Environmental Division.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 9, Packet Page 14



4

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby:

1. Approves the plans and specifications for the USAG POM Pavement Repair 2019 
Project, (“Project”) and grants the Public Works Director, or his designee, the 
authority to approve all amendments and addenda thereto as necessitated by 
conditions in the field; 

2. Accepts all responsive, responsible bids;
3. Awards a construction contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder Granite 

Rock Company, in the amount of $1,818,555.25 for the Base Bid plus Additive Bid 
No.1 and Additive Bid No. 2; 

4. Authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contract upon the 
receipt of information required by the Project plans and specifications; and,

5. Authorizes staff to expend up to an additional 15% for unforeseen construction 
contingencies for timely completion of the Project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of _______, 202_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 1., Item Page 10, Packet Page 15



Council
Agenda Report

№07/19

FROM: Steve Wittry, P.E., Public Works Director
Prepared By: Richard F. Llantero, P.E., Associate Civil Engineer

SUBJECT: Award Municipal Improvements Job Order Contract 2020-2021 for Presidio 
Municipal Services Agency (PMSA) Projects in the Amount of $1,000,000 to The 
Don Chapin Co., Inc. ***PMSA*** (Not a Project under CEQA per Article 20, 
Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061; Excluded from 
NEPA per Title 32 CFR 651 Appendix B Categorical Exclusion (e) (1))

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council adopt a resolution:

1. Approving the specifications for the Municipal Improvements Job Order Contract 2020-
2021 for the Presidio Municipal Services Agency (PMSA) Projects (“Project”) and 
granting the Public Works Director, or his designee, the authority to approve all 
amendments and addenda thereto as necessitated by conditions in the field;

2. Accepting all responsive, responsible bids;
3. Awarding a construction contract for the Grand Total Bid to the lowest responsive, 

responsible bidder, The Don Chapin Co., Inc., for a term of one year with the option to 
renew for one additional year, and with an annual funding limit of $1,000,000; and,

4. Authorizing the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contracts upon the receipt 
of information required by the Project plans and specifications.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
This action is consistent with the City’s policy to provide services to the Department of the U.S. 
Army through the Presidio Municipal Services Agency (PMSA) per the Intergovernmental 
Support Agreement (IGSA) between the City of Monterey and the Federal Government. 

The use of job order service contracts is also consistent with Council policy and direction for 
timely delivery of projects.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
This action does not appropriate any funding.  Projects constructed under the contracts shall be 
fully funded by the Presidio of Monterey (POM) Public Works Authority Fund.  Project work 
orders are funded through task orders issued and funded by the Federal Government.

Only one bid was received and opened by the Finance Director’s designee on May 12, 2020. 
The base bid total represents the sum of unit costs of representative tasks and is used for 
purposes of comparing bid responses. Actual charges to the proposed contract depends on 
the type and quantity of on-call work performed. The results are as follows:

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  2.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  2.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 2., Item Page 1, Packet Page 16



Bidder Bid Amount
The Don Chapin Co., Inc. $314,473.22

Total award amount for this contract is $1,000,000 annually.  There is no minimum dollar 
value of work guaranteed under this Job Order contract, and assignment of work orders is at 
the sole discretion of the City and U.S. Army.

As set forth in Monterey City Code Section 28-20 (g), City Council may award individual 
annual contracts, referred to as job order contracts, none of which may exceed one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) for repair, remodeling, or other work to be done according to unit prices. 
The contracts shall be awarded to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder and shall be 
based on plans and specifications for typical work.  No job order contract shall exceed two 
(2) years (including any extensions), except as necessary to complete outstanding work 
orders that were awarded within the two (2) year period.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:
The City of Monterey Planning Office determined that the proposed action is not a project as 
defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (CEQA 
Guidelines), Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes 
the general rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
activity is not subject to CEQA.  Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential 
to cause any effect on the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities 
excluded as projects pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15378, this matter is not a project. 
Because the matter does not cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change on or in the environment, this matter is not a project.  Any subsequent discretionary 
projects resulting from this action will be assessed for CEQA and NEPA applicability by the City 
and the Army’s Directorate of Public Works as applicable. 

The U.S. Army Environmental Division determined that the proposed action is excluded from the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) per Title 32 CFR 651 Appendix B Categorical 
Exclusion (e) (1) because the project involves routine procurement of goods and services 
(complying with applicable procedures for sustainable or "green" procurement) to support 
operations and infrastructure, including routine utility services and contracts.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
The City Council could choose to reject all bids and not award this job order construction 
contract and direct staff to advertise for bids for each construction project individually.  
However, job order contracts have been proven to be an effective tool to construct routine PMSA 
projects in a timely, efficient manner.  Job order contracts also give the City the capability to 
construct urgent projects and perform emergency repairs on short notice.  Non-routine building 
projects will continue to be bid via the formal and informal bidding process as per the City’s 
purchasing guidelines.

DISCUSSION:

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 2., Item Page 2, Packet Page 17



The City of Monterey’s Public Works Department utilizes four methods to construct PMSA 
projects in the most cost-effective and efficient manner possible, including Formal Bidding, 
Informal Bidding, Job Order Construction Contracting, and in-house work utilizing City crews; 
Job Order Construction contracting has proven to be an effective tool in dealing with emergency 
work and the ever-increasing number of PMSA projects. 

Historically, Job Order construction contracts have been awarded by Council annually to 
expedite repairs and upgrades of common, repetitive work according to competitively bid unit 
pricing based on quantities that are unknown at the time of award of the contract.  The City has 
successfully used Job Order contractors for many years to deliver PMSA projects.  It gives the 
City the capability to construct the most urgent projects and perform emergency repairs on short 
notice. 

The publicly advertised call for bids contained a Bid Schedule, whereupon bidders were 
required to list rates for the various routine construction items.  These rates cover the repair, 
replacement, upgrade, and construction of any structure, shelter or enclosure and 
miscellaneous associated work. 

The Base Bid establishes unit prices for the various bid items that may be used in the execution 
of project work orders during normal construction hours for PMSA projects (M-F, 7:00 am to 
5:00 pm).  The Alternate Additive Bid establishes an Adjustment Factor to be applied to all bid 
items that may be used in the execution of project work orders that must be performed outside 
of these normal construction hours.  The premium work week is a provision required by the 
BASOPS contract to reduce the impact of construction noise during class hours.  For the 
purpose of awarding this Job Order contract, the basis for determining the low bidder is the 
Total Base Bid (items A-1-a through HH-1-a).

The intent of this contract is to provide the City with a readily available work force for new 
construction, repairs and upgrades to existing infrastructure and emergency repairs of any value 
up to the contract limit, as the City deems appropriate.  The contracts do not give the 
contractors exclusive rights to perform all work done by the City.  Certain projects may be 
performed by City work forces or be sent for bid proposal throughout the term of the contract, 
which may include this type of work.

The contracts shall remain in effect for all written work orders issued by the City during a twelve-
month period beginning with the effective date of the Notice to Proceed or until the exhaustion 
of the contract limit, whichever occurs first.  There is no minimum dollar value of work 
guaranteed under the contracts, and assignment of work orders is at the sole discretion of the 
City.

The Don Chapin Co., Inc. has successfully performed Job Order construction services and 
completed other individually bid projects for the City in the past.  Staff recommends that the City 
Council adopt the attached resolution.

RFL/jl

Attachments: 1. Resolution

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 2., Item Page 3, Packet Page 18



e: The Don Chapin Co., Inc.
George Helms, General Services Superintendent

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 2., Item Page 4, Packet Page 19

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№07/19

AWARD MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENTS JOB ORDER CONTRACT 2020-2021 FOR 
PRESIDIO MUNICIPAL SERVICES AGENCY (PMSA) PROJECTS IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$1,000,000 TO THE DON CHAPIN CO., INC.  ***PMSA***

WHEREAS, on the 12th day of May 2020, at 2:00 pm in the City of Monterey Council 
Chambers, the City Finance Director’s designee received only one bid, for the Municipal 
Improvements Job Order Contract 2020-2021 for Presidio Municipal Services Agency (PMSA) 
Projects;

WHEREAS, job order contracts have been proven to be an effective tool to construct 
routine projects in a timely, efficient manner, and give the City the capability to construct urgent 
projects and perform emergency repairs on short notice;

WHEREAS, The Don Chapin Co., Inc. with their Total Bid of three hundred fourteen 
thousand four hundred seventy three dollars and twenty two cents ($314,473.22) was the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder. This bid total represents the sum of units costs of representative 
tasks and is used for purposes of comparing bid responses. Actual charges to the proposed 
contract depends on the type and quantity of on-call work performed;

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey Planning Office determined that the proposed action is 
not a project as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (CCR, Title 14, 
Chapter 3 (CEQA Guidelines), Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15061 includes the general rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the 
potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty 
that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the 
environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  Because the proposed action and this matter 
have no potential to cause any effect on the environment, or because it falls within a category of 
activities excluded as projects pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15378, this matter is not a 
project.  Because the matter does not cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect 
physical change on or in the environment, this matter is not a project.  Any subsequent 
discretionary projects resulting from this action will be assessed for CEQA and NEPA 
applicability by the City and the Army’s Directorate of Public Works as applicable.

The U.S. Army Environmental Division determined that the proposed action is excluded from the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) per Title 32 CFR 651 Appendix B Categorical 
Exclusion (e) (1) because the project involves routine procurement of goods and services 
(complying with applicable procedures for sustainable or "green" procurement) to support 
operations and infrastructure, including routine utility services and contracts.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby 

1. Approves the specifications for the Municipal Improvements Job Order Contract 2020-2021 
for the Presidio Municipal Services Agency (PMSA) Projects (“Project”) and grants the Public 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 2., Item Page 5, Packet Page 20



2

Works Director, or his designee, the authority to approve all amendments and addenda 
thereto as necessitated by conditions in the field;

2. Accepts all responsive, responsible bids;
3. Awards a construction contract for the Grand Total Bid to the lowest responsive, responsible 

bidder, The Don Chapin Co., Inc., for a term of one year with the option to renew for one 
additional year, and with an annual funding limit of $1,000,000; and,

4. Authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contract upon the receipt of 
information required by the Project plans and specifications.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of _______, 202_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 2., Item Page 6, Packet Page 21



Council
Agenda Report

№07/19

FROM: Steve Wittry, P.E., Public Works Director
 Prepared By: Max Rieser, P.E., Associate Civil Engineer 

SUBJECT: Award a Construction Contract to Monterey Peninsula Engineering in the Amount 
of $550,749 for the Casa Verde / Helvic / Portola / McNear Intersection 
Improvements Project (Exempt from CEQA Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1)) 
*** NCIP***

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council adopt the attached resolution:

1. Approving the plans and specifications for the Casa Verde / Helvic / Portola / McNear 
Intersection Improvements Project (“Project”) which are available in the Office of the 
City Engineer (Room 7), and granting the Public Works Director, or his designee, the 
authority to approve all amendments and addenda thereto as necessitated by 
conditions in the field;

2. Accepting all responsive, responsible bids;
3. Awarding a construction contract for the Base Bid to the lowest responsive, 

responsible bidder, Monterey Peninsula Engineering, in the amount of $550,749;
4. Authorizing the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contract upon the receipt 

of information required by the Project plans and specifications; and,
5. Authorizing staff to expend up to an additional 15% for unforeseen construction 

contingencies for timely completion of the Project.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
This action is consistent with the following City Council Value Drivers and Strategic Initiatives of 
“Working to improve the quality of life of our residents,” by improving accessibility and 
maintaining our existing infrastructure.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
On May 12, 2020, four (4) bids were received and opened by the Finance Director’s designee 
as follows:

Bidder      Base Bid 
Monterey Peninsula Engineering, Marina, CA  $ 550,749.00

Precision Grade, Inc., San Juan Bautista, CA  $ 568,930.00
The Don Chapin Company, Inc., Salinas, CA  $ 579,991.00

Granite Construction Company, Watsonville, CA     $ 598,985.32
Base Bid Engineer’s Estimate     $ 582,150.00

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  3.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  3.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 3., Item Page 1, Packet Page 22



Estimated Construction Cost:
Construction Contract (Base Bid)             $ 550,749
Construction Contingency (15%) $   82,612 
Construction Management $   24,000
Total Construction Cost (This Authorization) $ 657,361 

Funding Sources 
Casa Verde/Helvic/McNear/Portola Int (35n1920)       $662,468

As of 5/19/2020, sufficient funding is available to complete the project the Casa Verde / Helvic / 
McNear / Portola Intersection project account (35n1920). 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

The City of Monterey Planning Office determined the project is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) because the 
project proposes a minor alteration of an existing intersection.  Intersection improvements at the 
intersection of Casa Verde Way, McNear Street and Portola Avenue would involve the 
replacement of existing asphalt and new ADA accessible curb ramps for the purpose of public 
safety, and does not involve the creation of additional lanes. 

Furthermore, the project does not qualify for any of the exceptions to the categorical exemptions 
founds at CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2.  

Exception a - Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the 
project is to be located -a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant. Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental 
resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially 
adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies. Exception a – Location – does not 
apply to projects which are exempt under Class 1.

 Exception b - Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is 
significant. There would be no cumulative impact because the project involves the replacement 
of existing asphalt and new ADA accessible curb ramps for the purpose of public safety, and 
does not involve the creation of additional lanes.

 Exception c - Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 3., Item Page 2, Packet Page 23



due to unusual circumstances.  No unusual circumstances are anticipated due to improvements’ 
limited scope and distinct locations.

 Exception d - Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 
highway. This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 
negative declaration or certified Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The project involves the 
minor alteration of an existing intersection and would not impact scenic highways.

Exception e - Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project 
located on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code.  The proposed improvements would involve the replacement of existing 
asphalt and new ADA accessible curb ramps for the purpose of public safety, and does not 
involve the creation of additional lanes. No impact to sites included on any list compiled 
pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government code would occur.

Exception f - Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource. The project 
would involve pavement replacement and new improvements within an existing intersection; 
therefore, impacts to archeological resources would not occur.

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
Council could choose not to award the construction contract for the Project; however, this is not 
recommended as the Project implements accessibility improvements, maintenance and 
reconstruction activities that are required to maintain existing public infrastructure; bids were 
lower than the Engineer’s Cost Estimate; and the City has sufficient funding available to award 
this construction contract at this time.

DISCUSSION:
The Casa Verde / Helvic / McNear / Portola Intersection (35n1920) project was approved as 
part of the FY18/19 budget.  The project scope includes constructing bulbouts, installing street 
lights and rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB) to improve pedestrian accessibility and 
improve visibility for drivers.

Preparation of the Project design, plans and specification was performed by Whitson Engineers, 
the City’s on-call Civil Engineering and Surveying Services consultant.  The Project was 
extensively advertised for bids and project plans and specifications were available for public 
review in the Office of the City Engineer (580 Pacific Street, Room 7).  On May 12, 2020, the 
City received four (4) bids.  The lowest responsive, responsible bid was submitted by Monterey 
Peninsula Engineering, Marina, CA, with a grand total bid in the amount of $550,749.  The low 
bid is 5% below the engineer’s estimate and is fully funded by the award amount.

References for the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, Monterey Peninsula Engineering, 
have been checked and staff is confident in the contractor’s ability to perform the work 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 3., Item Page 3, Packet Page 24



successfully. In addition, the contractor has successfully completed similar projects for the City 
in the past. 

Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution:

1. Approving the plans and specifications for the Casa Verde / Helvic / Portola / McNear 
Intersection Improvements Project (“Project”) which are available in the Office of the 
City Engineer (Room 7), and granting the Public Works Director, or his designee, the 
authority to approve all amendments and addenda thereto as necessitated by 
conditions in the field;

2. Accepting all responsive, responsible bids;
3. Awarding a construction contract for the Base Bid to the lowest responsive, 

responsible bidder, Monterey Peninsula Engineering, in the amount of $550,749;
4. Authorizing the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contract upon the receipt 

of information required by the Project plans and specifications; and,
5. Authorizing staff to expend up to an additional 15% for unforeseen construction 

contingencies for timely completion of the Project.

SW/mjr

Attachments: 1. Resolution

e: Monterey Peninsula Engineering

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 3., Item Page 4, Packet Page 25

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№07/19

AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO MONTEREY PENINSULA ENGINEERING IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $550,749 FOR THE 

CASA VERDE / HELVIC / PORTOLA / MCNEAR INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT ***NCIP***

WHEREAS, on the 12th day of May, 2020 at 2:00 pm in the City of Monterey Council 
Chambers, the City Finance Director’s designee received four (4) bids for the for the Casa 
Verde / Helvic / Portola / McNear Intersection Improvements Project (“Project”);

WHEREAS, Monterey Peninsula Engineering, Precision Grade, Inc., The Don Chapin 
Company, Inc., and Granite Construction Company submitted responsive, responsible bids for 
the Project; 

WHEREAS, Monterey Peninsula Engineering, Marina, CA submitted the lowest, 
responsive, responsible grand total bid in the amount of $550,749;

WHEREAS, execution of this project is funded by the Casa Verde / Helvic / McNear / 
Portola Intersection project and sufficient funding is available in project account 35n1920; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey Planning Office determined the project is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) 
because the project proposes a minor alteration of an existing intersection. Intersection 
improvements at the intersection of Casa Verde Way, McNear Street, and Portola Avenue 
would involve the replacement of existing asphalt and new ADA accessible curb ramps for the 
purpose of public safety, and does not involve the creation of additional lanes.
 
Furthermore, the project does not qualify for any of the exceptions to the categorical exemptions 
found at CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2. 
 
Exception a - Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the 
project is to be located -a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant. Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental 
resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially 
adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies. Exception a – Location – does not 
apply to projects which are exempt under Class 1.
 
Exception b - Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is 
significant. There would be no cumulative impact because the project involves the replacement 
of existing asphalt and new ADA accessible curb ramps for the purpose of public safety, and 
does not involve the creation of additional lanes.
 
Exception c - Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 3., Item Page 5, Packet Page 26



2

due to unusual circumstances.  No unusual circumstances are anticipated due to improvements’ 
limited scope and distinct locations.
 
Exception d - Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 
highway. This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 
negative declaration or certified Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The project involves the 
minor alteration of an existing intersection and would not impact scenic highways.
 
Exception e - Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project 
located on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code.  The proposed improvements would involve the replacement of existing 
asphalt and new ADA accessible curb ramps for the purpose of public safety, and does not 
involve the creation of additional lanes. No impact to sites included on any list compiled 
pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government code would occur.

Exception f - Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource. The project 
would involve pavement replacement and new improvements within an existing intersection; 
therefore, impacts to archeological resources would not occur.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby

1. Approves the plans and specifications for the Casa Verde / Helvic / Portola / McNear 
Intersection Improvements Project (“Project”) which are available in the Office of the 
City Engineer (Room 7), and grants the Public Works Director, or his designee, the 
authority to approve all amendments and addenda thereto as necessitated by 
conditions in the field;

2. Accepts all responsive, responsible bids;
3. Awards a construction contract for the Base Bid to the lowest responsive, responsible 

bidder, Monterey Peninsula Engineering, in the amount of $550,749;
4. Authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contract upon the receipt 

of information required by the Project plans and specifications; and,
5. Authorizes staff to expend up to an additional 15% for unforeseen construction 

contingencies for timely completion of the Project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of _______, 202_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 3., Item Page 6, Packet Page 27



3

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 3., Item Page 7, Packet Page 28



Council
Agenda Report

№07/19

FROM: Kimberly Cole, Community Development Director
Prepared By: Karin Salameh, Assistant City Attorney

SUBJECT: Authorize an Agreement with the City of Seaside to Recognize Seaside as the 
Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) Environmental Services Cooperative 
Agreement, Economic Development Conveyance Agreement, and Local 
Redevelopment Authority Successor-in-Interest (Not a Project under CEQA per 
Article 20, Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061) 

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with the City of 
Seaside (Seaside) to recognize Seaside as the Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s (FORA) successor-
in-interest to the Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement and the Economic 
Development Conveyance Agreement/Local Redevelopment Authority.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
The City of Monterey General Plan encourages economic diversification and Fort Ord is a key 
opportunity site.  Specifically, General Plan Policy a.3. states: “Explore ways to diversify the 
Monterey economy to provide higher paying jobs and a balance to cyclical elements of the 
visitor economy.”

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
There are no direct costs associated with entering into the proposed agreement.  Seaside has 
committed to not requiring any payment for the transfer of former Fort Ord property and ESCA-
related services are funded by the Army.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:
The City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as defined by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA Guidelines”) 
Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes the general 
rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a significant effect 
on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to 
CEQA.  Because the proposed action has no potential to cause any effect on the environment, 
or because it falls within a category of activities excluded as projects pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project.  Because the matter does not cause a 
direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, this 
matter is not a project.  Any subsequent discretionary projects resulting from this action will be 
assessed for CEQA applicability.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  4.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  4.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  4.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  4.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  4.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  4.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 1, Packet Page 29



ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
The City Council could choose to not enter into the proposed agreement; however, this is not 
recommended as the federal government has already recognized the City of Seaside as the 
successor to FORA under the Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement and the 
Economic Development Conveyance Agreement/Local Redevelopment Authority.

DISCUSSION:
FORA was established in 1994 under California law to plan, facilitate and manage the transfer 
of former Fort Ord property from the U.S. Army to the governing local jurisdictions. Pursuant to 
state law FORA will cease to exist on June 30, 2020.

On June 23, 2000, FORA and the Army entered into an Economic Development Conveyance 
Agreement (EDC) and recognized FORA as the local redevelopment authority (LRA) under 
federal law. Pursuant to that Agreement FORA was to acquire portions of the former Fort Ord 
consisting of approximately five thousand two hundred (5,200) acres of land. FORA and 
Monterey then executed an Implementation Agreement dated August 10, 2001 (See Attachment 
2), which defined the terms for transfer of former Fort Ord real property from FORA to Monterey. 
As part of that agreement Monterey agreed to receive the former Fort Ord property within 
Monterey’s jurisdiction upon FORA’s receipt of all regulatory (Army, DTSC, EPA) sign-offs.  
Although FORA has submitted deed transfer requests to the Army for all of Monterey’s 
outstanding property, it appears that some of the properties may not transfer before June 30, 
2020.  Accordingly, a successor to FORA will need to be appointed to facilitate the transfer of 
land from the Army to Monterey. Other local jurisdictions are in a similar circumstance and the 
federal government will only work with one local redevelopment authority.  

Additionally, in 2007 FORA, Army, California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) 
and the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) entered into a series of 
agreements in order to fulfill the Army’s responsibility under the Comprehensive Environmental 
Responsibility, Coordination, and Liability Act (CERCLA). Pursuant to those agreements, 
including the Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA), FORA has acted, and its 
Successor will act, as an Army Response Action Contractor, with the Army providing funding to 
perform these services.  The Army CERCLA responsibilities include Long Term Obligations 
(LTO) that FORA currently performs, and its successor will perform, under contract and funding 
from the Army.

On February 21, 2020, FORA and the City of Seaside executed the Environmental Services 
Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) and Local Redevelopment Authority (LRA)/Economic 
Development Conveyance Agreement Successor Implementing Agreement (the Successor 
Implementing Agreement), which nominated the City of Seaside to be FORA's successor to the 
ESCA and EDC Agreements in order to complete the remaining ESCA tasks and outstanding 
property transfers. (Attachment 3.) On April 30, 2020, the United States Department of Defense 
recognized the City of Seaside as the successor Local Redevelopment Authority with an 
effective date of July 1, 2020. (Attachment 4.) Monterey’s outstanding properties (identified in 
Attachment 5) will be subject to the Army’s CERCLA requirements, including the Long Term 
Obligations, for which the ESCA Successor and its contractor(s) will from time to time, need 
access to provide ESCA LTO management services.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 2, Packet Page 30



In the proposed agreement Monterey will (1) recognize the City of Seaside as FORA’s 
successor to the ESCA and EDC Agreements, (2) acknowledge Seaside to be the Department 
of Defense recognized Local Redevelopment Authority, (3) reaffirm Monterey’s commitment to 
accept its previously designated former Fort Ord properties, and (4) authorize Seaside to enter 
the properties to perform ESCA-related tasks in the future.  Seaside agrees that it will not 
require any payment for the transfer of the properties and will not have any land use control 
over Monterey’s properties.  It is recommended that the City Council authorize the City Manager 
to enter into the proposed agreement with the City of Seaside in a final form approved by the 
City Attorney.

Attachments: 1. Resolution
2. August 10, 2001 Agreement between Monterey and FORA
3. February 21, 2020 Agreement between Seaside and FORA
4. April 30, 2020 Department of Defense Letter
5. List of Monterey’s Properties

c: Craig Malin, Seaside City Manager
Sheri Damon, Seaside City Attorney

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 3, Packet Page 31

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№07/19

AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF SEASIDE TO RECOGNIZE SEASIDE 
AS THE FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT, AND LOCAL 

REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY SUCCESSOR-IN-INTEREST

WHEREAS, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) is a regional agency established in 
1994 under California Government Code Sections 67650, et seq., to plan, facilitate and manage 
the transfer of former Fort Ord property from the Army to the governing local jurisdictions and 
pursuant to that act FORA will sunset on June 30, 2020;

WHEREAS, On June 23, 2000, FORA and the Army entered into an Economic 
Development Conveyance Agreement (EDC) and recognized FORA as the local redevelopment 
authority (LRA) under federal law. Pursuant to that Agreement FORA was to acquire portions of 
the former Fort Ord consisting of approximately five thousand two hundred (5,200) acres of 
land;

WHEREAS, FORA and the City of Monterey executed an Implementation Agreement 
dated August 10, 2001, which defined the terms for transfer of former Fort Ord real property 
from FORA to Monterey. As part of that agreement Monterey agreed to receive the former Fort 
Ord property within Monterey’s jurisdiction upon FORA’s receipt of all regulatory (Army, DTSC, 
EPA) sign-offs;

WHEREAS, FORA has submitted deed transfer requests to the Army for all of 
Monterey’s outstanding property, but it some of the properties may not transfer before June 30, 
2020.  Accordingly, a successor to FORA will need to be appointed to facilitate the transfer of 
land from the Army to Monterey;

WHEREAS, in 2007 FORA, U.S. Army, California Department of Toxic Substances 
Control (DTSC) and the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) entered into a 
series of agreements in order to fulfill the Army’s responsibility under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Responsibility, Coordination, and Liability Act (CERCLA). Pursuant to those 
agreements, including the Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA), FORA has 
acted, and its Successor will act, as an Army Response Action Contractor, with the Army 
providing funding to perform these services;

WHEREAS, on February 21, 2020, FORA and the City of Seaside executed the 
Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) and Local Redevelopment Authority 
(LRA)/Economic Development Conveyance Agreement Successor Implementing Agreement 
(the Successor Implementing Agreement), which nominated the City of Seaside to be FORA's 
successor to the ESCA and EDC Agreements in order to complete the remaining ESCA tasks 
and outstanding property transfers;

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 4, Packet Page 32



2

WHEREAS, on April 30, 2020, the United States Department of Defense recognized the 
City of Seaside as the successor Local Redevelopment Authority with an effective date of July 
1, 2020;

WHEREAS, Monterey’s properties remaining to be transferred on the former Fort Ord 
will be subject to the Army’s CERCLA requirements, including the Long Term Obligations, for 
which the ESCA Successor and its contractor(s) will from time to time, need access to provide 
ESCA LTO management services; and

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as 
defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA 
Guidelines”) Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes 
the general rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
activity is not subject to CEQA.  Because the proposed action has no potential to cause any 
effect on the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities excluded as projects 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project.  Because the matter 
does not cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the 
environment, this matter is not a project.  Any subsequent discretionary projects resulting from 
this action will be assessed for CEQA applicability.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with the City 
of Seaside in which Monterey will (1) recognize the City of Seaside as FORA’s successor to the 
ESCA and EDC Agreements, (2) acknowledge Seaside to be the Department of Defense 
recognized Local Redevelopment Authority, (3) reaffirm Monterey’s commitment to accept its 
previously designated former Fort Ord properties, and (4) authorize Seaside to enter the 
properties to perform ESCA-related tasks in the future; and in which Seaside agrees that it will 
not require any payment for the transfer of the properties and will not have any land use control 
over Monterey’s properties. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of _______, 202_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 5, Packet Page 33



3

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 6, Packet Page 34



IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT 

THIS IMPLEMENTATION AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made as of r I 0 I 2001, 
between the Fort Ord Reuse Authority ("FORA") and the City of Monterey (the "J risdiction") with 
reference to the following facts: 

RECITALS: 

A FORA is a regional agency established under Government Code Section 67650 to plan, facilitate, 
and manage the transfer of former Fort Ord property from the United States Army (the "Army") to the 
governing local jurisdictions or their designee(s). 

B. FORA will acquire portions of the former Fort Ord from the Army, under an Economic 
Development Conveyance Memorandum of Agreement (hereinafter the "EDC Agreement") between 
FORA and the Army and dated June 20, 2000. FORA has delivered to the Jurisdiction a complete copy 
of the EDC Agreement, which includes a conveyance schedule and terms for property transfers. 

C. The Jurisdiction intends to acquire former Fort Ord property conveyed to FORA under the EDC 
Agreement. Such property is described in the attached Exhibit A (the "Jurisdiction Property"). 

D. FORA, as a regional agency, adopted a Base Reuse Plan in June 1997, which identified (1) 
environmental actions required to mitigate development and redevelopment of the former Fort Ord (the 
"Basewide Mitigation Measures"), and (2) infrastructure and related costs necessary to accommodate 
development and redevelopment of the former Fort Ord (the "Basewide Costs"). 

E. FORA is obligated by the California Environmental Quality Act, the Base Reuse Plan and the 
Authority Act (as defined in Section 1 below) to implement the Basewide Mitigation Measures and incur 
the Basewide Costs. To carry out such obligations, FORA intends to arrange a financing mechanism to 
apply to all former Fort Ord properties. 

F. In the Base Reuse Plan, FORA identified land sale and lease (or "property based") revenues, 
redevelopment revenues, and basewide assessments or development fees, as the primary sources of 
funding to implement the Basewide Mitigation Measures and to pay the Basewide Costs. 

G. The Authority Act requires all revenues received by FORA and/or the Jurisdiction for the 
Jurisdiction Property to be divided equally between FORA and the Jurisdiction. 

H. In September 1999, Congress passed Section 2821 of the National Defense Authorization Act for 
Fiscal Year 2000 (Pub. L. 1 06-65), otherwise known as No-Cost Economic Development Conveyance 
Legislation. This legislation allows the Army to transfer property to FORA under the EDC Agreement 
without monetary consideration. Under this legislation any Sale or Lease Proceeds [as defined in 
Section 1 r below] must be applied to the economic development of the former Fort Ord. 

I. FORA and the Jurisdiction (the "Parties") wish to enter into this Agreement to achieve orderly 
reuse of the Jurisdiction Property and to meet the mutual financial obligations of the Parties. 

WITH REFERENCE TO THE FACTS RECITED ABOVE, the Parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions. 

The following capitalized and underscored terms have the following meanings when used in this 
agreement: 

03102/01 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

1 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 7, Packet Page 35



a. Agreement means this Implementation Agreement. 

b. Army means the United States Army. 

c. Authority Act means, collectively, SB 899 and AB 1600 adopted in 1994, as codified at (i) 
Government Code Title 7.85, Chapters 1 through 7, commencing with Section 67650, and (ii) selected 
provisions of the California Redevelopment Law, including Health and Safety Code Sections 33492 et 
seq. and 33492.70 et seq. 

d. Base Closure Act means Section 2905(b)(4) of the Base Closure Act, as amended by 
Section 2821 of the Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2000, No-Cost EDC Legislation - Public 
Law 106-65. 

e. Base Reuse Plan means the Fort Ord Base Reuse Plan and its accompanying 
environmental impact report adopted and certified by the FORA Board in June 1997 to guide the reuse of 
the former Fort Ord, all as amended from time to time. 

f. Basewide Costs means the estimated costs identified in the Base Reuse Plan for the 
following: FORA Reuse Operations, Net Jurisdictional Fiscal Shortfalls, Caretaker Costs, and 
Demolition. The Basewide Costs are more particularly described in the Fort Ord Comprehensive 
Business Plan and the Findings attached to the Base Reuse Plan. 

g. Basewide Mitigation Measures means the mitigation measures identified in the Base 
Reuse Plan. Basewide Mitigation Measures include: basewide transportation costs; habitat management 
capital and operating costs; water line and storm drainage costs; FORA public capital costs; and fire 
protection costs. The Basewide Mitigation Measures are more particularly described in the Fort Ord 
Comprehensive Business Plan, described in Section 1 (f), the Development and Resource Management 
Plan, and the Findings attached to the Base Reuse Plan. 

h. Direct Leasing Expenses means those leasing expenses actually and reasonably incurred 
by the Jurisdiction or FORA for purposes of Section 4(d) in the leasing out and operating, as landlord, of 
a portion of the Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property. Such expenses include (without limitation): 
utilities; administrative overhead; police and fire protection services, to the extent that the need for such 
services is created by the leasing; insurance; depreciation of capital investments in the leased property in 
accordance with reasonable depreciation schedules; reasonable contributions to maintenance and 
replacement reserves; and maintenance. 

i. Direct Sale Expenses means those expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the 
Jurisdiction or FORA for purposes of Section 4(e) in selling Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property to a 
bona fide purchaser for value. 

j. EDC Agreement means the Economic Development Conveyance Memorandum of 
Agreement between FORA and the Army by which FORA acquires portions of the former Fort Ord from 
the Army, including Jurisdiction Property. 

k. Fair and Equitable Share means a financial contribution to FORA to be applied toward a 
Jurisdiction's share of Basewide Mitigation Measures and Basewide Costs. The Fair and Equitable 
Share is calculated in connection with a particular parcel of Jurisdiction Property, consisting of the sum of 
the following: 

0310210 I final draft 
City of Monterey.04230/ 

2 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 8, Packet Page 36



(A) Fifty percent (50%) of the Sale or Lease Proceeds of the particular parcel of 
Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property at the time of its permanent use, to be paid to FORA in 
accordance with Section 5(g) below; plus 

(B) (i) FORA's allocation of tax increment revenue, under California Health and 
Safety Code Sections 33492.70 and following, generated by the particular parcel of Jurisdiction Property, 
if there is in effect with respect to the particular parcel of Jurisdiction Property a redevelopment plan 
adopted in accordance with California Health and Safety Code Sections 33492. 70; or 

(ii) Such alternate revenue as may be provided under any mechanism 
established in accordance with Section 1 Oc below, if such a redevelopment plan is not in effect; plus 
payment of FORA fees and assessments as may be required for the development of the particular parcel 
of Jurisdiction Property in accordance with FORA's fee policy levied by the Jurisdiction in accordance 
with Section 6(a) below, subject to reduction on account of Jurisdiction performance and implementation 
of Basewide Mitigation Measures and Basewide Costs in accordance with Section 6(d) below. FORA's 
fee policy is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit C. 

I. Fort Ord Master Resolution means the collection of administrative rules and regulations 
adopted by FORA under the Authority Act, as amended. As of the date of this Agreement, the Fort Ord 
Master Resolution consists of the Resolution adopted March 14, 1997, and amended November 20, 
1998, February 19,1999, and January 21,2000. 

m. FORA means the Fort Ord Reuse Authority. 

n. Jurisdiction means the City of Monterey. 

o. Interim Use means the Jurisdiction's use of transferred property prior to the Jurisdiction's 
establishment of a perm.anent use. 

p. Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property means all of the Jurisdiction Property that the 
Jurisdiction acquires through FORA. 

q. Jurisdiction Property means the portions of the former Fort Ord located within the 
jurisdictional limits of the Jurisdiction. 

r. Sale or Lease Proceeds means the consideration received by the Jurisdiction or FORA for 
purposes of Sections 4d and 4e when leasing or selling a portion of the Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction 
Property, minus any Direct Leasing Expenses and/or Direct Sale Expenses. 

s. Transaction Worksheet means a report from the Jurisdiction to FORA (in the form 
attached as Exhibit B) on the details of a proposed lease, sale, or equivalent use transaction involving 
Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property. The Jurisdiction agrees to deliver a Transaction Worksheet to 
FORA before consummating any lease, sale, or equivalent use transaction, as more particularly described 
in Section 5 below. An equivalent use transaction is a transaction, other than a lease or sale transaction, 
through which the Jurisdiction permits third party use of Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property in a 
manner that confers direct or indirect financial benefit to the Jurisdiction. 

Section 2. Compliance With Other Agreements. 

a. The Jurisdiction shall use or transfer any Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property in 
compliance with the EDC Agreement, the Base Reuse Plan, the Settlement Agreement in Sierra Club v. 

03/02/01 final draft 
City ofMonterey.042301 

3 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 9, Packet Page 37



FORA, Monterey County Superior Court Case Number 112014, executed November 30, 1998, the Fort 
Ord Master Resolution, and the deed restrictions, attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F. 

b. FORA and the Jurisdiction shall spend Sale or Lease Proceeds in compliance with the 
EDC Agreement. 

c. At least annually, commencing with the year in which the Army transfers a particular 
parcel of Jurisdiction Property to FORA and ending on the seventh (ih) anniversary of such transfer, the 
Jurisdiction shall submit to FORA a written report of the Jurisdiction's uses of all Sale or Lease Proceeds 
received by the Jurisdiction in connection with such parcel of Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property 
and not shared with FORA under Section 5 (i) below. The Jurisdiction shall have forty-five (45) days 
from the anniversary of each transfer to prepare and submit its report to FORA. 

d. Any liability caused by either Party's failure to spend Sale or Lease Proceeds in 
compliance with the EDC Agreement shall be borne by the Party who causes such liability. 

Section 3. Compliance with Water/Waste Water Allocations. 

a. In using, developing, or approving development on the Jurisdiction Property, the 
Jurisdiction shall not commit (or cause the commitment of) water resources that are unavailable to the 
Jurisdiction (whether through FORA allocations or otherwise). 

b. FORA's current water allocations are set forth in the attached Exhibit E. On June 13, 
1997, FORA adopted its Development and Resource Management Plan. Section 3.11.54 of that plan 
includes procedures for adjusting water allocations. That reallocation procedure is subject to FORA's 
general operating procedures in Chapter 8 of the FORA Master Resolution. Any such reallocation shall 
be reviewed by the FORA Water/Wastewater Oversight Committee prior to consideration by the FORA 
Board. 

c. If FORA allocates wastewater discharge capacity rights to the Jurisdiction, any 
reallocation to these capacity rights shall be made in the same manner as provided in this section for 
adjustments to water allocations. 

Section 4. Acquisition from Army; Disposition to Jurisdiction. 

a. FORA shall diligently seek to acquire the portions of Jurisdiction Property from the Army 
identified within the EDC Agreement. 

b. Concurrently with FORA's acquisition of Jurisdiction Property from the Army (or at such 
other times as the Parties may agree in writing), FORA shall transfer such property to the Jurisdiction, 
and the Jurisdiction shall accept such property. Upon transfer, such property shall become Jurisdiction-
Owned Jurisdiction Property. Each transfer shall include the deed restrictions and notices found in 
Exhibit F. 

c. FORA shall keep the Jurisdiction informed about any conveyance of Jurisdiction Property 
from the Army to FORA. FORA shall also prepare documents needed to convey property from FORA to 
the Jurisdiction. 

d. If FORA decides to lease portions of the Jurisdiction Property to a third party after transfer 
from the Army to FORA, but prior to its transfer to the Jurisdiction, FORA agrees to obtain the 
Jurisdiction's prior written consent to such lease. FORA also agrees to distribute to the Jurisdiction fifty 
percent (50%) of the Sale or Lease Proceeds as defined in Section 1 r. 

03/02101 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

4 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 10, Packet Page 38



e. The Jurisdiction may direct FORA to transfer property directly to a third party rather than 
to the Jurisdiction. If the Jurisdiction so elects, the distribution of Sale or Lease Proceeds as defined in 
Section 1 r shall apply to the direct transfer. 

Section 5. Subsequent Jurisdiction Disposition. 

a. The Jurisdiction may dispose of Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property in its discretion, 
consistent with this Section 5 and Section 6. 

b. The Jurisdiction and FORA shall use a Transaction Worksheet, in substantially the form 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 8, to document the estimated and final distribution of Sales or 
Lease Proceeds as more particularly described in the remaining subsections of this Section 5. 

c. Forty-five (45) days prior to the Jurisdiction's anticipated final approval of any leasehold or 
fee transfer of a portion of Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property, the Jurisdiction shall deliver to 
FORA a completed Transaction Worksheet that includes all relevant information about the proposed 
transfer as requested in the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B. FORA shall have the 45 days 
to review such Transaction Worksheet and informally resolve any issues it may have with the 
transaction. Within ten (1 0) business days after FORA requests substantiating documentation, the 
Jurisdiction shall deliver to FORA documents to support facts represented in the Transaction Worksheet. 
The Jurisdiction shall not approve any leasehold or fee transfer of a portion of Jurisdiction-Owned 
Jurisdiction Property until the earlier of (i) forty-five (45) days after delivering to FORA a Transaction 
Worksheet that includes all relevant information about the proposed transfer as requested in the form 
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B, or (ii) thirty (30) days after FORA has confirmed in writing that 
the Transaction Worksheet is complete. 

d. If FORA disagrees with the Transaction Worksheet, FORA shall provide the Jurisdiction 
with written notice of its objections, including specific objections and reasoning, at least three (3) 
business days before the meeting scheduled for the Jurisdiction's governing body to consider approval of 
the transfer. If the Jurisdiction has complied with the requirements of Section 5c and approves the 
transfer at the noticed meeting in the manner described in the Transaction Worksheet delivered to 
FORA, then FORA shall be deemed to have waived its right to protest the transfer unless FORA 
provided the Jurisdiction written notice of its protest, and the grounds on which it is based, at least three 
(3) business days prior to the noticed meeting. FORA shall be restricted to those objections contained in 
the written notice of objections. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the Parties acknowledge that the transfer process will 
benefit from early and detailed discussions between FORA and the Jurisdiction. 

e. In disposing of Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property, the Jurisdiction may require any 
level or type of consideration permitted by state law. In determining the lawful consideration, the 
Jurisdiction shall obtain and rely on an appraisal by an appraiser. Alternately, if the Jurisdiction-Owned 
Jurisdiction Property is within a redevelopment project area, then the Jurisdiction may rely upon an 
economic consultant's opinion of residual land value consistent in scope and approach with that 
employed by certified appraisers. In determining the property's fair market value, the appraiser or 
economic consultant shall be instructed to: 

(i) assume that the highest and best use is (A) that use designated in the Base 
Reuse Plan, if the Jurisdiction authorizes development at such highest and best use, or (B) a less 
intensive use, consistent with the Base Reuse Plan, designated by the Jurisdiction under Chapter 8 of 
the Fort Ord Master Resolution, if applicable, and if the Jurisdiction restricts development to such less 

03102101 final draft 
City ofMonterey.042301 

5 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 11, Packet Page 39



intensive use, or (C) any less intensive land use, consistent with the Base Reuse Plan, required by the 
Jurisdiction in the applicable proposed transfer agreement; and 

(ii) consider the effect of any development obligations and use restrictions in the 
proposed transfer agreement; and 

(iii) consider the effect of customary local development fees and exactions, the FORA 
fees and exactions described in Section 6, and any special taxes or assessments that may be levied in 
accordance with Section 7. 

Each Transaction Worksheet submitted to FORA must include a description of the property's fair 
market value established under the foregoing assumptions and considerations. If an appraiser 
determined such value, then the Transaction Worksheet must include the appraisal instructions. When 
and if the Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property is within a redevelopment project area and value was 
determined by an economic consultant's opinion of residual land value, then the Transaction Worksheet 
must include a complete description of assumptions and method used to arrive at the value. Finally, the 
Jurisdiction shall document its analysis of each transaction in a reasonable manner, including staff 
reports and evidence offered to support governing body findings. 

f. In disposing of Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property, the Jurisdiction shall include in 
the disposition documentation a promise by the transferee, and its successors in interest, to comply with 
Section 7 of this Agreement and the deed restrictions in Exhibit F. 

g. When the Jurisdiction receives Sale or Lease Proceeds, the Jurisdiction shall promptly 
deliver to FORA (i) fifty percent (50%) of the amount of such Sale or Lease Proceeds, and (ii) an update 
to any applicable Transaction Worksheet. The updated Transaction Worksheet, if any, shall identify the 
property for which the Sale or Lease Proceeds have been received and specify any Direct Sale 
Expenses or Direct Leasing Expenses that have been incurred or recalculated for the property since the 
delivery of the original Transaction Worksheet. The Jurisdiction shall deliver to FORA reasonable 
documentation to substantiate the information in a Transaction Worksheet update within ten (1 0) 
business days after receiving a request from FORA for such documentation. 

h. The Sale or Lease Proceeds held by either the Jurisdiction or FORA after payments have 
been made to FORA under Section 5 (g) may be used by the Parties in any manner consistent with the 
EDC Agreement and the Base Reuse Plan. [See Authority Act GC 67678) and Base Closure Act.]. The 
Parties acknowledge that the EDC Agreement requires Sale or Lease Proceeds to be spent only on 
Economic Development Uses, as defined in the EDC Agreement. 

i. Within forty-five (45) days of the end of the last preceding calendar year, the Jurisdiction 
shall file with FORA a report for the preceding year that summarizes (i) the transactions disclosed in 
Transaction Worksheets during the year, (ii) Sale or Lease Proceeds received during the year (including 
the calculation of Direct Sale Expenses and Direct Leasing Expenses), (iii) payments made to FORA 
during the year, and (iv) expenditures that the Jurisdiction made during the year with its retained Sale or 
Lease Proceeds. Within ten (1 0) days after a request by FORA for substantiating documentation, the 
Jurisdiction shall deliver to FORA reasonable documentation to substantiate the information in the annual 
report. 

Section 6. Basewide Mitigation Measures and Basewide Costs. 

a. The Jurisdiction acknowledges that the Authority Act [at Government Code Section 
67679(e)] prohibits the Jurisdiction from issuing a building permit for development projects on the 
Jurisdiction Property unless and until FORA has certified that all development fees that it has levied with 

03/02/01 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

6 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 12, Packet Page 40



respect to the development project have been paid or otherwise satisfied. To assist FORA in levying 
development fees, and to the extent legally permissible, the Jurisdiction shall levy, on development 
projects on the Jurisdiction Property, development fees and assessments in accordance with FORA's 
adopted fee policy in effect from time to time, to be payable by the project applicant directly to FORA. 
FORA shall pay all Jurisdiction costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred defending any legal 
challenge to the Jurisdiction's authority to levy such development fees and assessments for the benefit of 
FORA. Nothing in the preceding sentence obligates the Jurisdiction to defend such legal challenge. 

b. The Jurisdiction shall not approve a sale, lease, or equivalent use of Jurisdiction-Owned 
Jurisdiction Property until the Fair and Equitable Share for the particular parcel has been identified in a 
Transaction Worksheet submitted to FORA under Section 5c. 

c. The Jurisdiction shall not complete an approved sale, lease, or equivalent use transaction 
with respect to a particular parcel of Jurisdiction-Owned Jurisdiction Property until (1) the method of 
payment of the Fair and Equitable Share for such property has either been established in accordance 
with the definition of Fair and Equitable Share; (2) some type of financing mechanism is in place to meet 
the Jurisdiction's Fair and Equitable Share for such property; or (3) otherwise arranged with FORA in 
writing. This requirement, which supplements other provisions of this Agreement providing for payment 
to FORA of the Fair and Equitable Share for such parcel, ensures that FORA will receive the tax 
increment (or equivalent) component of the Fair and Equitable Share for such parcel. 

d. The Jurisdiction may fund (or cause the funding of) certain elements of Basewide 
Mitigation Measures or Basewide Costs from its own resources, grants, or from developers contracting 
with the Jurisdiction for reuse of the Jurisdiction Property. For each dollar of such Jurisdiction (or 
Jurisdiction-caused) funding that is not part of the Fair and Equitable Share, there shall be a one (1) 
dollar reduction in the Fair and Equitable Share that the Jurisdiction would otherwise owe to FORA with 
respect to any portion of the Jurisdiction Property. The Jurisdiction shall determine when and how the 
reduction in the Jurisdiction's Fair and Equitable Share will be accounted for. The Jurisdiction shall 
report on such reductions, including the source of the reduction and how the reduction will be accounted 
for, in each annual report submitted to FORA pursuant to Section 5(i) above. In addition, any 
Transaction Worksheet for a transaction in which such a reduction will be accounted for must describe 
the applicable reduction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Jurisdiction shall not fund (or cause the 
funding of) any elements of Basewide Mitigation Measures or Basewide Costs without first notifying 
FORA of the Jurisdiction's intention to do so. If FORA reasonably disapproves such funding it shall 
provide written notice of that disapproval to the Jurisdiction within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the 
Jurisdiction's notice of intention. Upon receipt of such notice of disapproval from FORA, the Jurisdiction 
shall not proceed with the proposed funding of Basewide Mitigation Measures or Basewide Costs. 

e. When FORA has levied (or the Jurisdiction has levied for the benefit of FORA) 
development fees or assessments on development projects that constitute Interim Uses, the 
development fees or assessments paid to FORA in connection with such Interim Uses shall be credited 
toward development fees or assessments levied on subsequent development projects involving 
permanent uses of the same property. Under no circumstances is FORA obligated to refund 
development fees or assessments where a permanent use triggers development fees or assessments 
that are less than those for a prior Interim Use of the same property. 

f. If FORA is unable, despite reasonable good faith efforts, to pay Basewide Costs and 
undertake Basewide Mitigation Measures, then upon a request from FORA, the Jurisdiction shall initiate 
a process to consider its own financing mechanisms to raise revenues to contribute, toward Basewide 
Costs and the cost of undertaking Basewide Mitigation Measures. Nothing in this Section 6(f) requires 
the Jurisdiction to adopt any specific financing mechanism or contribute any funds to alleviate FORA's 
funding insufficiency. 

03/02101 final draft 
City of Monterey. 04230 I 

7 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 13, Packet Page 41



g. FORA shall pay Basewide Costs and undertake Basewide Mitigation Measures for the 
benefit of the Jurisdiction Property to the same extent that FORA pays Basewide Costs and undertakes 
Basewide Mitigation Measures for the benefit of other property. FORA may pay Basewide Costs and 
undertake Basewide Mitigation Measures in accordance with a FORA-approved schedule of 
improvements and mitigations, which may be modified from time to time. FORA shall, however, afford 
the Jurisdiction an opportunity to participate in FORA's approval of a schedule of improvements and 
mitigations. During any 5-year period, starting with the first FORA approval of a schedule of 
improvements and mitigations, the benefit to the Jurisdiction Property must be equitable and proportional 
to the benefit to other property benefited by Basewide Mitigation Measures. 

Section 7. Formation of Financing District. 

In consideration for the transfer of Property from FORA to the Jurisdiction, the Jurisdiction agrees, for 
itself, its tenants, and successors, in interest, not to interfere with, protest, or challenge the imposition 
and formation of any land-based financing district allowed by Government Code 67679(d) (a "Financing 
District"), which is reasonably necessary to implement the Basewide Costs and Basewide Mitigation 
Measures. The Jurisdiction further agrees to provide all reasonable assistance to FORA in such 
formation, including, if required, voting affirmatively for the formation of any such Financing District. A 
Financing District is Jreasonably necessary to implement the Basewide Costs and Basewide Mitigation 
Measures if: 

(i) FORA's revenues from all other sources are reasonably expected to be inadequate to the 
Basewide Costs and Basewide Mitigation Measures consistent with FORA's policy 
adopted in January 1999 and previously approved in the Base Reuse Plan in 1997. (That 
cost is estimated to be as much as Two Hundred Twenty-Five Million Dollars 
[$225,000,000]); and 

(ii) the special taxes or assessments from such Financing District are limited to the gap 
between the revenues needed by FORA for such purposes and the revenues otherwise 
reasonably available to FORA for such purposes. 

The Jurisdiction and such tenants, successors in interest or assigns may, however, protest the rate or 
apportionment of special taxes or assessments over property within such a Financing District if such 
special taxes or assessments are greater than those identified in Exhibit C (as indexed for inflation). The 
Jurisdiction shall include this obligation in all conveyance instruments of the Jurisdiction-Owned 
Jurisdiction Property. 

Section 8. Unique Situations. 

The attached Exhibit D identifies applicable unique situations for which the allocation of Sale or Lease 
Proceeds or developer assessments vary from the provisions of sections 5 or 6. 

Section 9. Development and Service Costs. 

As between the Parties, the Jurisdiction shall be responsible for all development costs, except 
Basewide Mitigation Measures and Basewide Costs. Jurisdiction costs include, without limitation: non
basewide construction, property clearance, site preparation, project-specific demolition costs, and other 
project-specific development costs. Nothing in this Agreement requires the Jurisdiction to undertake any 
development of the Jurisdiction Property or to be responsible for payment of any taxes or fees that would 
normally be paid by developers or property owners. 

03102101 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

8 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 14, Packet Page 42



Section 10. Redevelopment. 

a. The Jurisdiction shall initiate a process to consider the adoption of a redevelopment plan 
for a redevelopment area consisting of some or all of the Jurisdiction Property. Nothing in this 
Agreement requires the Jurisdiction to adopt a redevelopment plan. 

b. The Jurisdiction may assign its rights (and delegate its duties) under this Agreement to the 
redevelopment agency for the Jurisdictions jurisdictional boundaries. 

c. If a redevelopment plan, adopted in accordance with California Health and Safety Code 
Sections 33492.70 and following, is not in effect with respect to all of the Jurisdiction Property within two 
(2) years after the date of this Agreement, or if a redevelopment plan, adopted in accordance with 
California Health and Safety Code Sections 33492 and following, is not in effect with respect to a 
particular parcel of the Jurisdiction Property by the time the Jurisdiction seeks to complete a sale, lease, 
or equivalent use transaction for such parcel, then the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to identify a 
financing mechanism that would result in FORA receiving revenue equal to the tax increment revenue 
that FORA would have received from the Jurisdiction Property (or applicable parcel). If the Parties fail to 
agree on the calculation of Fair and Equitable Share for a specific project within Jurisdiction Property, 
FORA may find a project inconsistent with the Base Reuse Plan, as provided in the Authority Act. 
Nothing in this Section 1 0© obligates the Jurisdiction to implement any particular financing mechanism. 

Section 11. Ordnance. 

The Parties shall cooperate with the Army's investigation, characterization, and remediation of potential 
ordnance and explosives impediments to allow the reuse of the Jurisdiction Property as contemplated by 
the Base Reuse Plan. 

Section 12. Public Information. 

FORA and the Jurisdiction will cooperate in providing appropriate public information in open meetings as 
necessary or requested by the Jurisdiction. 

Section 13. Audit. 

Each Party may, at its own expense, audit those records of the other Party that directly relate to 
performance under this Agreement. Each Party has an obligation to make all such records available, 
within a reasonable period of time, to the auditing Party. 

Section 14. Notice. 

Formal notices, demands, and communications between the Parties shall not be deemed given unless 
sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express delivery service with a delivery receipt, or 
personal delivery with a delivery receipt, to the principal office of the Parties as follows: 

Jurisdiction: 

City of Monterey 
ATTN: Fred Meurer, 
City Manager 
City Hall 
Monterey, CA 93940 

03102101 final draft 
City ofMonterey.042301 

9 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 15, Packet Page 43



FORA: 

Fort Ord Reuse Authority 
ATTN: Michael A. Houlemard, Jr., 
Executive Officer 
100 1 ih Street, Bldg. 2880 
Marina, California 93933 

Such written notices, demands, and communications may be sent in the same manner to such other 
addresses as the affected Party may from time to time designate as provided in this Section 14. Receipt 
shall be deemed to have occurred on the date marked on a written receipt as the date of delivery or 
refusal of delivery (or attempted delivery if undeliverable). 

Section 15. Title of Parts and Sections. 

Any titles of the sections or subsections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only 
and shall be disregarded in interpreting any part of the Agreement's provisions. 

Section 16. Severability. 

If any term of this Agreement is held in a final disposition by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, then the remaining terms shall continue in full force unless the rights and obligations of the 
Parties have been materially altered by such holding of invalidity. 

Section 17. Dispute Resolution. 

a. Dispute resolution procedure. If any dispute arises between the Parties under this 
Agreement, the Parties shall resolve the dispute in accordance with this Section 17. 

b. Duty to meet and confer. The Parties shall first meet and confer in good faith and attempt 
to resolve the matter between themselves. Each Party shall make all reasonable efforts to provide to the 
other Party all the information in its possession that is relevant to the dispute, so that both Parties have 
the information needed to reach agreement. If these negotiations fail to produce agreement after fifteen 
(15) days from the initial demand, either Party may demand mediation. 

c. Mediation. If meeting and conferring do not resolve the dispute, then the matter shall be 
submitted for formal mediation to the Mediation Center of Monterey County, the American Arbitration 
Association, the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, or such other mediation service as the 
parties may mutually agree upon. Either Party may terminate the mediation if it fails to produce 
agreement within forty-five (45) days from selection of the mediator. The expenses of such mediation 
shall be shared equally between the Parties. 

d. Arbitration. If the dispute has not been resolved by mediation, and if both Parties wish to 
pursue arbitration, then the dispute shall be submitted to arbitration. The decision of the arbitrator or 
arbitrators shall be binding, unless within thirty (30) days after issuance of the arbitrator's written 
decision, either Party files an action in court. 

(i) Any potential arbitrator must affirmatively disclose all of his or her potential conflicts 
of interest, and a description of the nature of his or her past and current law practice 
(if applicable), before the Parties select the arbitrator. A Party may disqualify any 
potential arbitrator whom the Party subjectively perceives to have a conflict or bias. 

03/02101 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

10 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 16, Packet Page 44



Any potential arbitrator must be a qualified professional with expertise in the area 
that is the subject of the dispute, unless the Parties otherwise agree. 

(ii) The Parties shall jointly select a single arbitrator. 

(iii) Before commencement of the arbitration, the Parties may elect to have the 
arbitration proceed on an informal basis; however, if the Parties are unable so to 
agree, then the arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with Code of Civil 
Procedure Sections 1280 and following, and to the extent that procedural issues are 
not there resolved, in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration 
Association. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the requirements of Section 17(d)(iv) 
shall apply. 

(iv) The arbitrator must issue a written decision setting forth the legal basis of the 
decision, making findings of all relevant facts and stating how the law was applied to 
the found facts, and the decision must be consistent with and apply the law of the 
State of California. 

e. Attorney's Fees and Costs. Should the dispute of the Parties not be resolved by 
negotiation or mediation, and in the event it should become necessary for either Party to enforce any of 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement by means of arbitration, court action or administrative 
enforcement, the prevailing Party, in addition to any other remedy at law or in equity available to such 
Party, shall be awarded all reasonable cost and reasonable attorney's fees in connection therewith, 
including the fees and costs of experts reasonably consulted by the attorneys for the prevailing Party. 

f. Judicial Resolution. If the dispute is not or cannot be resolved by mediation, and if there 
is not agreement between the Parties to pursue arbitration, then either Party may commence an action in 
the Superior Court of Monterey County. The prevailing Party, in addition to any other remedy at law or in 
equity available to such Party, shall be awarded all reasonable costs and reasonable attorney's fees, 
including the fees and costs of experts reasonably consulted by the attorneys for the prevailing Party. 

g. Prevailing Party. For purposes of Sections 17(e) and (f), "prevailing Party" shall include a 
Party that dismisses an action for recovery hereunder in exchange for payment of the sum allegedly due, 
performance of covenants allegedly breached, or consideration substantially equal to the relief sought in 
the action or proceeding. 

Section 18. Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to Jurisdiction Property. 
No other statement or representation by any employee, officer, or agent of either Party, which is not 
contained in this Agreement, shall be binding or valid. 

Section 19. Multiple Originals; Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in multiple originals, each of which is deemed to be an original, and 
may be signed in counterparts. 

Section 20. Modifications. 

This Agreement shall not be modified except by written instrument executed by and between the 
Parties. 

03/02/01 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

11 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 17, Packet Page 45



Section 21. Interpretation. 

This Agreement has been negotiated by and between the representatives of both Parties, both Parties 
being knowledgeable in the subject matter of this Agreement, and each Party had the opportunity to 
have the Agreement reviewed and drafted by their respective legal counsel. Accordingly, any rule of law 
(including Civil Code Section. 1654) or legal decision that would require interpretation of any ambiguities 
in this Agreement against the Party that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of 
this Agreement shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to effectuate the purpose of the Parties and 
this Agreement. 

Section 22. Relationship of the Parties. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall create a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship 
between the Parties unless specifically provided herein. 

Section 23. Waiver. 

No waiver of any right or obligation of either Party hereto shall be effective unless in writing, 
specifying such waiver, executed by the Party against whom such waiver is sought to be enforced. A 
waiver by either Party of any of its rights under this Agreement on any occasion shall not be a bar to the 
exercise of the same right on any subsequent occasion or of any other right at any time. 

Section 24. Further Assurances. 

The Parties shall make, execute, and deliver such other documents, and shall undertake such other and 
further acts, as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the intent of this Agreement. 

Section 25. Days. 

As used in this Agreement, the term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 

AS OF THE DATE FIRST WRITTEN ABOVE, the Parties evidence their agreement to the terms of this 
Agreement by signing below: 

City of Monterey, 
A Political Subdivision of the State of California 

By:~~L== 
Its: !t~t-yo&.. 

APPROVED BY: 
NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT • c:fj_<2.,\-:: . 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF MONTEREY City AthH·'n>t•y1S Oft":-.ce 

On ~ fo , 2001, before me ~ ~7)'~~A , Notary Public, personally 
appeared .])adfitU 8/b~ personally knowntme or proved on the basis of satisfactory evidence 
to be the person whose name is subscribed on the accompanying instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she 
executed the instrument in his/her authorized capacity and that by his/her signature on the instrument the person, 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

03102101 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

~···oaa···a··a·oaaa·o 
12 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 18, Packet Page 46



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I. 

State of 

County of 

On ~ #+- D~~ I aoo I before me, Name and Title of Officer g., "Jane Doe, Notary Public") 

pe~onallyappearnd~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~A~-~--~~-~~)I=~~Nz~3e£OO~~~s~~~~~!~~~~·~~~~~~~~~-
)Jf' personally known to me- OR- 0 proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) 
/ whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument 

and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the 
same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 
executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

OPTIONAL------------
Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent 

fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. 

Description of Attached Document 

Title or Type of Document: ·-:r(W f ~M. ~t:te£_11%.. ~ ef. Mfl.i - ~ , fnlil;1d£Jt?t0 
Document Date: f1ct!~ . jO I [)-OD I , Number of Pages: J. f 
Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: ---~---bi""""--~~-...!£t&,~('-"\:x.c,-u'ttL>·.__ _________ _ 

Capacity(ies) Claimed 

0 
D Corporate fficer 

Title(s}r------------r'------
0 ~art er- 0 Limited 
0 rney-in-l='act 
:::::! - rustee /d' Guardian or Conserva 
0 Other: 

Signer Is R resenting: 

LJ Individual 
C Corporate 

Title(s): ~L-------------/ 
LJ Partne 0 General 

Atto 

uardian or Conservator 
Other: 

<0 1995 National Notary Association • 8236 Remmet Ave., P.O. Box 7184 • Canoga Park, CA 91309-7184 Prod. No. 5907 Reorder: Call Toll-Free 1-800-876-6827 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 19, Packet Page 47



EXHIBIT A 
DESCRIPTION OF THE JURISDICTION PROPERTY 

A FORA proposes to transfer the following real property to the Jurisdiction under this 
Agreement: all COE parcels that designate the Jurisdiction (City of Monterey) as the final recipient. 1 

B. All personal property located on the above-described real property, including, but not 
limited to, all buildings, facilities, roadways, and other infrastructure, including the storm drainage 
systems and the telephone system infrastructure, and any other improvements thereon (including all 
replacements or additions thereto between the date of this Agreement and the date of conveyance of the 
Property to FORA). 

1 See Exhibit A, Attachment 1, for the FORA Parcels Using COE Parcel Numbers map with attached 
COE Description of Properties previously described as Exhibit "A" of the Memorandum of Agreement Between 
the Department of the Army and the Fort Ord Reuse Authority dated June 20, 2000. 

03102101 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

1 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 20, Packet Page 48



Seller/Lessor: 
Address: 

Phone: 
Fax: 

Valuation Instructions/Specifics: 

EXHIBIT B 
Transaction Detail Report- Form 

FORT ORO REUSE AUTHORITY 

Buyer/Lessee: 
Address: 

Phone: 
Fax: 

Demolition Required: No D Yes D $ ______ Cost 
Instructions: _________________________________ _ 

Proposed Uses of Property: 

Interim Use (Lease): Yes 

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY 

03102101 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

Description: 

[JURISDICTION] 

2 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 21, Packet Page 49



EXHIBITC 

Basewide Development Fee/Assessments 

New Residential $29,600 per unit 

Preston Lease $0 

Preston Sale $8,900 per unit 

Other Existing 
Housing $8,900 per unit 

New Retail $80,000 per acre 

New Industrial/Business office $3,880 per acre 

Hotel/Motel $6,600 per room 

Park/Recreation $-0-

Interim rental fees from Interim Use as defined in Section 1 (o) and described in Section 6(e) of this 
Agreement. 

03/02101 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

3 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 22, Packet Page 50



EXHIBIT D 

UNIQUE SITUATIONS WITH UNIQUE ALLOCATIONS 
OF SALE OR LEASE PROCEEDS 

PRESTON PARK HOUSING: The three hundred fifty-four (354) units of housing within Preston Park 
shall be administered as provided in this Agreement, subject to the following additional provisions: 

1. The Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) and the City of Marina (Marina) agree to abide by the action 
taken by FORA Board in December 1999 to apply the net revenues from the leasing of the Preston 
Park Housing Complex to capital projects and related costs at the former Fort Ord. In addition, 
FORA and Marina agree that the extension of the Preston Park Lease Agreement as approved by 
the FORA Board and as attached hereto will govern the expanded area of leasing as may be 
amended from time to time and as permitted through the term of the lease amendment. FORA and 
Marina also agree that all revenues from the leasing of the Preston Park Housing Complex shall be in 
accordance with section 5(g) of this Implementation Agreement. If Marina, at its discretion, at some 
point in the future, elects to sell a portion or all of the Preston Park Housing Parcels, the proceeds will 
be distributed and the assessment of the property shall be in accordance with any other transaction 
covered by this agreement. 

The sublease with Mid-Peninsula Housing Corporation shall remain in effect for its term, as 
extended, and the provisions of the lease to FORA shall apply to the administration of the housing. 
In March 2000, FORA extended the lease with the U.S. Army for five additional years, with a one
year option to extend. The one-year option is available only if FORA is unable to recover its 
construction/rehabilitation costs during the five-year extension period. 

2. Charges, including those paid to support Marina Public Safety services, may be taken and applied by 
the City in a manner consistent with the practices and policies, which have applied heretofore in the 
administration of the sublease and its implementing measures, for the term of the sublease and any 
extension thereto. 

3. The action allocating Preston Park revenues to projects, as taken by the FORA Board of Directors in 
December 1999, shall continue to apply and the amount of net revenues allocated from the lease of 
the Preston Park Housing recommended by the Marina City Council and approved by the FORA 
Board shall continue to be allocated to capital projects and related costs at the former Fort Ord. 
Clarifications of the approved allocation list shall be made by joint action with a recommendation from 
the Marina City Council and approval by the FORA Board of Directors. 

4. Upon recommendation from the Marina City Council and approval by the FORA Board of Directors, 
the lease and sublease of Preston Park Housing may be extended for the support of the Department 
of Defense mission in the Monterey Bay area, to include units within Abrams Park Housing. 

5. Any sale of Preston Park housing, or leasing beyond the terms described in this Exhibit, and the 
distribution of the proceeds there from, shall be in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

HAYES HOUSING: 
In consideration for the City of Seaside's agreement to undertake the basewide costs associated with 
building removal at the Hayes Park Project, the development fees for the Hayes Park developer will be 
reduced by $10,000 per dwelling unit removed. It is anticipated that this provision will be formally 
enacted by separate agreement between FORA and Seaside at a future date. To the extent such 
agreement modifies this general provision, it supersedes this section. 

0310210 I final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

4 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 23, Packet Page 51



ENTITY 

EXHIBIT E 

WATER RESERVATIONS AND ALLOCATIONS (Current Year) 

FORT ORO REUSE PLAN ALLOCATION In Acre 
Feet per Year (AFY) 

ORO MILITARY COMMUNITY (Reservation) 
CSUMB 

1729 
1035 
230 
560 
45 

UC MBEST 
COUNTY 
COUNTY/STATE PARKS 
DEL REY OAKS 
MONTEREY 
MARINA (SPHERE) 
SEASIDE 
MARINA 

75 
65 
10 

710 
1175 

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS 5634 

Total 

03102/01 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

Assumed Line Loss 532 
Reserve 434 

6600 

5 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 24, Packet Page 52



EXHIBIT F 
DEED RESTRICTION AND COVENANTS 

The Deed Restriction and Covenants is made this day of , 200_, by the Fort Ord 
Reuse Authority ("Owner"), a governmental public entity organized under the laws of the State of 
California, with reference to the following facts and circumstances. 

A Owner is the owner of the real property described in Exhibit A to this Deed Restriction and 
Covenants ("the property"), by virtue of a conveyance of the property from the United States 
Government and/or the United States Department of the Army to Owner in accordance with state 
and federal law, the Fort Ord base Reuse Plan ("the Reuse Plan"), and the policies and programs 
of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority. 

B. Future development of the property is governed under the provisions of the Reuse Plan and other 
applicable general plan and land use ordinances and regulations of the local governmental entity 
on which the property is located consistent with the Reuse Plan. 

C. The Reuse Plan provides that the property can only be used and developed in a manner 
consistent with the Reuse Plan. 

D. The Reuse Plan recognizes that development of all property conveyed from FORA is constrained 
by limited water, sewer, transportation, and other infrastructure services and by other residual 
effects of a former military reservation, including unexploded ordinance. 

E. It is the desire and intention of Owner, concurrently with its acceptance of the conveyance of the 
property, to recognize and acknowledge the existence of these development constraints on the 
property and to give due notice of the same to the public and any future purchaser of the 
property. 

F. It is the intention of the Owner that this Deed Restriction and Covenants is irrevocable and shall 
constitute enforceable restrictions on the property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Owner hereby irrevocably covenants that the property subject to this Deed 
Restriction and Covenants is held and shall be held, conveyed, hypothecated, encumbered, leased, 
rented, used, occupied, and improved subject to the following restrictions and covenants on the use and 
enjoyment of the property, to be attached to and become a part of the deed to the property. The Owner, 
for itself and for its heirs, assigns, and successors in interest, covenants and agrees that: 

1. Development of the property is not guaranteed or warranted in any manner. Any development of 
the property will be and is subject to the provisions of the Reuse Plan, the policies and programs of the 
Fort Ord Reuse Authority, including the Authority's Master Resolution, and other applicable general plan 
and land use ordinances and regulations of the local governmental entity on which the property is 
located and compliance with CEQA. 

2. Development of the property will only be allowed to the extent such development is consistent 
with applicable local general plans which have been determined by the Authority to be consistent with 
the Reuse Plan, including restraints relating to water supplies, wastewater and solid waste disposal, 
road capacity, and the availability of infrastructure to supply these resources and services, and does not 
exceed the constraint limitations described in the Reuse Plan and the Final Program Environmental 
Impact Report on the Reuse Plan. 

3. 

03/02101 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

(Left blank on purpose) 

6 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 25, Packet Page 53



4. This Deed Restriction and Covenants shall remain in full force and effect immediately and shall be 
deemed to have such full force and effect upon the first conveyance of the property from FORA, and 
is hereby deemed and agreed to be a covenant running with the land binding all of the Owner's 
assigns or successors in interest. 

5. If any provision of this Deed Restriction and Covenants is held to be invalid or for any reason 
becomes unenforceable, no other provision shall be thereby affected or impaired. 

6. Owner agrees to record this Deed Restriction and Covenants as soon as possible after the date of 
execution. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the foregoing instrument was subscribed on the day and year first above
written. 

Owner 

NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF MONTEREY 

On , 2001, before me , Notary Public personally 
appeared personally known to me or proved on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed on the accompanying instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she executed the instrument in his/her authorized capacity and that by 
his/her signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, 
executed the instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

03102101 final draft 
City of Monterey.042301 

7 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 26, Packet Page 54



EXHIBIT A 
Attachment 1 
Page 1 of 8 

\~1.1 ~~~ 

Prepared bY Directorate ol Base Realignment and Cloouro 
Presidio ol Montorey, California 

Revlood 10-4-BQ 

FORA PARCELS USING 
COE PARCEL NUMBERS 

V.·l ~~~~ F1.4.1 ·----· 
/

1

FI.7.2 

I 

L2'?.1!l 

'il \/. f r 
) 

~l 

I 
I 

1
/,_.-___.,_.~ .... U!O.W 

__,.-[.20.8 

I%$~ 
l~ft~ 

-c=1 

/L20.4 

' "'"' ' .rJ";" I -- - -- - -;~ L20.7\ Fl.7.4lL2~.3.2 .r·~ L20.G.4) . -,---. -- '/ . 

MARINA PARCEL~ 

SEASIDE PARCEL 
MONTEREY COUt 
PARCELS 
DEL REY OAKS 
PARCEL 
MONTEREY PAR< 

TRANSFERRED P 

CDR PARCELS 

~ 
N 

~ 

"\ 

J .. 
f -"'~~ _./ J --~ F ~ <:~ [ ' 

("" '-----

Ft.tt 

// 
( 
I 

--~ 
I 

,I 

r! 
~// 

7 
/ 

// 

; , . I ~--~ .• . . . '. ·< _ L2o.r.• \ r ' \Ftol ', L20.7.3 .-r:· /~ L20.G3' ( I './Fl4.4 • •. h_- "" \ 
\ "M \ /- "t' "U ' -

. ,q- I "'' _i / -

- ~--___ ... /'// 
'",,_/' 

I "'·' ,__ \ / 
' _; \ / 

II \ ~-" 
l20.0 \ _.--

'~ ~~~ 
""'-·~-~--

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 27, Packet Page 55



! 
t 

;; 

Search Results: Click Bacl' llult.on on Browser to Search Again. 
Parcels Database last updated on: 10/4/99 1:54:42 PM 
Total Acreage from Query is: 5188.101 Acres 

ra~c:: 1 u1 1 

EXHIBIT"A" 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTIES 

COE Number \ Parcel Name ~~ Acreage ll Jurisdiction ll Recipient ll Transfer Status l 
~lla llllabitat management 11154.5 II County II EDC II in progress I 
I EI lb. I II development/ mixed use /ac limit !I 24.7 II County II EDC II in progress I 
I Ell b.2 II developt~entl mixed use-ac limit II 41.7 II County Jl EDC II in progress I 

I E1lb.3 J sewer treatment facility I development mix 6.2 II County II EDC II in progress I 

I E 11 b.4 II water tank 147 0.1 -ll County II EDC I in progress I 
~1 Ib.6 II development/ mixed use-aac limit I 129.4 II County II EDC in progress I 

I Ellb.7 II development/mixed use-ac limit II 255.3 II County II EDC in progress I 

I Ell b.& II ASP I development mixed use II 58.8 II County II EDC I in progress I 

I EI5.I II ROW/retail II 49.1 II Seaside II- EDC I inprogress I 

I El5.2 II open space II 28.7 II Seaside II EDC in progress I 
I E18.1 IEing future II 73 II Seaside II EDC in progress I 

I El8.2.I II ROWGiglingroad 114.9 II Seaside II EDC' inprogress I 

I El8.2.2 II ROW G igling road I 0.1 II County II EDC in progress I 

I EI8.3 II ROWNormandy/ParkerFiats 6.2 II Seaside II EDC II inprogress I 

I E 18.4 II water tank I 2.2 II Seaside II EDC II in progress I· 
I E 19a. I II housing SFD low density II 265.7 II County II EDC II in progress I 

http://www.harding.com/fortord _parcels!Property/TransferProp2.asp 03/22/2000 

"U)>IT 
ru ::::1: > 
(QOJ:r 
CD C'l -
N::J"O: 
0 3 = _,CD..._ ());a. .... 

...... 
Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 28, Packet Page 56



..LJVVlU.11Vl1L l lll\..1 rugt: L. Ul 1 

I E19a.2 II housing SFD low density II 21 R.4 )\ County II EDC II in progress I 
I El9a.3 Jl housing SFD low density 1[209.3 II County II EDC II in progress I 
[R20b.- ~l housing Stilwell I 101.8 II Seaside I EDC in progress I 
I E20c.l.l.l ~ housing future 75 Seaside EDC in progress I 
I E20c.l.l.2 ] housing fttlure .. - 113.9 Seaside EDC I in progress I 
I E20e.l.2 II Cable TV area -- 0.3 Seaside II EDC II in progress I 
I E20c.l.3 Jl ROWN/S road 1110.4 Seaside II EDC II in progress I 

E20c.2.1 11 housing future II 92.5 l Seaside EDC II in progress ~ 

E20c.2.2 II water tanks/pumps IE~I Seaside EDC II in progress 

E21 a II housing SF low density ~~ell County I EDC II in progress 

E21 b.l II housing S FD low density II 156.7 II County II EDC I in progress 

E21b.2 II housingSFDlowdensity 11134.2 II County II EDC inprogress 

I E21b.3 ~~tsing SFD low density II 58.5 II County !I EDC I in progress 

I E23.1 II ROW I retail II 47.5 II Seaside II EDC II in progress 

I E23.2 j[Row I housing future SFD med density ll 72.6 II Seaside II EDC , II in progress I 
I E24 II ROW/housingfutureSFDmeddensity 11197.1 II Seaside II EDC II inprogre,ss I 
I E29 II BP/LI/0//R&D II 34.5 II County/Monterey II EDC II in progress I 
I E29a II visitor center I bus park II 273.3 II Del Rey Oaks II EDC II in progress I. 
I E29b.1 11 ROW future Hwy 68 I habitat \I 34.5 II Del Rey Oaks II EDC \I in progress I 

I E29b.2 II ROW/BP/LI/O!R&D II 30.1 II County/Monterey II EDC II in progress I 

http://www.harding.com/fmtord parcels/Property/TransferProp2.asp 03/22/2000 

"')>fTi w:::::>< cow I coo_ 
w::r-CD 
o~-i 
-::J)> CXl ,_,. 

-"-
Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 29, Packet Page 57



...., ....._b...,_, V.L I 

I E29b.3 \\ RP/LI/0/R&D \\ 28.4 II County/Manter~~ EDC \\ in progress \ 

I E29e \ . ROW/future Hwy 6810P/R&D \1 9.5 \1 County/Monterey \1 EDC \\ in progress \ 

I E2a J development I mixed use \1 63.7 \[Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.l.l.l II development I mixed use II 24 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.l.l.2 II devclopmemt/mixed use 1[1.2 II Marina Jr· EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.l.2 II ROW road 1110.6 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E2b. I .3 Jl development I mixed use II 33.6 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.l.4 Jl ROW road II 2.2 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
[E2b.l.5 If development /mixed use 1112.2 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.2.1 II development/ mixed usc II 71.1 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.2.2 II ROW road II 0.8 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.2.3 II ROW road II 4.4 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.2.4 ll development I mixed usc II 7.5 ~~ Marina II . EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.2.5 II 2112 Purnp and Treat Facility II 1.5 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E2b.3.I.l II development I mixed use II 108.6 II Marina II EDC , II in progress I 
I E2b.3.l.2 II CID Building II 1.6 II Marina II EDC II in progress • I 
I E2b.J.2 Jl ROW 8th St \1 0.1 II Marina I[ EDC ll in progress I 
I E2c.l II development I mixed use II 13.2 II Marina: II EDC II in progress I 
I E2c.2 II OlJ2 Pwnp and Treat facility II 1.1 II Marina !I EDC ll in progress I 
I E2c.3.1 ~~~elopment/ mixed use II 10 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 

http://www.harding.com/fortord_parcels/Property/TransferProp2.asp 03/22/2000 

IJ)>m ru::::x 
tQIDI 
(1)0_ 
~::rrn 
o3-l 
_ro)> roa 

-" 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 30, Packet Page 58



UUI,.;UJl!CJH llllC 1. a~:,ov "T u1. 1 

I E2c.3.2 J~w;~--- 113.8 II Marina II EDC \1 inprogress \ 

I E2c.3.3 II development I mixed use II 31.7 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 

I E2c.4.1.1 II ROW road II 8.9 II Marina -~~ EDC II in progress I 
I E2c.4 .1.2 _ll_~ow road _ II 2.8 II Marina II EDC ]I in progress I 
I E2c.4.2.1 II developmen~ I mixed use II 13.1 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 

I E2c.4.2.2 II development I mixed use II 2.4 If Marina II EDC II in progress I 

I E2c.4.3 ][ ROW road II 1.9 ~~ Marina I[ EDC ~~ in progress I 
I E2c.4.4 II ROW road II 1.1 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 

I E2d. I II development I mixed use II 15.2 II Marina II EDC II in progress ] 

t E2d.2 II ROW II 5.4 II Marina ll EDC II in progress l 
t E2d.3 II development I mixed use ~~ 46.6 ~~ Marina II EDC II in progress I 

I E2e.l J[ ROW 6th Ave I 8th St Road I[Tl II Marina II EDC II in progress I 

I E2e.2 II ROW Intergarrison road 1[0-2 ll County II EDC II in progress I 
I E31 a It bus park ILIIOIR&D II 5.2 II Del Rey Oaks II EDC II in progress I 

I E31 b IErark ILIIOIR&D II 3 .I ]I Del Rey Oaks II EDC , II in progress I 
I E3lc II bus park /LI/0/R&D II 4.2 II Del Rey Oaks II EDC II in progress I 

I E34 II ROW I housing future SFD med density II 94.7 II Seaside II EDC II in progress I 

I E36 \I bus park ILIIOIR&D II 6.3 II DelRe)' Oaks II EDC II in progress I 

I E4.1.1 II housing l~wer Patton ll !54 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 

I E4.1.2. I II housing lower Patton II 13 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 

http://www .harding. com/ fortord _parcels/Property /TransferProp2.asp 03/22/2000 

JJ~m 
<aru>< coo I 
O'l:::r(JJ 
03~ _co 
(X);:l}> 

....>. 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 31, Packet Page 59



...._ L&.o-- '""' ... , 

I E4. 1.2.2 II housing lower Patton I[ 23 II Marina II EDC II not started I 
I E4. L2.3 j[5ow Booker Str /lower Patton II 1 II Marina II EDC II not started l 
I E4.2 _-=_]~using upper Patton . II 64.2 I Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E4.3.1 II housing Abrams IL 179.6 . Marina Jl EDC II in progress I 
I E4.3.2.1 ~~ housing Abrams 1[43.6 I Marina II EDC II in progress I 
l E4.3.2.2 ]I Housing Lexington Court II 7.9 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E4.4 housing Preston 1/ 98.9 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
l E4.5 water treatment facility II 2.9 II Marina II EDC . II in progress I 
I E4.6.l I ROW middle lrnjin road II 25 ][ Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E4.6.2 ]I ROW Irnjin road I 17.3 11· County II EDC II in progress I 
I E4.7J I[ ROW NE Imjin road 5 II Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I E4.7.2 II ROW Imjin road I 3.1 II County II EDC II in progress I 
I E5a II development I mixed use Jl 45.7 II Marina ~~C II in progress I 
I E5b II development I mixed use II 3.2 ![Marina II EDC II in progress I 
I ERa. I I Landfill, 75 acre development, HMP II 304.1 II County II EDC , II in progress I 
I E8a.2 I Landfill carrot, Univ med density residential ·1 4 .II County II EDC II in progress I 
[ L20.10.1 ][ROW I 110rth Reservation road II 26.2 II County ~~ II in progress I 
I L20J0.2 ][ROW I north Reservation road II 5.2 II County II. EDC II in progress I 
I L20.10.3 ll ROW I north Reservation road ~~ 2.2 II County II EDC II in progress I 
I L20.ll.l II ROW I Blanco road II 31.2 II County II EDC II in progress I 

http://www.harding.com/fortord _parcels/Property/TransfcrProp2.asp 03/22/2000 

-u )> r 
Ill ...... ' co or ~ 
CD () : 
(J) ::r t: 
0 3: 
....,CD 
()) ~ ) 

_,_ 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 32, Packet Page 60



I L20.11.2 _][ ROW Blanco roau ~~I 7.7 II Marina ll EDC II in progress I 
I L20.13.1 IEf~d- [ 2 II DelRcyOaks II EDC ll inprogress I 
I L20.13.~-:l ILROWSBoundary~~Sroad 117.9 II DelRcyOaks II EDC II inprogress I 
I L20.13.3.2 ~[ ROW I part S Doundary Road II 2.1 l! County/Monterey II EDC ll in progress I 
I L20.13.4.1 ~~WSBoundary/futureHwy68 II 0.8 II DelReyOaks II EDC II inprogress I 
I L20.13.4.2 ~~I ~artS Boundary Road II 0.8 I County/Monterey II EDC -~~ in progress I 
l L20.13.5 II ROW IS 13oundary I York road ~~ 5.9 County/Monterey II EDC II in progress I 
I L20.14 .1 ~~~I East Intergarrison road II 16.2 I County II EDC II in progress l 
I L20.14.2 II ROW I Mid Intergarrison road II 3.2 II County II EDC II in progress I 
I L20.18 II ROW /Eucalyptus road II 7.2 II County II EDC II in progress I 
I L20.19 !l2:ow /North Darloy Canyon road ~~ ~~ County II EDC II in progress I 

I L20.20 II ROW I west Camp road II 2.3 Jl County II EDC II in progress I 
I L20.21 II ROW I part Watkins Gate road 4.4 II County II EDC II in progress I 
I L20.22 II ROW I Chapel Hill road 2.4 II County II EDC II in progress I 
I L20.9 II ROW I south Reservation road 18.9 II County II EDC , ll in progress ) 

I L23.3.1 II develot~;nent mixed use-ac limit I 54.5 II County II EDC/MPC II not started I 
I L23.3.2.l I development mixed use-ac limit/historic district I 83.2 II County II EDCIMPC II not started I 
I L23.3.2.2 l development mixed use-ac limit I 20.1 II County II EDC/MPC II not started I 

I L23.3.3 I development mixed use-ac limit II 36.4 II County II EDC/MPC II not started I 
I L31 Jl Esse len Parcel Surplus II II I 1. 7 ]I Seaside II EDC II in progress l 

-u)>m 
ru::::x 
<aru:c 
CDO
-...J:rlJJ 
o3-l 
-~)> 
(X) ..... 

http :1 /www .harding. com/fortordc._]) arcelsll'roperty IT ransferP ro p2.asp 03/22/2000 Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 33, Packet Page 61



JJU~UIIIClll J. I Llv 

~- L32.1 ][!.1blic facilities/inst Surplus II \\ County \1 EDC ll in progress I 

I 132.4.1 J _::~lopmcnt mixed use I retail Surplus IT II Seaside l! EDC ll in progress \ 

I L32.4.2 ![~ow I de~etoprnent mixed use I Surplus II 4.3 II County II EDC ll in progress I 

IJ)>m 
ru~>< corui 
CllC">
()):TOJ 
03-; 
_,.,(t) 
());a_)> 

_. 

http://www.harding.com!fortord _parcels/Property/TransferProp2.asp 03/22/2000 Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 34, Packet Page 62



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 35, Packet Page 63



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 36, Packet Page 64



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 37, Packet Page 65



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 38, Packet Page 66



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 39, Packet Page 67



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 40, Packet Page 68



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 41, Packet Page 69



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 42, Packet Page 70



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 43, Packet Page 71



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 44, Packet Page 72



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 45, Packet Page 73



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 46, Packet Page 74



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 47, Packet Page 75



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 48, Packet Page 76



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 49, Packet Page 77



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 50, Packet Page 78



OFFICE OF THE UNDER SECRETARY OF DEFENSE 
3000 DEFENSE PENTAGON 

WASHINGTON, DC  20301-3000 

 

 
  

        ACQUISITION 
 AND SUSTAINMENT 

 

Mr. Joshua Metz 

Executive Officer 

Fort Ord Redevelopment Authority 

920 2nd Avenue, Suite A  

Marina, CA 93933 

 

Mr. Craig Malin 

City Manager 

City of Seaside 

440 Harcourt Avenue 

Seaside, CA 93955 

 

Dear Mr. Metz and Mr. Malin: 

 

 On behalf of the Secretary of Defense and pursuant to the Defense Base Closure and 

Realignment Act of 1990, as amended, this letter serves as recognition of the City of Seaside as 

the successor Local Redevelopment Authority with an effective date of July 1, 2020, for the 

purposes of implementing the Economic Development Conveyance Agreement with the U.S. 

Army at the former Fort Ord.  

 

 Questions pertaining to this recognition or requests for assistance to guide your 

implementation activity may be directed to Ms. Liz Chimienti, Office of Economic Adjustment 

Project Manager, at (703) 901-7644. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Patrick J. O’Brien 

Director 

Office of Economic Adjustment 

 

cc: 

DASA(IH&P) 

 

 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 51, Packet Page 79



City of Monterey – Former Fort Ord Property Not Yet Transferred

COE 
PARCEL

PARCEL NAME

E29.1 Finding of Suitability for Early Transfer 5
E29.2 Business Park / Light Industrial / Office Park

E29b.2 Right of Way (ROW) / Business Park / Light 
Industrial / Office Pa

E29b.3 Business Park / Light Industrial / Office Park / ROW
E29b.3.1 Yadon's Piperia parcel

E29e ROW / future Hwy 68 / Office Park / Research & 
Development

L20.13.5 ROW / South Boundary Road / York Road
L4.1 Park - Future
L4.2 Park - Future

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 4., Item Page 52, Packet Page 80



Council
Agenda Report

№07/19

FROM: Gaudenz Panholzer, Fire Chief 
Prepared By:  Gundy Rettke, Senior Administrative Analyst 

SUBJECT: Authorize the City Manager to Enter into a New Agreement Among Monterey 
County Public Agencies for the County of Monterey to Provide 9-1-1 Emergency 
Communications and Dispatch Services (Not a Project under CEQA Article 20, 
Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061)  

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a new agreement among  
Monterey County public agencies for the County of Monterey to provide 9-1-1 emergency 
communications and dispatch services.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
The recommended action is consistent with the City Council’s Value Drivers, as “the Council is 
committed to ensuring that Monterey remains a safe and welcoming place to live, work and 
visit.”

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
The cost allocation formula that determines the City’s annual cost for public safety dispatch 
services will not change.  It will be the same basis upon which the City’s General Fund has been 
billed since execution of the current 9-1-1 Dispatch Services Agreement in 2001 (01-224).

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:
The City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as defined by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)(CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (CEQA Guidelines), 
Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes the general 
rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a significant effect 
on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to 
CEQA.  Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on 
the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities excluded as projects pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project.  Because the matter does not 
cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, 
this matter is not a project.  Any subsequent discretionary projects resulting from this action will 
be assessed for CEQA applicability.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  5.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  5.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 5., Item Page 1, Packet Page 81



ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
City Council could choose not to authorize entering into a new agreement with the County of 
Monterey for emergency communications dispatch services.  This is not recommended, as the 
City would lose valuable interagency communications services that are crucial to providing and 
receiving expedient public safety services.

DISCUSSION:

The current 9-1-1 Dispatch Services Agreement was executed in 2001.  It is the contract 
between the County and the user agencies which provides the governance and financing terms 
of the dispatch and call taking services provided by the Monterey County Emergency 
Communications Department.  A new 9-1-1 Services Agreement has been created in 
collaboration with the Department’s Operations and Executive Boards to update and clarify the 
governance structures and to reflect necessary updates to the nearly 20-year old agreement.  

As in the prior agreement, the County will provide answering services for 9-1-1 emergency calls 
as well as for calls to the non-emergency lines.  The County will then be responsible for 
dispatching appropriate fire, police, and emergency medical personnel.  The cost allocation 
formula used to proportion costs among the participating agencies will remain the same and the 
City will not experience increased costs due to the proposed agreement.  The initial term of the 
agreement is three years plus the remainder of the fiscal year in which the agreement is 
executed.  The agreement will automatically renew for successive two year periods.  If a party 
wishes to withdraw from the agreement, it must provide all other parties with two years’ notice.

The new agreement was approved by the County Emergency Communications Department’s 
Executive Board, the Emergency Communications Policy Advisory Council and, on May 12, 
2020, it was approved by the County Board of Supervisors.  The County has requested that the 
proposed  agreement be fully executed prior to July 1, 2020, to coincide with the beginning of 
the new fiscal year.

Staff recommends that City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into the new agreement 
on behalf of the City of Monterey for continued County Emergency Communications Dispatch 
Services.

GP/gr

Attachments: Resolution

c: Finance Director

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 5., Item Page 2, Packet Page 82

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№07/19

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A NEW AGREEMENT AMONG 
MONTEREY COUNTY PUBLIC AGENCIES FOR THE COUNTY OF MONTEREY TO 

PROVIDE 9-1-1 EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AND DISPATCH SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City desires to continue participating in a county-wide public safety 
communications and emergency 9-1-1 dispatch system; and

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as 
defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)(CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (CEQA 
Guidelines), Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes 
the general rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
activity is not subject to CEQA.  Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential 
to cause any effect on the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities 
excluded as projects pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project.  
Because the matter does not cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change on or in the environment, this matter is not a project.  Any subsequent discretionary 
projects resulting from this action will be assessed for CEQA applicability; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with Monterey County for all necessary 
communications and dispatch services for police, fire, and other City emergency services; and

WHEREAS, Monterey County, through its Emergency Communications Department, is 
willing and able to furnish such services through a mutually agreeable cost sharing plan; and

WHEREAS, Monterey County has been providing such services under the existing 
agreement since 2001 and is now proposing a new agreement to clarify governance structures 
and reflect other necessary updates, which were approved by the Monterey County Board of 
Supervisors on May 12, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the current cost allocation formula  for emergency communications and 
dispatch services established in the 2001 Agreement will remain the same in the new 
agreement; and

WHEREAS, the initial term of the agreement is for three years plus the remainder of the 
fiscal year in which the agreement is executed.  The agreement will automatically renew for 
successive two year periods.  If a party wishes to withdraw from the agreement, it must provide 
all other parties with two years’ notice.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 5., Item Page 3, Packet Page 83



2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby authorizes the City Manager to enter into a new agreement with the 
County of Monterey to provide 9-1-1 emergency communications and dispatch services.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of _______, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 5., Item Page 4, Packet Page 84



Council
Agenda Report

FROM: Kimberly Cole, AICP, Community Development Director
Prepared by: Ande Flower, AICP, Principal Planner

SUBJECT: Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an Agreement with 
the Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce to Administer Grants for the 
Covid-19 Local Economic Stimulus Plan (LESP) Utilizing Appropriated Funds 
(Not a Project Under CEQA per Article 20, Section 15378 and Under General 
Rule Article 5, Section 15061)

 RECOMMENDATION:

The City Council approve a revised Local Economic Stimulus Plan (LESP) by authorizing the 
City Manager to enter into an agreement with the Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce 
(Chamber) to administer grants for the Covid-19 Local Economic Stimulus Plan.. 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 

Investment to support small local businesses with either loans or grants so that they may retain 
employees and together work towards economic vitality through this uncertain recovery period. 
The recommendation supports the City Council Value Driver: Ensuring a level of economic 
vitality sufficient to support our quality of life and infrastructure requirements (both physical and 
human).

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Previously approved by the City Council, the LESP is a $1 million investment of non-General 
Fund monies, utilizing $0.5 million of State Tidelands Funds and $0.5 million of Parking Funds. 
Tideland Funds will be disbursed consistent with uses and purposes of commerce, navigation, 
fisheries, and recreation and expended for those uses within the tidelands boundary. Available 
Parking and Tideland funds will be used as investments into City businesses to promote 
commerce, fisheries, recreation, commercial growth/economic vitality and prevent blight caused 
by closed storefronts, etc. The program will enable eligible businesses to recover from the 
economic devastation caused by Covid-19. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

The City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as defined by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)(CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA Protocol”), 
Article 20, Section 15378). In addition, CEQA Protocol Section 15061 includes the general rule 
that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a significant effect on 
the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity 
in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA. 
Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on the 

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  6.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  6.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 6., Item Page 1, Packet Page 85



environment, or because it falls within a category of activities excluded as projects pursuant to 
CEQA Protocol section 15378, this matter is not a project. Because the matter does not cause a 
direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, this 
matter is not a project. Any subsequent discretionary projects resulting from this action will be 
assessed for CEQA applicability. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:

Council may deny adoption of the revised plan, in which case, Resolution No. 20-052 C.S., 
adopted on April 21, 2020 will remain in effect and no grants may be offered as part of the 
LESP. 

BACKGROUND:

Council adopted Resolution No. 20-052 C.S., on April 21, 2020, to authorize the City Manager, 
Mayor and Vice Mayor to develop and implement the Monterey Local Economic Stimulus Plan 
(LESP) in response to COVID-19 and appropriated $500,000 of Tideland Fund and $500,000 of 
Parking Fund for LESP. Through development efforts with City partners, it became evident that 
granting rather than loaning these funds is preferred and recommended.

The objective of this plan is to augment Federal and State aid to support City businesses, 
reduce business closures, reduce workforce layoffs, provide employee rent payment assistance, 
sustain the local economic base and City character, and stimulate an early economic recovery 
for the City and region. Federal and state governments have offered COVID-19 economic 
stimulus programs; these are limited programs with eligibility requirements that may be difficult 
to achieve for many small businesses. The LESP is intended to either supplement other funding 
support, or provide access to funding that businesses may have difficulty receiving from Federal 
and State programs. The City has initiated a partnership with both the Community Foundation 
for Monterey County (Foundation) and the Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce 
(Chamber) in developing and implementing LESP. 

LESP Application Process and Criteria

An Administrative Oversight Committee has been formed by our partners to develop eligibility 
criteria, an application form, performance requirements, and to make recommendations to the 
City for disbursements from the Monterey Peninsula Small Business Relief Fund.  The 
Committee will provide a monthly report shared at least once a month during a regular City 
Council meeting.  As directed by Council, the Mayor, Vice Mayor, and City Manager continues 
to serve as the check-and-balance authorized to audit funds disbursed.

The application portal, hosted by the Chamber, was opened to prospective applicants on May 
22, 2020 (see montereychamber.com/apply). The Foundation has a portal that invites additional 
donations towards the Monterey Peninsula Small Business Relief Fund (“Relief Fund”).  As of 
May 27, 2020, 170 applications throughout the County have been submitted.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 6., Item Page 2, Packet Page 86



Staff developed a detail analysis of microloan and grant programs administered by agencies 
such as the cities of Sacramento, Alameda, and Berkeley. In addition, online surveys were sent 
out to businesses in Monterey to identify funding needs during the global pandemic.  

Draft eligibility criteria were developed for applicants that include geographical (employers must 
be based in the City of Monterey), caps on the number of employees, ownership, and 
declaration that the business will strive to open after relief funds are granted.  Membership in 
the Chamber does not play a factor in consideration of these grant funds.  Furthermore, 
disbursement of Tideland Funds would be limited to eligible businesses.  The maximum grant 
award amount per business would be set at $25,000. The City will ensure that the grant 
eligibility criteria and agreements with the recipients will contain the following controls: (1) 
transparency (i.e., the grant agreement and expenditure documentation are public records); (2) 
accountability (record keeping and reporting requirements); (3) fund restrictions (e.g., tidelands 
boundaries and public trust purposes); (4) adequate program design and eligibility 
requirements; and (5) grant recipient expenditure monitoring/auditing. 

Mechanically, the grant application, review, and disbursement process would involve the 
following steps:

(1) Chamber receives applications, screens, and recommends recipients based on criteria 
and City restrictions (e.g., Tidelands Funds limitations); 

(2) Grant is awarded and grant agreement is entered into between the City and the 
recipient; and

(3) The City would disburse funds to the recipient.

Recommendation

Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement for the 
Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce to administer grants for the Covid-19 Local 
Economic Stimulus Plan.  The agreement would enable the City to monitor, track, and disburse 
necessary grant funds for the Chamber to administer. 

e: Oversight Committee of the Monterey Peninsula Small Business Relief Fund
Reid Boggiano, Granted Lands Program Manager, State Lands Commission

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 6., Item Page 3, Packet Page 87

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.
Date:  <MEETING_DATE>

Item No:  <#>

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№12/12

AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 
MONTEREY PENINSULA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE TO ADMINISTER GRANTS FOR 
THE COVID-19 LOCAL ECONOMIC STIMULUS PLAN (LESP) USING APPROPRIATED 

FUNDS 

 WHEREAS, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a simultaneous health and economic 
crisis; 

WHEREAS, the global economy has been upended, and the shelter-in-place orders, 
although necessary, have had an adverse effect on consumer behavior and businesses; 

WHEREAS, the City Council previously approved a $1 million investment of non-General 
Fund monies, utilizing $0.5 million of State Tidelands Funds and $0.5 million of Parking Funds. 
Tideland Funds will be disbursed consistent with uses and purposes of commerce, navigation, 
fisheries, and recreation and expended for those uses within the tidelands boundary. Available 
Parking and Tideland funds will be used as investments into City businesses to promote 
commerce, fisheries, recreation, commercial growth/economic vitality and prevent blight caused 
by closed storefronts, etc. The program will enable eligible businesses to recover from the 
economic devastation caused by Covid-19;  

WHEREAS, the Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce is a trusted partner of the 
City of Monterey, represents a broad range of small businesses within the Monterey community, 
understands business needs, plays an active role in economic recovery and resiliency efforts 
during the Covid-19 pandemic;

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to allow the Chamber to administer the 
Local Economic Stimulus Plan based on an application and selection criteria established in 
collaboration with the Chamber, City, and other stakeholders, and with the approval of City staff;

WHEREAS, the City will ensure that grant eligibility criteria and agreements with the 
recipients will contain the following controls: (1) transparency (i.e., the grant agreement and 
expenditure documentation are public records); (2) accountability (record keeping and reporting 
requirements); (3) fund restrictions (e.g., tidelands boundaries and public trust purposes); (4) 
adequate program design and eligibility requirements; and (5) grant recipient expenditure 
monitoring/auditing; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as 
defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)(CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA 
Guidelines”), Article 20, Section 15378). In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes 
the general rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
activity is not subject to CEQA. Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 6., Item Page 4, Packet Page 88



2

to cause any effect on the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities 
excluded as projects pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project. 
Because the matter does not cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change on or in the environment, this matter is not a project. Any subsequent discretionary 
projects resulting from this action will be assessed for CEQA applicability. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby:  Authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement with the 
Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce to administer LESP grant funds

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this 2nd 
day of June 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 6., Item Page 5, Packet Page 89



Council
Agenda Report

№12/12

FROM: Kimberly Cole, AICP, Community Development Director

SUBJECT: Adopt the Annual Reports and Approve Resolutions to Set a Public Hearing Date 
to Levy the Annual Assessment for the Cannery Row Business Improvement 
District, the New Monterey Business Improvement District, and the North 
Fremont Business Improvement District (Not a project under CEQA Article 20, 
Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061)

RECOMMENDATION:

That the City Council:

1. Approve each District’s advisory board;
2. Adopt the Annual Reports; and,
3. Approve the attached Resolutions to set a public hearing date of Tuesday, June 16, 

2020, to levy the assessment for the 2020/2021 fiscal year.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

Business Improvement Districts (BID) provide a mechanism for a business district to collect 
money and create work programs targeted at their specific needs. These BIDs were formed 
under the Parking and Business Improvement Area Law of 1989, which authorizes assessments 
against businesses (collected with business license taxes) to finance improvements and 
activities to improve specific business areas.  Because 1989 Law assessments are not on real 
property, they are not subject to Proposition 218.  BIDs are regulated by the California Streets & 
Highways Code sections 36500 et seq.  There is no intention to make a change to any of the 
BIDs that would trigger the application of Proposition 26, which places limitations on local 
government fees.  There are no changes proposed to boundaries, work programs, or annual 
assessments for any of the BIDs.  

This action confirms the City’s commitment to its partnership with these business associations. 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

The City of Monterey collects the BID assessment as part of the business license collection.  
This money is passed directly to the Business District. Each business district has adopted a 
different assessment rate.  

Cannery Row BID was established in 2004 and it collects a 100% surcharge to the business 
license fee of each business up to a maximum assessment of $5,000 per business.  For 
businesses classified as professional services, the assessment is a 25% surcharge to the 
business license fee with a cap of $500. The amount of revenue collected annually is 
approximately $130,000 - $140,000.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  7.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 1, Packet Page 90



New Monterey BID was established in 1995 and it collects an annual assessment of 25% of the 
business license fee with a cap of $250.  The amount of revenue collected annually is 
approximately $14,000.  

North Fremont BID was established in 2003 and it collects an annual assessment of 25% of the 
business license fee with a cap of $500.  The amount of revenue collected annually is 
approximately $18,000.

The City has historically allocated $10,500 to these BIDs as part of its annual budget.  This 
year, these funds may not be budgeted due to the City’s fiscal crisis. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

The City of Monterey Planning Office determined that the proposed action is not a project as 
defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Article 20, Section 15378).  In 
addition, CEQA Article 5, Section 15061 includes the general rule that CEQA applies only to 
projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  Where it 
can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  Because the proposed 
action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on the environment, this is not a 
project because it does not cause a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change 
on or in the environment, this matter is not subject to CEQA.  Subsequent projects resulting 
from this funding will be reviewed for their CEQA status. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:

Pursuant to Streets & Highways Code section 36533, the City Council could “modify any 
particular contained in the report and approve it as modified. The city council shall not approve a 
change in the basis and method of levying assessment that would impair an authorized or 
executed contract to be paid from the revenues derived from the levy of assessments.”  
Increasing business-based assessments is not recommended without further study and 
determination that the increased assessment is limited to benefits or services provided directly 
to the charged businesses and not to others who are not charged. 

DISCUSSION

BID’s are required to annually prepare a report.  This report must include:

 Any changes to the boundaries of the district.
 A list of the improvements and activities to be provided for that fiscal year.
 An estimate of the cost of providing the improvements and the activities for that fiscal 

year.
 The method and basis of levying the assessment in sufficient detail to allow each 

business owner to estimate the amount of the assessment to be levied against his or 
her business for that fiscal year.

 The amount of any surplus or deficit revenues to be carried over from a previous year.
 The amount of any contributions to be made from sources other than assessments 

levied.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 2, Packet Page 91



After acceptance of the reports, the City Council shall adopt Resolutions of Intention to set a 
public hearing date to levy annual assessments for the 2020/2021 fiscal year.  The public 
hearing is set for Tuesday, June 16, 2020.  At the public hearing, oral and written protests will 
be accepted.  California Streets & Highways Code sections 36524-36525 establish the process 
for protests to be considered.  If written protests are received from the owners of businesses in 
the proposed area which pay 50 percent or more of the assessments proposed to be levied and 
protests are not withdrawn so as to reduce the protests to less than 50 percent, no further 
proceedings to levy the proposed assessment shall be taken for one year from the date of the 
finding of a majority protest by the City Council.  If the majority protest is only against the 
furnishing of a specified type or types of improvement or activity within the area, those types of 
improvements or activities shall be eliminated. 

The City of Monterey will hold the public hearing on Tuesday, June 16, 2020. 

TB/ms

Attachments: 1.  (a) and (b) Cannery Row BID Annual Report and District Boundary Map
2.  Cannery Row Resolution 
3.  (a) and (b) New Monterey BID Annual Report and District Boundary Map
4.  New Monterey BID Resolution 
5.  (a) and (b) North Fremont BID Annual Report and District Boundary Map
6.  North Fremont BID Resolution

e: Bonnie Adams, Cannery Row Business Association
Rick Johnson, New Monterey Business Association
Leslie Svetich, North Fremont Business Association

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 3, Packet Page 92

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№12/12

CONFIRM THE REPORT OF THE CANNERY ROW BUSINESS ASSOCIATION,
ADOPT THE LEVY OF ASSESSMENT FOR THE 2020/2021 FISCAL YEAR AND SET A 

PUBLIC HEARING DATE

WHEREAS, the Cannery Row Business Association Improvement District was 
established in 2004;

WHEREAS, a report outlining the proposed budget and work plan of the Business 
Improvement District has been prepared;

WHEREAS, the report is on file with the City Clerk; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey Planning Office determined that the proposed action is 
not a project as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Article 20, Section 
15378).  In addition, CEQA Article 5, Section 15061 includes the general rule that CEQA applies 
only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  
Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may 
have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  Because the 
proposed action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on the environment, this is 
not a project because it does not cause a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change on or in the environment, this matter is not subject to CEQA.  Subsequent projects 
resulting from this funding will be reviewed for their CEQA status.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that:

1. It is the intent of the City Council to levy and collect assessments for the Cannery 
Row Business Association Improvement District for fiscal year 2020/21.  District 
boundaries are not changing and are as shown in the attachment to the agenda 
report and the map is on file in the City Clerk’s Office.

2. Improvements and activities approved in the Resolution creating the District are to 
advocate and construct traffic and parking improvements; establish and meet 
cleanliness standards (trash pickup, etc.); improve the area’s streetscape; coordinate 
with existing businesses and the Cannery Row Marketing Council to stimulate 
business through collaboration; advocate Cannery Row business needs to 
government agencies for infrastructure and service enhancements; improve public 
safety; and hire a management staff to represent Cannery Row business interests in 
compliance with requirements as set forth in Parking and Business Improvement 
Area law of 1989.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 4, Packet Page 93



2

3. The program of improvements and activities are carried out by the Cannery Row 
Business Association.  Improvements and activities proposed for 2020/21 are 
consistent with those approved in the resolution adopting the district, with no 
substantial changes from the original resolution.

4. A report on the proposed program for fiscal year 2020/21 is on file in the City Clerk’s 
Office.  The report recommends no change to boundaries or work program, and 
continuance of the annual assessment of 100% surcharge to the business license 
fee of each business, up to a maximum assessment of $5,000 per business per 
fiscal year.  For businesses classified as professional services, the assessment shall 
be 25% surcharge to the business license fee, up to a maximum of $500.

5. Adoption of this resolution constitutes the levy of assessments for the Business 
Improvement District for fiscal year 2020/21. 

6. A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, June 16, 2020, at or after 4:00 p.m. on the 
levy of the proposed assessment for the 2020/21 fiscal year.  At the public hearing, 
written and oral protests may be made in accord with law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this 2nd 
day of June, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 5, Packet Page 94



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 6, Packet Page 95



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 7, Packet Page 96



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 8, Packet Page 97



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 9, Packet Page 98



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 10, Packet Page 99



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 11, Packet Page 100



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 12, Packet Page 101



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 13, Packet Page 102



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 14, Packet Page 103



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 15, Packet Page 104



 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№12/12

CONFIRM THE REPORT OF THE NORTH FREMONT BUSINESS DISTRICT 
OF MONTEREY AND SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE TO ADOPT THE LEVY OF 

ASSESSMENT FOR THE 2020/2021 FISCAL YEAR

WHEREAS, the North Fremont Business District of Monterey was established in 2003;

WHEREAS, a report outlining the proposed budget and workplan of the Business 
Improvement District has been prepared;

WHEREAS, the report is on file with the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey Planning Office determined that the proposed action is 
not a project as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Article 20, Section 
15378).  In addition, CEQA Article 5, Section 15061 includes the general rule that CEQA applies 
only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.   
Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may 
have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  Because the 
proposed action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on the environment, this 
matter is not a project.  Because this matter does not cause a direct or any reasonably 
foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, this matter is not a project.  
Subsequent projects resulting from this funding will be reviewed for their CEQA status.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that:

1. It is the intent of the City Council to levy and collect assessments for the North 
Fremont Business District of Monterey for fiscal year 2020/2021.  District boundaries 
have not changed and are shown in Attachment 3 to the agenda report and is on file 
in the City Clerk’s Office.

2. Improvements and activities approved in the resolution creating the District are to 
promote the Business Improvement District, advocate for an increase of public 
transportation opportunities to North Monterey, improve streetscape appearance, 
and increase the overall safety of the area as set forth in Parking and Business 
Improvement Area law of 1989.

3. The program of improvements and activities are carried out by the North Fremont 
Business District of Monterey.  Improvements and activities proposed for 2020/2021 
are consistent with those approved in the resolution adopting the district, with no 
substantial changes from the original resolution.

4. A report on the proposed program for fiscal year 2020/2021 is on file in the City 
Clerk’s Office and is attached to the agenda report.  The report recommends no 
change to boundaries or work program, and continuance of the annual assessment 
of 25% of the business license fee for the City, but not to exceed $500.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 16, Packet Page 105



2

5. The District’s Advisory Board is approved. 

6. A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, June 16, 2020, at or after 4:00 p.m. on the 
levy of the proposed assessment for the 2020/21 fiscal year.  At the public hearing, 
written and oral protests may be made in accord with law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this 2nd 
day of June, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 17, Packet Page 106



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 18, Packet Page 107



Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 19, Packet Page 108



 

 
 

 
 

2020 WORK PLAN & BUDGET 
January -- December 

 
 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 
 
 

The North Fremont Business District of Monterey is a volunteer driven organization, with the mission of 
preserving, revitalizing, and promoting the  

North Fremont Business District, through broad based community support and serving the needs of the 
local neighborhoods. 

 
 
 

COMMITTEES 
 
 

Streetscape 
Infrastructure & Advocacy 

Banner Program 
Marketing 

Special Events 
Education 
Holidays 

 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 20, Packet Page 109



 
Achievements 
2004   District Formed 
 
2005  Developed Monterey on Ice – at the fairgrounds, the first ice rink for the City of Monterey 
 
2006   Second Annual Monterey on Ice – Largest ice rink for the City of Monterey 
 
2006  Moved NFS undergrounding of utilities to 2nd position - in priority for the City behind Del 

Monte and in front of Foam Street 
 
2009/2010  Traffic Study – Completed Traffic Study for NFS corridor 
 
2010   NFS Streetscape Plan – Developed a comprehensive streetscape plan. 
 
2013   Back Stage Pass – Online marketing program with 25+ coupons from NFS merchants for       
                         residents and visitors. 
 
2014                Incorporation of Streetscape Plan into the City’s Specific Plan - Continued to advocate for  

the inclusion of the NFS Streetscape Plan without modifications into the City’s Specific Plan.  
Advocated for all businesses, property owners, and neighborhoods along NFS to become 
involved in and informed about the development of the City’s Specific Plan for NFS and the 
implications and/or changes the Specific Plan will have on zoning of those parcels 

 
2015                Developed the Mixed-Use Design Guidelines for NFS with the City for building design,  
  building setbacks, and landscaping on individual properties along North Fremont Street-  
  currently called the North Fremont Specific Plan. 
 
2016 Inaugural Earth Day Clean-Up on North Fremont Street.  Organized over 2 dozen volunteers 

and cleaned up sidewalks and parking areas along the entire District street frontage.   
 
 Inaugural “Festival of Trees” Holiday Event at Monterey Event Center, with over a dozen 

participating Charities. 
 
 2018               North Fremont Bike & Pedestrian Access & Safety Improvements.  6.8 Million Grant for  

North Fremont Street started construction.  Supported and helped advocate for the grant for new  
ADA crosswalks at intersections and a Class IV median bike path in the median. 

 
 
2019 North Fremont Bike & Pedestrian Access & Safety Improvements Completed.  First Median 

Class IV bike lane installed on North Fremont Street, ADA crosswalks on 4 intersections, 
adaptive light signals along NFS installed, and storm drains fixed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 21, Packet Page 110



STREETSCAPE COMMITTEE      BUDGET   $1,500.00 + TBD 
Goal: to improve the visual appearance and ambience of the area through the use of streetscape improvements, 
curb appeal upgrades and other related projects and activities 
 
1.  Objective: Advocate for the reinstatement of the Façade Improvement Grant Program by the City to 

upgrade drive-by appearances. 
 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Mary Alice Fettis 
      Due Date:  On-going 
      Funds Needed:   
 
2.  Objective: Develop a Litter / Graffiti Removal Program – organize Earth Day for businesses to clean 

up property – provide drop box/recycling and help with graffiti removal on NFS   
 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Kelly Violini  
      Due Date: April 2020 
     Funds Needed: To be determined 
 
3.  Objective: North Fremont Street Streetscape Plan implementation – to incorporate drainage and 

undergrounding of utilities at same time. Advocate for the development of the 
Streetscape Plan by incorporating the undergrounding of utilities, adding street signage, 
development of sidewalks, providing adequate drainage, etc at the same time of 
development of that Plan.  Development should be done in stages along NFS.  

 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Leslie Svetich 
      Due Date: On-going – future – (storm drain repaired 2019) 
     Funds Needed:   
      
4.  Objective: North Fremont Street Streetscape Plan implementation – work with City to add 

landscaping to the median to enhance new bike path and bike racks with logos along 
NFS.  

 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Leslie Svetich 
      Due Date: 2020 
     Funds Needed: $1,500.00 + TBD (Streetscape Reserve Account)  
 
5.  Objective:  Add electricity to each pole along NFS.  Work with City to add electricity to the poles in  

construction areas of bike path during 2019.  
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Leslie Svetich 
     Funds Needed: TBD – Ask City for Funding  
 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND ADVOCACY COMMITTEE  BUDGET $500.00 
Goal: to improve the safety and accessibility of the North Fremont Street business corridor  
 
1.  Objective: Investigate speed reduction, and crosswalk improvements 
 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair:  Board 
     Due Date: On-going 
     Funds Needed:  
 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 22, Packet Page 111



2.  Objective: Advocate for extending the TROLLEY to NFS 
 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Samir Patel 
     Due Date: On-going – foreseeable future 
     Funds Needed: Actual amount to be determined 
 
3.  Objective: Advocate for a comprehensive underground utilities plan to coincide with CTC award to 

include widening sidewalks and for City completion of drainage project (see streetscape 
plan) 

 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Mike Marotta/Leslie Svetich 
     Due Date: On-going 
     Funds Needed:  
 
4.  Objective: Advocate for the individual property owners along North Fremont Street to fill their 

vacant properties and keep vacant properties in marketable order. 
 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Board 
     Due Date: On-going 
     Funds Needed: Actual amount to be determined 
 
5.  Objective: Advocate for the City to improve the park at the corner of Canyon Del Rey and North 

Fremont Street as an entrance way into the City of Monterey and Laguna Grande 
corridor.  

 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Board with CONA 
     Due Date: On-going 
     Funds Needed: Actual amount to be determined 
 
6.  Objective: Brand North Fremont Street’s new logo to identify our corridor as part of Monterey and 

work on a street name change to coincide with the name changes of Fremont, Del Monte, 
and Lighthouse.   

     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Leslie Svetich/Mike Marotta 
     Due Date: Logo finished 2016 - Ongoing 
     Funds Needed: $500.00 
 
7.  Objective: Advocate for the City to improve and define the Specific Plan more thoroughly with clear 

defined objectives for all new construction on NFS. 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Board 
     Due Date: Ongoing 
     Funds Needed: To be determined 
 
8.  Objective: Advocate for the City to extend the bike path to Canyon Del Rey, through Seaside on 

Fremont Blvd, in addition to extending it to FORTAG.    
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Board/Leslie Svetich 
     Due Date: Ongoing 
     Funds Needed: To be determined 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 23, Packet Page 112



 
BANNER COMMITTEE       BUDGET $9,000.00 
Goal:  to maintain our street banner program on North Fremont Street 
 
1.  Objective: Continued coordination of the established NFBDM banner program 
 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Kelly Violini 
      Due Date:  On-going calendar schedule 

Funds Needed: Actual amount to be determined (Volunteer Board Member) 
 

2.  Objective: Design and develop a NFBDM banner, after new logo developed, to be displayed 
throughout the year.  The banner should create a visual impact that helps residents and 
tourists of Monterey recognize NFS as part of Monterey.  Plus continued Coordination of 
Holiday Banners (under Holiday Committee). 

 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Leslie Svetich/Kelly Violini 
      Due Date:  March 2020 

Funds Needed: $9,000.00 
 

 
MARKETING COMMITTEE      BUDGET $21,600.00 
Goal: to develop a unified marketing and networking program to establish North Fremont Street as a distinct 
shopping, dining and lodging area for local residents and visitors 
 
1.  Objective: Develop district promotional materials  
 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Wendy Brickman 
     Due Date: On-going in foreseeable future 
     Funds Needed: $500.00 + Revenue generating fundraiser 
 
2.  Objective: Continue to maintain a working relationship with Neighborhood Improvement Districts 
 
     Task Leader: Board/Staff 
     Due Date: On-going 
     Funds Needed: To be determined 
 
3.  Objective: Create and develop a co-op advertising opportunity for NFBDM members, and use funds 

to develop an advertising campaign through co-op advertising and the use of marketing 
specialists to establish NFS business as part of Monterey.  Distribute Back Stage Pass 
through out Monterey. 

 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair/Specialist: Mary Alice Cerrito Fettis/Wendy Brickman 
     Due Date: On-going 
     Funds Needed: $20,100.00 
 
4.  Objective: Continue to develop, upgrade and maintain NFBDM website  
      Task Leader: Committee Chair: Wendy Brickman 
      Due Date: On-going maintenance for current mobile website. 
      Funds Needed: $1,000.00 
 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 24, Packet Page 113



5.  Objective: Encourage the Convention and Visitors Bureau to market NFS businesses, hotels/motels 
and vacant properties.  

      Task Leader: Committee Chair: Wendy Brickman 
      Due Date: On-going maintenance for current mobile website. 
      Funds Needed: To be determined 
 
 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS COMMITTEE     BUDGET $500.00 
Goal:  to create opportunities for interaction between district business owners, managers, staff and the residents 
among the three neighborhood associations 
 
1.  Objective: Sponsor a fund-raising event 
 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Kelly Violini 
     Due Date: February 2020 
     Funds Needed: $500.00 
 
 
EDUCATION COMMITTEE      BUDGET $300.00 
Goal:  to develop economic vitality within the North Fremont business community by providing educational 
opportunities to improve the business climate and practices 
 
1.  Objective: Coordinate and create an opportunity (annual) for interaction between district business 

owners, managers, staff, property owners, and to the residents among the three 
neighborhood associations  

 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Wendy Brickman 
     Due Date: May 2020 
     Funds Needed: $300.00 
 
 
HOLIDAY COMMITTEE       BUDGET $6,500.00 
Goal:  to encourage more business participation in decorating for major holidays to enliven the environment to 
draw residents and visitors to the area 
 
1.  Objective: Board member businesses to set an example for others on the street 
 
     Task Leader: Individual businesses 
     Due Date: On appropriate holidays beyond Christmas/New Years such as the 4th of July 
     Funds Needed: To be determined 
 
2.  Objective: Continued coordination of the Christmas holiday decorating contest with prizes for area 

businesses.   
 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Kelly Violini/Wendy Brickman 
     Due Date: December 2020 
     Funds Needed: $500.00  
 
3. Objective:  Holiday Banners - Installation/Removal/Storage costs/Replace Banners 
     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Kelly Violini/Leslie Svetich 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 25, Packet Page 114



      Funds Needed: $6,000.00 
 
4. Objective: Lighted Wreaths along District – Request the City  puts the 22 lighted wreaths we  

purchased, plus the 16 wreaths they used to put on our poles, up on all 19 poles along 
North Fremont Street 

     Task Leader: Committee Chair: Leslie Svetich 
      Funds Needed: NFBDM purchased 22 wreaths Oct 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 26, Packet Page 115



 
2020 NFBDM BUDGET 

BALANCE FORWARD (11/08/20)  $15,574.27  
INCOME     
 City of Monterey Contribution $10,500.00    
 BID Assessment  $18,000.00    
 Banner Administration Fee    
 Fund Raiser(s) $1,000.00    
 TOTAL INCOME  $45,074.27  
RESERVES     

 Savings/Reserves Streetscape Plan Implementation $88,261.61  
 TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS   $133,335.88  

EXPENSES     
 Category: Appearance, Accessibility & Safety   
   Streetscape $1,500.00   
   Infrastructure & Advocacy  $500.00    
 Category: Promotion    
   Banner Program $9,000.00    

   Marketing Committee 
            
21,600.00   

   Special Events Committee $500.00   
 Category: Economic Vitality     
   Education Committee $300.00   
   Holiday Committee $6,500.00    
 Category: General Administration    
   Administration     $800.00   
           Supplies    $300.00    
           Postage     $100.00    
           Copying      $50.00    
           Telephone/Fax        $0.00    

 
          
Licenses/Permits/Dues/Subscriptions    

           Insurance $1,200.00    
           Accounting/Professional Fees   $1,200.00    
 TOTAL EXPENSES $43,550.00    
  2017 Streetscape Savings/Reserves  $88,261.61   
 Unallocated Reserves $1,524.27   
 TOTAL EXPENSES & RESERVES   $133,335.88 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 27, Packet Page 116



 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№12/12

CONFIRM THE REPORT OF THE NEW MONTEREY BUSINESS ASSOCIATION 
AND SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE TO ADOPT THE LEVY OF ASSESSMENT 

FOR THE 2020/2021 FISCAL YEAR

WHEREAS, the New Monterey Business Association Improvement District was 
established in 1995;

WHEREAS, a report outlining the proposed budget and workplan of the Business 
Improvement District has been prepared;

WHEREAS, the report is on file with the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey Planning Office determined that the proposed action is 
not a project as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Article 20, Section 
15378).  In addition, CEQA Article 5, Section 15061 includes the general rule that CEQA applies 
only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  
Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may 
have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  Because the 
proposed action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on the environment, this 
matter is not a project.  Because this matter does not cause a direct or any reasonably 
foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, this matter is not a project.  
Subsequent projects resulting from this funding will be reviewed for their CEQA status.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that:

1. It is the intent of the City Council to levy and collect assessments for the New 
Monterey Business Association Improvement District for fiscal year 2020/2021.  
District boundaries have not changed and the map is attached to the agenda report 
and is on file in the City Clerk’s Office.

2. Improvements and activities approved in the resolution creating the District are to 
fund various public improvements, administer the business improvement district, and 
undertake various promotional activities as set forth in Parking and Business 
Improvement Area law of 1989.

3. The program of improvements and activities are carried out by the New Monterey 
Business Association.  Improvements and activities proposed for 2020/21 are 
consistent with those approved in the resolution adopting the district, with no 
substantial changes from the original resolution.

4. A report proposing the work program for fiscal year 2020/21 is on file in the City 
Clerk’s Office  and is attached to the agenda report.  The report recommends no 
change to boundaries or work program, and continuance of the annual assessment 
of 25% of the business license fee for the City, but not to exceed $250.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 28, Packet Page 117



2

5. The District’s Advisory Board is approved. 

6. A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, June 16, 2020, at or after 4:00 p.m. on the 
levy of the proposed assessment for the 2020/2021 fiscal year.  At the public 
hearing, written and oral protests may be made in accord with law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this 2nd 
day of June, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 29, Packet Page 118



Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 30, Packet Page 119



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Please Note: Although the NMBA Work Plan and 2020 Budget were approved by the NMBA 
Board before the Covid-19 Pandemic and the resultant Shelter in Place Order, we believe the 
Work Plan, as written allows for proactive and creative measures to address the economic 
recovery within its current structure. The Association has been, and continues to be, in close 
contact with our businesses within the District through our website (Lighthousedistrict.net), 
email connections and telephone conversations.  
We are ready and eager to work with and support the City, as all of us  begin the monumental 
task of economic recovery within our district and the entire city. 
 
Kim Cole 
Planning Department 
Monterey, CA 93940 
April 9, 2020 
 
Dear Kim: 
The New Monterey Business Association requests that the City Council schedule a public hearing to 
authorize the continuance of our program for the next fiscal year and collect the business license 
assessment on our behalf, in accord with the requirements of Senate Bill 1424. Please note: 
 

• The Oversight Committee made up of Aaron Waters, Melinda Collis and Heather Jorgensen, met 
and approved the 2020 Work Plan, district boundaries and budget. 

• The New Monterey Business Association boundaries remain unchanged. 
• Improvements and activities for fiscal year 2019/2020 are included in the attached comprehensive 

Work Plan 
• The approved 2020 budget (attached) outlines revenue and expenses as balanced 
• The method of assessment remains 25% of the business license fee, with a $250 cap per 

individual business 
• Yearly expenditures and revenue are projected to balance 

  
As you can see from the attached material, we believe we have a well-balanced work plan that addresses 
district promotion.  
 
Thank you for your continued leadership and support of the merchants and businesses in New Monterey 
during these very difficult times. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Rick Johnson, Administrator 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 31, Packet Page 120



  NEW MONTEREY BUSINESS ASSOCIATION 
2020 Budget 

   
 

 
INCOME 

2020 Budget 

B.I.D. Assessment              13,000.00 
Associate Memberships 0.00 
 City Support              10,500.00 
Grants 350.00  
Reserve Funds   
TOTAL INCOME 23,350.00 

  

 
 

EXPENSES 

2020 Budget 

Administrative Services            
12,000.00 
  

Retreat                       0.00 
Postage/Office Expense                   100.00 
Printing                    950.00 
Insurance                  500.00 
Banners 1,000.00 
Promotion/Advertising Committee 3,000.00 
Movies in the Park 400.00 
Outside Contractor 200.00 
Web Design/Maintenance 5,200.00 
TOTAL EXPENSES 23,350.00 

 
 

PROFIT (LOSS) 0 
 

Exhibit B

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 7., Item Page 32, Packet Page 121



Council
Agenda Report

№07/19

FROM: Steve Wittry, Public Works Director 
Prepared By: Cristie Steffy, Parking Superintendent

SUBJECT: Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract with POM Incorporated for the 
Purchase of Single Space Solar Smart Meters for On-Street Parking in the 
Amount of $339,692 (Exempt per CEQA Guidelines Article 19, Section 15301, 
Class 1)

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council adopt a resolution awarding a contract to POM Incorporated in the amount 
of $339,692 and authorizing the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contract for the 
purchase of 334 Single Space Solar Smart Meters.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
This action is consistent with the City Policy to replace equipment when it has fulfilled its useful 
life cycle and are no longer economical to operate or maintain, as well as the City Council value 
driver of “working to improve the quality of life for our residents…ensuring that Monterey 
remains a safe and welcoming place to live, work and visit.”

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
The new single space solar smart meters will be purchased from POM Incorporated utilizing a 
cooperative purchase through National Cooperative Purchasing Alliance (NCPA) pursuant to 
the purchasing policy and procedures as authorized Monterey City Code Section 28-25(d). 
Finance approved the cooperative purchase contract on May 26, 2020. 

Funds for replacement and purchase of new on-street parking meters was allocated and 
approved in the FY 2019/20 Capital Improvement Project budget.  Funding the purchase will 
come from CIP project #CIP2002.  The contract consists of the purchase of 334 Parktel 2.5 
Solar Smart Meters (including 30 spare units, training and one additional year of extended 
warranty) in the amount of $339,692.

All staff time associated with the installation of the new on-street parking meters will be 
absorbed within the Parking Division operating budget. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:
The City of Monterey Planning Office determined the project is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) because the 
project proposes repair, maintenance, or minor alteration of existing facilities involving negligible 
or no expansion of use.  Furthermore, the project does not qualify for any of the exceptions to 
the categorical exemptions found at CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2. 
 

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  8.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  8.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 8., Item Page 1, Packet Page 122



Exception a - Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the 
project is to be located - a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant.  Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental 
resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially 
adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies.   Exception a – Location – does not 
apply to projects which are exempt under Class 1.
 
Exception b - Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is 
significant.  There would be no cumulative impact because the project proposes replacement of 
existing on-street parking meters with no expansion.
 
Exception c - Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment 
due to unusual circumstances.   No unusual circumstances are anticipated due to 
improvements’ limited scope and distinct locations.
 
Exception d - Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 
highway.  This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 
negative declaration or certified Environmental Impact Report (EIR).  The proposed 
improvements are at grade and would replace existing on-street parking meters in-kind; 
therefore, no impacts to scenic highways would occur.
 
Exception e - Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project 
located on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code.  The proposed improvements would remove and replace existing on-street 
parking meter heads only.  Parking meter poles would remain in place.  No impact to sites 
included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government code would occur.
 
Exception f - Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource.  The 
proposed project would not require digging.  The work would be confined to the public right-of-
way; there would be no impacts to any historic structure.  The proposed improvements would 
remove and replace existing on-street parking meter heads only.  Parking meter poles would 
remain in place.  Therefore, impacts to archeological resources would not occur.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
Council could reject the cooperative purchase contract and decide not to proceed with POM Inc. 
as a vendor for the single space solar smart meters.  This is not recommended due to the age 
of the existing on-street single space parking meters. 

In addition, maintaining the current equipment and delaying the procurement of new equipment 
is not recommended since the current equipment is past its useful life, which results in 
significant loss of revenue and increased repair costs and staff time to maintain. 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 8., Item Page 2, Packet Page 123



Furthermore, utilizing the cooperative purchases procurement process allows the City to 
expedite the purchase by reducing the time associated with the formal solicitation process of 
equipment acquisition. 

DISCUSSION:

Overview: 

The City of Monterey Parking Division currently maintains 533 metered parking spaces, with the 
majority of on-street meters in the Cannery Row District.  The current single space meters 
include a combination of 109 coin only mechanical meters and 424 credit card-enabled smart 
meters.  The combination of meter equipment has been in place since 2008.  The existing 
combination of single space mechanical meters and credit card-enabled smart meters have 
both outlived their useful life and it is no longer practical or feasible to maintain.  The 
maintenance and repair issues are a combination of ongoing battery related issues, inability to 
effectively diagnose equipment errors, communications issues with the network and delay in 
turnaround time for repairs that are sent out to the vendor.

Procurement of new single space meters

Staff researched various parking meter technologies and options available for on-street paid 
parking and determined the Parktel 2.5 Solar Smart Meter provided by POM Inc. is the best 
choice for meeting the needs of the City.  The Parktel 2.5 Solar Smart Meter will offer the 
following benefits: 

 The 2-space Parktel meter - POM specializes in the single space meter head that can 
be utilized to serve a single space or serve two parking spaces with a single meter head. 
The advantage of the single meter head serving a dual space option (left – right) allows 
the City to reduce the number of meters required for replacement from 533 to 304.  The 
dual space Parktel Meter for left - right spaces will cut the cost of replacing individual 
meter heads and their monthly connectively fees.  In addition, the meters are easily 
interchangeable as single space or dual space with simple backend programming so 
equipment can easily be swapped. 

 Payment Options - The Parktel 2.5 meter accepts coins, credit/debit cards, and 
integrates with mobile payment solutions.  These meters are fully compatible with the 
recently launched ParkMobile, pay by phone system to allow customers maximum 
flexibility.

 Hardware - The Parktel 2.5 display is low-power yet provides high visibility even in 
bright sunlight and backlit making it easier to read.  In addition, the coin chute has no 
moving parts (which can contribute to coin jamming).

 Performance - The Parktel solar panels, rechargeable battery, lower-power display, 
lower-power modem and power management chip provide for long back up battery life. 
Having the modems always on standby allows all transactions to be cleared quickly, 
securely and in real time.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 8., Item Page 3, Packet Page 124



Based on the operational needs of the City of Monterey and POM’s innovative Parktel 2.5 Solar 
Smart Meter, it is staff’s recommendation to utilize the cooperative purchases contract through 
NCPA to expedite the procurement and replacement of the outdated existing on-street single 
space parking meters. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Parktel 2.5 Solar Smart Meter for the operational benefits and customer 
convenience.  From a customer’s perspective the Parktel 2.5 meter meets the customer desires 
for reliable and easy to use meter that accepts coins, credit/debit cards and mobile payment. 
From an operational perspective the Parktel 2.5 meter will require less equipment to maintain 
and staff will have access to a highly reliable parking meter system that provides detailed 
revenue, occupancy, maintenance collections and auditing reports at a level that is currently 
unavailable with the City’s current meter technology. 
Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution awarding a contract to 
POM Incorporated in the amount of $339,692 and authorizing the City Manager, or his 
designee, to execute the contract for the purchase of 334 Single Space Solar Smart Meters.

SW/cs

Attachments: 1. Resolution

e: Lauren Lai, Finance Director
Seth Ward III, POM Incorporated

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 8., Item Page 4, Packet Page 125

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№07/19

AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE CONTRACT WITH POM 
INCORPORATED FOR THE PURCHASE OF SINGLE SPACE SOLAR SMART 

METERS FOR ON-STREET PARKING IN THE AMOUNT OF $339,692

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey Parking Division, through the Public Works 
Department, maintains 533 metered parking spaces, with the majority of on-street meters in the 
Cannery Row District;

WHEREAS, the current single space meters include a combination of 109 coin only 
mechanical meters and 424 credit card-enabled smart meters.; 

WHEREAS, the existing combination of meter equipment has been in place since 2008 
and has outlived its useful life and requires replacement; 

WHEREAS, the funding for replacing on-street meters was approved in the FY2019/20 
Capital Improvement Project budget; 

WHEREAS, the single space solar smart meters will be purchased from POM 
Incorporated utilizing a cooperative purchase through National Cooperative Purchasing Alliance 
(NCPA) pursuant to the purchasing policy and procedures as authorized Monterey City Code 
Section 28-25(d);

WHEREAS, the Finance Department approved the cooperative purchase contract on 
May 26, 2020; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey Planning Office determined the project is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) 
because the project proposes repair, maintenance, or minor alteration of existing facilities 
involving negligible or no expansion of use.  Furthermore, the project does not qualify for any of 
the exceptions to the categorical exemptions found at CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2. 
 
Exception a - Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the 
project is to be located - a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant.  Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental 
resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially 
adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies.   Exception a – Location – does not 
apply to projects which are exempt under Class 1.
 
Exception b - Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is 
significant.  There would be no cumulative impact because the project proposes replacement of 
existing on-street parking meters with no expansion.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 8., Item Page 5, Packet Page 126



2

Exception c - Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment 
due to unusual circumstances.  No unusual circumstances are anticipated due to improvements’ 
limited scope and distinct locations.
 
Exception d - Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 
highway.  This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 
negative declaration or certified Environmental Impact Report (EIR).  The proposed 
improvements are at grade and would replace existing on-street parking meters in-kind; 
therefore, no impacts to scenic highways would occur.
 
Exception e - Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project 
located on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code.  The proposed improvements would remove and replace existing on-street 
parking meter heads only.  Parking meter poles would remain in place.  No impact to sites 
included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government code would occur.
 
Exception f - Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource.  The 
proposed project would not require digging.  The work would be confined to the public right-of-
way; there would be no impacts to any historic structure.  The proposed improvements would 
remove and replace existing on-street parking meter heads only.  Parking meter poles would 
remain in place.  Therefore, impacts to archeological resources would not occur.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby adopts a resolution awarding a contract to POM Incorporated in the 
amount of $339,692 and authorizing the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the contract 
for the purchase of 334 Single Space Solar Smart Meters.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of _______, 202_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 8., Item Page 6, Packet Page 127



3

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 8., Item Page 7, Packet Page 128



Council
Agenda Report

№07/19

FROM: Steve Wittry, Public Works Director
Prepared By: Karin Salameh, Assistant City Attorney

SUBJECT: Authorize an Escrow Agreement with the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) and 
City of Del Rey Oaks in order for FORA to Transfer $7,269,813 for the South 
Boundary Road Project into an Escrow Account (Not a Project under CEQA per 
Article 20, Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061)

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign an escrow agreement with the Fort Ord 
Reuse Authority (FORA) and the City of Del Rey Oaks in order for FORA to transfer $7,269,813 
designated for the South Boundary Road project into an escrow account prior to FORA's 
dissolution.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
The City of Monterey General Plan encourages economic diversification and Fort Ord is a key 
opportunity site.  Specifically, General Plan Policy a.3. states: “Explore ways to diversify the 
Monterey economy to provide higher paying jobs and a balance to cyclical elements of the 
visitor economy.”

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
This action will allow for the establishment of an escrow account that will hold and disburse 
$7,269,813 designated by FORA for construction the South Boundary Road project.  These 
funds will be restricted to use according to the terms set by the FORA Board of Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:
The City of Monterey determined that the proposed action, entering into an escrow agreement 
to hold and later disburse money designated by FORA for the South Boundary Road Project, is 
not a “project” as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (CCR, Title 14, 
Chapter 3 (“CEQA Guidelines”) Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15061 includes the general rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the 
potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty 
that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the 
environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  The escrow agreement does not commit the 
City to the South Boundary Road Project, nor does it foreclose any agency’s future 
consideration of impacts, mitigation or alternatives for the project.  Accordingly, because the 
proposed action of entering into an escrow agreement has no potential to cause a direct or any 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, this action is not a 
project under CEQA.  

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  9.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  9.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 9., Item Page 1, Packet Page 129



The South Boundary Road Project was previously approved by the FORA Board of Directors.  
Specifically, in August 2010, the FORA Board approved an initial study and mitigated negative 
declaration for the South Boundary Road Project.  FORA filed a Notice of Determination (NOD) 
for the Project on August 17, 2010.  Any subsequent discretionary approvals required for the 
South Boundary Road project will be assessed for CEQA applicability at the time of the 
approvals.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
Council could choose to not authorize the escrow agreement; however, this is not 
recommended as the City would likely lose valuable transportation project funding.

DISCUSSION:

FORA was established in 1994 under California law to plan, facilitate and manage the transfer 
of former Fort Ord property from the Army to the governing local jurisdictions. Pursuant to 
state law FORA will cease to exist on June 30, 2020.  In 2010, the FORA Board of Directors 
approved a project to realign and improve South Boundary Road (the “South Boundary Road 
Project”) and approved an initial study and mitigated negative declaration for the project. 

FORA was unable to proceed with the South Boundary Road Project for several years due to 
funding constraints.  In 2017, FORA hired Whitson Engineers to prepare final plans and 
provide construction management services for the Project as well as the General Jim Moore 
Boulevard/South Boundary Road intersection improvement project.  To date, Whitson has not 
completed the final construction plans and specifications.

Recently, FORA allocated funds in its budget to mostly fund the South Boundary Road Project 
($7,269,813) and to fully fund the General Jim Moore Boulevard/South Boundary Road 
intersection improvement project ($1,056,168).  Given that FORA will dissolve prior to 
completion of these projects, FORA’s Executive Officer was authorized to fund two escrow 
accounts with Fidelity National Title Company to hold and disburse funds designated by the 
FORA Board for these two transportation improvements.  

The FORA Board approved the escrow terms on March 12, 2020, and the City of Del Rey 
Oaks approved them on March 24, 2020.  Under the proposed escrow agreement, the cities of 
Del Rey Oaks and Monterey will be signatories for the South Boundary Road Project escrow 
account as the Project spans both cities. Del Rey Oaks will be the sole signatory for the 
General Jim Moore Boulevard/South Boundary Road intersection improvement project, which 
is entirely within its jurisdiction.  Eligible uses for the South Boundary Road escrow funds are 
for costs related to completion of plans and specifications, bid documents, and construction, 
as well as related administrative and legal costs.  If construction is not started within ten years 
of the creation of the escrow account or if there are remaining funds post-construction, then 
the funds shall be distributed in equal share (20% each) to the County of Monterey and cities 
of Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, Seaside, and Marina.

Staff for the City of Del Rey Oaks and the City of Monterey are developing a proposed 
agreement to structure implementation of and oversight for the South Boundary Road Project. 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 9., Item Page 2, Packet Page 130



The proposed agreement will be considered by both City Councils in the months ahead.  In 
order to preserve the City’s ability in the future to use the $7,269,813 FORA has allocated for 
the South Boundary Road project, staff recommends authorization to enter into an escrow 
agreement with FORA and the City of Del Rey Oaks on the terms outlined above.

c: Dino Pick, Del Rey Oaks City Manager
Josh Metz, FORA Executive Officer

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 9., Item Page 3, Packet Page 131

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№07/19

AUTHORIZE AN ESCROW AGREEMENT WITH THE FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY AND 
CITY OF DEL REY OAKS IN ORDER FOR FORA TO TRANSFER $7,269,813 FOR THE 

SOUTH BOUNDARY ROAD PROJECT INTO AN ESCROW ACCOUNT.

WHEREAS, in 2010, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (“FORA”) Board of Directors 
approved a project to realign and improve South Boundary Road (the “South Boundary Road 
Project”) and approved an initial study and mitigated negative declaration for the project;

WHEREAS, in 2017, FORA hired Whitson Engineers to prepare final plans and provide 
construction management services for the Project as well as the General Jim Moore 
Boulevard/South Boundary Road intersection improvement project.  To date, Whitson has not 
completed the final construction plans and specifications.  FORA allocated funds in its budget to 
mostly fund the South Boundary Road Project ($7,269,813) and to fully fund the General Jim 
Moore Boulevard/South Boundary Road intersection improvement project ($1,056,168);

WHEREAS, pursuant to state law FORA will cease to exist on June 30, 2020.  Given 
that FORA will dissolve prior to completion of these projects, FORA’s Executive Officer was 
authorized to fund two escrow accounts with Fidelity National Title Company to hold and 
disburse funds designated by the FORA Board for these two transportation improvements;

WHEREAS, the cities of Del Rey Oaks and Monterey will be signatories for the South 
Boundary Road Project escrow account as the Project spans both cities. Eligible uses for the 
escrow funds are for costs related to completion of plans and specifications, bid documents, and 
construction;

WHEREAS, if construction is not started within ten years of the creation of the escrow 
account or if there are remaining funds post-construction, then the funds shall be distributed in 
equal share (20% each) to the County of Monterey and cities of Monterey, Del Rey Oaks, 
Seaside, and Marina; and

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey determined that the proposed action, entering into an 
escrow agreement to hold and later disburse money designated by FORA for the South 
Boundary Road Project, is not a “project” as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) (CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA Guidelines”) Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes the general rule that CEQA applies only to activities 
which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be 
seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant 
effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.  The escrow agreement does not 
commit the City to the South Boundary Road Project, nor does it foreclose any agency’s future 
consideration of impacts, mitigation or alternatives for the project.  Accordingly, because the 
proposed action of entering into an escrow agreement has no potential to cause a direct or any 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, this action is not a 
project under CEQA.  The South Boundary Road Project was previously approved by the FORA 
Board of Directors.  Specifically, in August 2010, the FORA Board approved an initial study and 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 9., Item Page 4, Packet Page 132



2

mitigated negative declaration for the South Boundary Road Project.  FORA filed a Notice of 
Determination (NOD) for the Project on August 17, 2010.  Any subsequent discretionary 
approvals required for the South Boundary Road project will be assessed for CEQA applicability 
at the time of the approvals.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby authorizes the City Manager to enter into an Escrow Agreement, in a 
final form to be approved by the City Attorney, with the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) and 
City of Del Rey Oaks in order for FORA to Transfer $7,269,813 for the South Boundary Road 
Project into an escrow account with Fidelity National Title Company.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of _______, 202_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 9., Item Page 5, Packet Page 133



Council
Agenda Report

№07/19

FROM: Steve Wittry, P.E., Public Works Director
Prepared By: Cristie Steffy, Parking Superintendent 

SUBJECT: Authorize a Supplemental Appropriation from the Parking Fund Ending Balance 
of $336,895 and Amend Resolution 19-147 Awarding a Contract with TIBA 
Parking Systems, LLC for the Purchase, Installation and Maintenance of Parking 
Access and Revenue Control Systems (PARCS) for Off-Street Parking Facilities 
to Increase the Total Contract Amount from $1,888,372 to $2,225,267 
(Exempt per CEQA Guidelines Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) ***CIP***

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council adopt the attached resolution amending Resolution 19-147 to approve 
Amendment 1 to the contract with TIBA Parking Systems, LLC for a scope increase, increasing 
the contract amount from $1,888,372 to $2,225,267, and increase the related project account 
budget by $336,895.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
This action is consistent with the City Council’s Vision and Strategic Initiative of “working to 
improve the quality of life of our residents” by maintaining our existing infrastructure. 

This action is consistent with the City Policy to replace equipment when they have fulfilled their 
useful life cycle and are no longer economical to operate or maintain as well as the City Council 
value driver of “working to improve the quality of life of our residents…ensuring that Monterey 
remains a safe and welcoming place to live, work and visit.” 

Also, it is City Council policy to approve all budget adjustments.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
Funds for the Parking Access and Revenue Control System (PARCS) replacement was 
allocated and approved in the FY 2019/20 Capital Improvement Project budget.  Funding 
the purchase of PARCS Equipment comes from TIBA Parking Systems Equipment 
Replacement project account (CIP2004). 

On September 17, 2019, Council awarded a contract with TIBA Parking Systems, LLC for the 
Purchase, Installation and Maintenance of Parking Access and Revenue Control Systems 
(PARCS) for Off Street Parking Facilities in the amount of $1,716,702 and authorized staff to 
expend up to an additional 10% for unforeseen contingencies, for a total of $1,888,372. 

A contract increase of $336,895 would allow for the inclusion of the automation of the Cannery 
Row Garage immediately as opposed to installation in the future.

At this time, staff is requesting that an additional $336,895 be authorized for the contract 
increase and sufficient funding is available in the Parking Fund.  The Parking Fund is an 
Enterprise Fund of the City of Monterey that is separate from the General Fund.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  10.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  10.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 10., Item Page 1, Packet Page 134



ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

The City of Monterey planning office determined the project is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) because the 
project consists of the minor alterations of existing public structures and facilities involving 
negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency’s 
determination.

Furthermore, the project does not qualify for any of the exceptions to the categorical exemptions 
found at CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2.

Exception a - Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the 
project is to be located - a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant.  Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental 
resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially 
adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies.  The project does not qualify for this 
exception because the projects are generally located within a developed area. There is no 
environmental resource of hazardous or critical concern in parking lot areas.

Exception b - Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is 
significant.  The project improves existing parking access and revenue control systems.  As a 
result, no cumulative impact is anticipated.

Exception c - Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment 
due to unusual circumstances.  The project proposed replacement of parking access and 
revenue control systems. Staff does not anticipate an expansion beyond existing use. 
Therefore, no significant effect is anticipated.

Exception d - Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 
highway.  This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 
negative declaration or certified Environmental Impact Report.  The improvements will not be 
visible from a state scenic highway.

Exception e - Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project 
located on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code.  The project sites are not located on a hazardous waste site according to the 
State Water Resources Control Board Geotracker site (http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/).

Exception f - Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource.  The 
existing parking structures and equipment are not historic. No significant construction or 
excavation is anticipated. In the event cultural or archaeological resources are discovered 
during construction, the City's typical mitigation procedures apply. Therefore, no impacts to 
archaeological or historic resources are anticipated.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 10., Item Page 2, Packet Page 135

http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/


ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:
The Council could choose not to authorize the additional contract increase amount and direct 
staff to keep within authorized contract amounts.  This is not recommended due to the age of 
the existing parking equipment and the timing of current upgrades elsewhere in the Parking 
system.  Presently, the City is implementing a new system within its other garages and staff 
would like to advance the timing of the Cannery Row Garage update to occur with minimum 
impact to customers.  

DISCUSSION:
The City of Monterey Parking Division operates four gated facilities: Downtown East Garage, 
Downtown West Garage, Waterfront Parking Lot and Cannery Row Garage with a total of 2,264 
spaces, open 365 days per year.  Approximately 13 years ago, the City installed the current 
Parking Access and Revenue Control System (PARCS), which includes the equipment to 
control access to the facilities, track occupancy, and calculate parking fees due.  The current 
system has been in place since 2006 and has outlived its useful life, resulting in operating 
difficulties and increased incidents of failure.

On September 17, 2019, Council awarded a contract with TIBA Parking Systems, LLC for the 
Purchase, Installation and Maintenance of Parking Access and Revenue Control Systems 
(PARCS) for Off Street Parking Facilities in the Amount of $1,716,702 and authorized staff to 
expend up to an additional 10% for unforeseen contingencies, for a total of $1,888,372.  This 
contract was competitively bid and awarded by the City of Santa Cruz, and the Finance 
Department approved utilizing the City’s cooperative contract purchase process pursuant to City 
Code section 38-25(d)(2).  The original contract included automation of East Garage, West 
Garage and Waterfront Lot and only minimal integration with the Cannery Row Garage.  Full 
integration was intended to happen at a future date in an effort to minimize delays and 
operational difficulties that are involved any time a new system of this magnitude is installed.  

However, due to the current health crisis, attendance in the Cannery Row garage has been 
minimal.  Staff is requesting authorization to move forward with the integration of the full 
installation at the Cannery Row Garage now, while transactions are decreased to unify the 
parking operations at the lots.  An amendment to the contract is required to include the 
automation of the Cannery Row Garage to be consistent with previously approved off-street 
facilities. 

Funding for the existing installation was allocated and approved in the FY 2019/20 Capital 
Improvement Project budget.  Funding the increased effort is requested from the Parking 
Fund ending balance.  As of May 14, 2020, the amount of available ending fund balance 
is approximately $1,500,000 and is sufficient to allow for the requested project account 
budget increase of $336,895. 

Therefore, staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution amending 
Resolution 19-147 awarding a contract with TIBA Parking Systems, LLC for the purchase, 
installation and maintenance of Parking Access and Revenue Control Systems (PARCS) for off-
street parking facilities to increase the contract amount from $1,888,372 to $2,225,267 and 
appropriate an additional $336,895 to CIP project account of TIBA Parking Systems Equipment 
Replacement (CIP2004).

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 10., Item Page 3, Packet Page 136



CS/ss

Attachments: 1. Resolution

e: Malloy Pohrer, TIBA VP & General Manager
Tony Massetti, TIBA Operations Manager

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 10., Item Page 4, Packet Page 137

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№07/19

AUTHORIZE A SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION FROM THE PARKING FUND ENDING 
BALANCE OF $336,895 AND AMEND RESOLUTION 19-147 AWARDING A CONTRACT 

WITH TIBA PARKING SYSTEMS, LLC FOR THE PURCHASE, INSTALLATION AND 
MAINTENANCE OF PARKING ACCESS AND REVENUE CONTROL SYSTEMS (PARCS) 

FOR OFF-STREET PARKING FACILITIES TO INCREASE THE TOTAL CONTRACT 
AMOUNT FROM $1,888,372 TO $2,225,267 ***CIP***

WHEREAS, on September 17, 2019 the City Council awarded a contract with TIBA 
Parking Systems, LLC for the Purchase, Installation and Maintenance of Parking Access and 
Revenue Control Systems (PARCS) for Off Street Parking Facilities in the Amount of 
$1,888,372;

WHEREAS, during equipment acquisition and implementation, it was determined that a 
contract increase would allow for the inclusion of the automation of the Cannery Row Garage;

WHEREAS, the additional costs associated for this increase are $336,895;

WHEREAS, as of May 14, 2020, the Parking Fund currently has an ending balance of 
approximately $1,500,000;

WHEREAS, the City Council approves all budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, The City of Monterey planning office determined the project is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) 
because the project consists of the minor alterations of existing public structures and facilities 
involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency’s 
determination.

Furthermore, the project does not qualify for any of the exceptions to the categorical exemptions 
found at CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2.

Exception a - Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the 
project is to be located - a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant.  Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental 
resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially 
adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies.  The project does not qualify for this 
exception because the projects are generally located within a developed area. There is no 
environmental resource of hazardous or critical concern in parking lot areas.

Exception b - Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is 
significant.  The project improves existing parking access and revenue control systems.  As a 
result, no cumulative impact is anticipated.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 10., Item Page 5, Packet Page 138



2

Exception c - Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment 
due to unusual circumstances.  The project proposed replacement of parking access and 
revenue control systems. Staff does not anticipate an expansion beyond existing use. 
Therefore, no significant effect is anticipated.

Exception d - Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 
highway.  This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 
negative declaration or certified Environmental Impact Report.  The improvements will not be 
visible from a state scenic highway.

Exception e - Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project 
located on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code.  The project sites are not located on a hazardous waste site according to the 
State Water Resources Control Board Geotracker site (http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/).

Exception f - Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource.  The 
existing parking structures and equipment are not historic. No significant construction or 
excavation is anticipated. In the event cultural or archaeological resources are discovered 
during construction, the City's typical mitigation procedures apply. Therefore, no impacts to 
archaeological or historic resources are anticipated.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby amends Resolution 19-147 awarding a contract with TIBA Parking 
Systems, LLC for the purchase, installation and maintenance of Parking Access and Revenue 
Control Systems (PARCS) for off-street parking facilities to increase the contract amount from 
$1,888,372 to $2,225,267 to include work at the Cannery Row Garage.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY that it 
hereby directs the Finance Director, or her designee, to transfer $336,895 from the Parking 
Fund ending balance to the project account of TIBA Parking Systems Equipment Replacement 
(CIP2004).

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of _______, 202_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 10., Item Page 6, Packet Page 139

http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/


3

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 10., Item Page 7, Packet Page 140



Council
Agenda Report

№07/19

FROM: Library & Museums Director Inga Waite

SUBJECT: Appropriate $8,941 in Donated Funds to the 2019-20 Library Trust Fund Budget 
(Not a Project Under CEQA per Article 20, Section 15378 and Under General 
Rule Article 5, Section 15061)

RECOMMENDATION:
That the City Council adopt a resolution appropriating $8,941 in donated funds to the 2019-20 
Library Trust Fund Budget.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
Article 7 of the Monterey City Charter states:

There shall be maintained a library trust fund which shall consist of the present 
library trust fund together with all gifts, devises or bequests received for the use 
of the library hereafter and all miscellaneous revenues of the library, except 
fines. Expenditures from said fund shall be made by the Council for such library 
purposes as are requested by the Library Board and as are in conformity with 
the conditions of any such gifts, devises, or bequests.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
The recommended action would appropriate $8,941 in donated funds deposited in the Library 
Trust Fund to the 2019-20 Library Trust Fund Budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

The City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as defined by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA Guidelines), 
Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, CEQA, Guidelines Section 15061 includes the general 
rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a significant effect 
on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to 
CEQA.  Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on 
the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities excluded as projects pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project.  Because the matter does not 
cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, 
this matter is not a project.  Any subsequent discretionary projects resulting from this action will 
be assessed for CEQA applicability.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  11.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  11.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 11., Item Page 1, Packet Page 141



None.

DISCUSSION:
Monterey Public Library was founded through community philanthropy 170 years ago. The 
City’s General Fund covers basic library operating costs. Private support through donations 
from the Monterey Public Library Friends & Foundation, private individuals, and service 
organizations is essential to enhance library services and programs.

The Library has received and deposited the following restricted gifts/grants to the Library Trust 
Fund:

Amount Donor Purpose
$      750 Kiwanis Club of Monterey Winter Reading Program
$   30,000 Private donor Summer Reading Program

The Library Board of Trustees requests appropriation of $8,941 of said funds to the 2019-2020 
Library Trust Fund Budget as follows:

810-550-5540-YOUT-4205 Winter Reading $750
810-550-5510-ADMN-4254 Books for Children & Teens $4,000
810-550-5540-YOUT-4205 Supplies $2,500
810-550-5540-YOUT-4220 Contracts $1,016
810-550-5540-YOUT-4240 Performers $450
810-550-5530-REFE-4205 Teen SRP Program Supplies $225

 Total Allocated $8,941

The Library received a grant of $750 from the Kiwanis Club of Monterey to underwrite our 
annual Children’s Winter Reading Program. Nearly 1,000 elementary school students 
participated in the Winter Reading Program between January and March 2020. The program 
encourages families to develop a regular habit of reading together.

The Library also received a generous gift of $30,000 from a local couple to underwrite our 
Summer Reading Program. A portion of the Summer Reading gift will be allocated this fiscal 
year, and the balance is built into the FY21 Library Trust Fund budget, since the summer 
program bridges two fiscal years. Last year nearly 3000 children and teens participated in 
Monterey’s Summer Reading program. The program keeps kid’s minds active and engaged 
while they are out of school by offering reading incentives and free creative learning 
opportunities. Studies show that children who keep learning during the summer do better in 
school. Thanks to the support of our generous donors, and our hard-working, creative staff, we 
will able to offer an engaging, educational summer program, while families continue to shelter in 
place.

Attachments: 1. Resolution

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 11., Item Page 2, Packet Page 142



Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 11., Item Page 3, Packet Page 143

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

№07/19

APPROPRIATE $8,941 IN DONATED FUNDS TO THE 2019-20 LIBRARY TRUST 
FUND BUDGET

WHEREAS, the Library Trust Fund has received a grant of $750 from the Kiwanis Club 
of Monterey for the Winter Reading Program, and a gift $30,000 from private donors for the 
Summer Reading Program; 

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as 
defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)(CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA 
Guidelines), Article 20, Section 15378). In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes 
the general rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
activity is not subject to CEQA. Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential 
to cause any effect on the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities 
excluded as projects pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project. 
Because the matter does not cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change on or in the environment, this matter is not a project. Any subsequent discretionary 
projects resulting from this action will be assessed for CEQA applicability

WHEREAS, the Library Board of Trustees approved the allocation of these funds for 
these purposes at its May 22, 2020 meeting;
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MONTEREY that it hereby directs the Finance Director to make the following appropriations to 
the Library Trust Fund accounts listed below for Fiscal Year 2019-20:

810-550-5540-YOUT-4205 Winter Reading $750
810-550-5510-ADMN-4254 Books for Children & Teens $4,000
810-550-5540-YOUT-4205 Supplies $2,500
810-550-5540-YOUT-4220 Contracts $1,016
810-550-5540-YOUT-4240 Performers $450
810-550-5530-REFE-4205 Teen SRP Program Supplies $225

 Total Allocated $8,941

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of _______, 202_, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 11., Item Page 4, Packet Page 144



2

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 11., Item Page 5, Packet Page 145



Council
Agenda Report

№10/13

FROM: Kimberly Cole, AICP, Community Development Director

SUBJECT: Authorize the Mayor to Send Letters to Monterey One Water, Monterey 
Peninsula Unified School District, Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District, and Transportation Agency for Monterey County on behalf of the City 
Requesting these Agencies Consider Revising Fee Schedules for Residential 
Development and Collecting Fees at Certificate of Occupancy (Not a Project 
Under CEQA per Article 20, Section 15378 and Under General Rule Article 5, 
Section 15061)

RECOMMENDATION:

That the City Council authorize the Mayor to send letters on behalf of the City to Monterey One 
Water, Monterey Peninsula Unified School District, Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District, and Transportation Agency for Monterey County (Attachment 1).

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

State law (Government Code Section 66001) regulates development fees.  Agencies are 
required to prepare a study to address the required issues:

 Fee purpose
 Use of fee
 Relationship between fee’s use and development project
 Relationship between the need for the public facility

These studies are extensive and are required to be updated every five years.  

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

Agencies collect impact fees to offset development impacts.  Fee structures vary by agency and 
most agencies collect fees at permit issuance versus certificate of occupancy.  The amount and 
timing of fee collection affect the ability of other agencies to prepare to accommodate 
development impacts.  For example, if fees are collected at certificate of occupancy, the agency 
may have to absorb the cost of needed upgrades and then get reimbursed when the certificate 
of occupancy is issued.  This is particularly true for school and sewer infrastructure. 
Transportation funding tends to be a longer implementation time frame. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

The City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as defined by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)(CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA Guidelines), 
Article 20, Section 15378).  In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes the general 
rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a significant effect 
on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to 
CEQA.  Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on 

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  12.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  12.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 12., Item Page 1, Packet Page 146



the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities excluded as projects pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project.  Because the matter does not 
cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, 
this matter is not a project.  Any subsequent discretionary projects resulting from this action will 
be assessed for CEQA applicability. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:

The Council could decide to not send the attached letters. 

DISCUSSION: 

Development impact fees include fees imposed in connection with approval of a development 
project for the purpose of defraying all or a portion of the cost of public facilities related to the 
development project. On March 3, 2020, Councilmember Williamson requested the City Council 
send letters to Monterey One Water, Monterey Peninsula Unified School District, Monterey 
Peninsula Water Management District and the Transportation Agency of Monterey County 
recommending these agencies scale fees by square foot (not unit) and require payment at 
certificate of occupancy. As outlined in Councilmember Williamson’s staff report:  

“… write a letter of support to regional bodies supporting an effort to scale all 
fees by square foot as opposed to per unit.  These bodies include Monterey One 
Water, Monterey Peninsula Unified School District, Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District, and the Transportation Agency for Monterey County.”

“Paying fees during the most speculative states of a project’s development and then 
financing fees throughout multiple years of a projects development and construction 
adds measurably to the cost.  Monterey Bay Economic Partnership (MBEP) highly 
recommends that the City focus on deferring impact fees to the time when the impacts 
are present, at occupancy.  All other upfront permit processing fees that pay for staff 
time are reasonable, otherwise staff would be spending too much time on potentially 
high speculative proposals. 

The recommendation is to move any and all future impact fees to the Certificate 
of Occupancy, to include impact fees.  Additionally, council should write a letter 
of support to regional bodies supporting an effort to defer impact fees to the 
Certificate of Occupancy.”

.  
Current fees collected by outside agencies are outlined in the table below.  

Agency Fee Structure
Monterey 
Peninsula 
Unified School 
District

$3.79 per square foot residential development
$0.61 per square foot of commercial/industrial development
Fees are collected prior to issuance of building permit. 

https://www.mpusd.net/apps/pages/index.jsp?uREC_ID=1014183&type=d&pREC_ID=1757719

Monterey One 
Water 

$3,507.44 per equivalent dwelling unit

Fees are collected prior to issuance of building permit. 

https://montereyonewater.org/billpay_rates_residential_capacity_charges.html

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 12., Item Page 2, Packet Page 147

https://www.mpusd.net/apps/pages/index.jsp?uREC_ID=1014183&type=d&pREC_ID=1757719
https://www.mpusd.net/apps/pages/index.jsp?uREC_ID=1014183&type=d&pREC_ID=1757719
https://www.mpusd.net/apps/pages/index.jsp?uREC_ID=1014183&type=d&pREC_ID=1757719
https://montereyonewater.org/billpay_rates_residential_capacity_charges.html
https://montereyonewater.org/billpay_rates_residential_capacity_charges.html


Monterey 
Peninsula 
Water 
Management 
District 

Residential:  Multiply Adjusted Water Use Capacity x $305.02
(Adjusted Water Use Capacity is the number of additional fixture units (in acre 
feet) that are required from the City of Monterey’s allocation or entitlement 
after reducing the project amount for any on-site credit (removing fixtures or 
retrofitting) that might be available and used in the project.)

Residential Moderate Income – 50% of capacity fee

Residential Low Income – Exempt

Fees are collected prior to issuance of water district permit and building 
permit.

https://www.mpwmd.net/regulations/fees-charges/
Transportation 
Agency for 
Monterey 
County

Single Family    $3,981
Single Family Moderate Income $3,108
Single Family Low Income          $2,296
Apartment $2,796
Apartment Moderate Income      $2,182
Apartment Low Income  $1,612
Condo/Townhome $2,438
Condo/Townhome Mod Income $1,903
Condo/Townhome Low Income $1,406
Multi Family/Auxilary Unit $1,543

https://www.tamcmonterey.org/programs/dev-impact-fees/

In summary, the Council directed staff to place consideration of this discussion item on a future 
Council agenda.  This staff report fulfills this direction.  Staff is recommending different letters for 
each agency because:  1) some agencies already charge fees on a square footage basis; 2) the 
fee structure already is lower based on a particular set of circumstances such as water fixtures.   
The specific recommendation is outlined below:  

Agency Recommendation
Monterey Peninsula Unified School District The existing fee is already based on a square 

foot calculation (not units).  As a result, the 
draft letter only requests a change to collecting 
the fees at certificate of occupancy.

Monterey One Water The draft letter requests that fees are charged 
on a per square foot basis and collection 
occurs at certificate of occupancy.

Monterey Peninsula Water Management 
District

The draft letter only requests a change to 
collecting the fees at certificate of occupancy 
because the existing fee structure is less for 
residential development.  

The existing fee is only charged if there is an 
increase in the number of onsite fixture units.  
All projects must currently have adequate 
water credits in order to proceed. By changing 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 12., Item Page 3, Packet Page 148

https://www.mpwmd.net/regulations/fees-charges/
https://www.mpwmd.net/regulations/fees-charges/
https://www.tamcmonterey.org/programs/dev-impact-fees/
https://www.tamcmonterey.org/programs/dev-impact-fees/


the fee structure to a square footage 
calculation, the fees for residential 
construction would actually increase for more 
projects.  

There are a few projects that may obtain a 
water allocation from the City including 590 
East Franklin.  It appears the fees would 
continue to be less on a fixture unit basis for 
this isolated example.  

Transportation Agency for Monterey County The draft letter requests that fees are charged 
on a per square foot basis and collection 
occurs at certificate of occupancy for 
residential construction.

Attachment: 1.  Draft Letters

e:  Paul Sciuto, Monterey One Water
Stephanie Locke, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District
Ryan Altmir, Monterey Peninsula Unified School District
Mike Zeller, Transportation Association of Monterey County
Kate Roberts, MBEP
Housing List

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 12., Item Page 4, Packet Page 149

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


June 3, 2020

Mr. Paul Sciuto 
Monterey One Water
Paul@mrwpca.com

RE:  Fees

Dear Mr. Sciuto, 

The City of Monterey respectfully requests that Monterey One Water consider revising its fees for 
residential construction to a square footage assessment and that fee collection be delayed to certificate 
of occupancy. 

The City is interested in promoting housing construction.   By scaling all residential fees to a square 
footage basis, the fee system will not penalize the total number of units created.  In fact, it may 
encourage smaller and additional units to be proposed.

The City also requests that fee collection be delayed to certificate of occupancy for residential 
construction.  Paying fees prior to certificate of occupancy causes the developer to carry these costs 
through the project’s construction.  This project cost will also not occur until the certificate of occupancy 
is granted.  

The City is pursuing all avenues to increase housing production goals established by the State of 
California.  Thank you for your consideration of this matter. 

Sincerely,

Clyde Roberson
Mayor

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 12., Item Page 5, Packet Page 150

mailto:Paul@mrwpca.com


June 3, 2020

Mr. David Stoldt
Monterey Peninsula Water Management District 
dstoldt@mpwmd.net

RE:  Fees

Dear Mr. Stoldt,

The City of Monterey supports the existing impact fee that is collected by fixture unit.  This approach 
only calculates the net increase in fixtures.  The City does request that the capacity fee be collected at 
certificate of occupancy versus permit issuance for residential construction.  Paying fees prior to 
certificate of occupancy causes the developer to carry these costs through the project’s construction.  
This project cost will also not occur until the certificate of occupancy is granted.  

The City is pursuing all avenues to increase housing production goals established by the State of 
California.  Thank you for your consideration of this matter. 

Sincerely,

Clyde Roberson 
Mayor

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 12., Item Page 6, Packet Page 151

mailto:dstoldt@mpwmd.net


June 3, 2020

Mr. PK Diffenbaugh
Monterey Peninsula Unified School District 
superintendentsmemo@mpusd.net

RE:  Fees

Dear Mr. Diffenbaugh,

The City of Monterey acknowledges that the School District impact fees are charged by square footage.  
The City supports this approach and has requested that other agencies follow your approach. 

The City does request that fee payment be delayed for residential construction to certificate of 
occupancy.  Paying fees prior to certificate of occupancy causes the developer to carry these costs 
through the project’s construction.  This project cost will also not occur until the certificate of occupancy 
is granted.  

The City is pursuing all avenues to increase housing production goals established by the State of 
California.  Thank you for your consideration of this matter. 

Sincerely,

Clyde Roberson
Mayor

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 12., Item Page 7, Packet Page 152

emailto:superintendententsmemo@mpusd.net


June 3, 2020

Ms. Debbie Hale
Transportation Agency for Monterey County
debbie@tamcmonterey.org

RE:  Fees

Dear Ms. Hale, 

The City of Monterey respectfully requests that the Transportation Agency for Monterey County 
consider revising its fees for residential construction to a square footage assessment and that fee 
collection be delayed to certificate of occupancy. 

The City is interested in promoting housing construction.   By scaling all residential fees to a square 
footage basis, the fee system will not penalize the total number of units created.  In fact, it may 
encourage smaller and additional units to be proposed.

The City also requests that fee collection be delayed to certificate of occupancy for residential 
construction.  Paying fees prior to certificate of occupancy causes the developer to carry these costs 
through the project’s construction.  This project cost will also not occur until the certificate of occupancy 
is granted.  

The City is pursuing all avenues to increase housing production goals established by the State of 
California.  Thank you for your consideration of this matter. 

Sincerely,

Clyde Roberson 
Mayor

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 12., Item Page 8, Packet Page 153

mailto:debbie@tamcmonterey.org


Council
Agenda Report

№10/13

FROM: Kimberly Cole, AICP, Community Development Director

SUBJECT: Amend the City General Plan and Municipal Code Section 38-107 to Prioritize 
and Require Utility Undergrounding and Amend the Cannery Row Conservation 
District and Old Town Area Plan to Delete References to Undergrounding; 
1st Reading by Title Only of an Ordinance Amending Monterey City Code Section 
38-107 to Require Utility Undergrounding (Exempt from CEQA Per Article 19, 
Sections 15202, 15304, 15305, and 15308, Classes 2, 4, 5, and 8, and Sections 
15061(b)(3))

RECOMMENDATION:

That the City Council:

1. Adopt a resolution amending the City General Plan to prioritize utility undergrounding 
and deleting references to undergrounding in the Cannery Row Conservation District 
and Old Town Area Plan; and 

2. Introduce, read by title only and pass a first reading of an ordinance amending Municipal 
Code Section 38-107 to require utility undergrounding.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

The City General Plan contains the following program:

Program d.4.2. Underground utilities in commercial business districts to maintain 
adequate space for pedestrians and to improve the shopping environment.

The proposed action will refine this program to possibly state:

Program d.4.2.  Undergrounding utilities in the City of Monterey is a priority to 
reduce fire hazard, minimize visual clutter, and maintain consistent service.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

The proposed General Plan amendment emphasizes the City’s priority is to underground 
utilities.  General Plans are long-term policy documents, and the revision does not mean that 
the project is immediately funded or pursued.  The Zoning Ordinance amendment clarifies that 
utilities will be required to be undergrounded for new buildings.  

Staff has investigated preliminary options for Utility Undergrounding on a going forward basis.  
Undergrounding utilities can be privately or community funded.  Future funding options include:

1. Underground Utility Districts (“UUD”) – this is the most common form of municipal 
undergrounding where a municipality forms an undergrounding utility district. The 
function of an UUD is to underground existing above-ground utility facilities throughout a 

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  13.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  13.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  13.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 1, Packet Page 154



defined district boundary established by the city. The city effectively orders the utilities to 
underground within the area defined by the UUD, paid for by the utility ratepayers and/or 
the undergrounding applicant(s) (e.g., the city, property owners) and it prevents new 
above-ground structures from being constructed within the district. 

2. Assessment Districts – property owners may vote for the creation of an UUD and 
convert above-ground facilities through the payment of an assessment on their property 
taxes. Eligible facilities include most above-ground improvements, but do not include 
electric transmission facilities. A vote of the property owners in the district is required. 
The challenge with this option is that it is designed to cover existing lines paid for by 
property owners in the district. The need to secure property owner approval through an 
election, and the high cost of undergrounding are challenges with this option. 

3. California Public Utilities Commission (“CPUC”) Rule 201 for PG&E electric facilities – 
the Rule 20 process is an established process by the CPUC that is used by cities 
throughout the state. Rule 20A is utility funded, Rule 20B is generally 80% applicant 
funded and 20% utility funded, and Rule 20C is applicant funded. Each has different 
requirements. 

4.
The Rule 20A approach requires specific aesthetic, scenic, and public benefit findings. 
The required findings may not be applicable throughout the entire city, as some streets 
will not be arterial or major collectors, and some areas may not qualify for the civil, public 
recreation, or scenic interest requirements. The impact of the PG&E bankruptcy 
proceedings on Rule 20A funds requires more research. The City will be filing a claim in 
the bankruptcy action regarding its Rule 20A funds.     

Rule 20B is a viable process for undergrounding throughout the City in locations that do 
not qualify for Rule 20B funds. 

Rule 20C in circumstances where Rule 20A or Rule 20B cannot be met, the applicant is 
required to pay for all undergrounding costs, minus salvage value for depreciated 
overhead facilities (de minimus). 

The City Council is not considering funding options for undergrounding.  These options are 
detailed for background information. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

The City of Monterey Planning Office determined the project is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (Article 19, Sections 15304 and 15305, Classes 4 
and 5) because the project proposes that utilities be undergrounded, which constitutes minor 
alterations to land and land use limitations. Additionally, the undergrounding of utilities is 
categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15302, Class 2(d), which states that “conversion of 
overhead electric utility distribution system facilities to underground including connection to 
existing overhead electric utility distribution lines where the surface is restored to the condition 

1 This description of Rule 20 is subject to change as the California Public Utilities Commission is currently reviewing 
a proposal for improving the electric tariff Rule 20 Undergrounding Program in Rulemaking proceeding 17-05-010. 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 2, Packet Page 155



existing prior to undergrounding.” Additionally, the project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines section 15308 (Class 8) as an action taken by a regulatory agency to assure 
the enhancement and protection of the environment, which includes the visual environment of 
the city. Furthermore, the project does not qualify for any of the exceptions to the categorical 
exemptions found at CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2.  

Exception a - Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the 
project is to be located.  A project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant.  Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental 
resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially 
adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies.  The project will result in more 
utilities undergrounded as projects are proposed.  This is considered to be a minor alteration to 
land and land use limitations because the City is located in an urban area and many existing 
policies require undergrounding.  Undergrounding will also occur as funded over a long period 
of time. 

Exception b - Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is 
significant.  This is considered to be a minor alteration to land and land use limitations because 
the City is located in an urban area and many existing policies require undergrounding.  
Undergrounding will also occur as funded over a long period of time.

Exception c - Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment 
due to unusual circumstances.  No significant effect will occur because this is considered to be 
a minor alteration to land and land use limitations because the City is located in an urban area 
and many existing policies require undergrounding.  Undergrounding will also occur as funded 
over a long period of time.

Exception d - Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 
highway. This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 
negative declaration or certified Environmental Impact Report (EIR).  No impact will occur 
because undergrounding utilities will improve the visual character of the environment and any 
scenic highways. The project assures the protection of scenic resources. 

Exception e - Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project 
located on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code.  As undergrounding projects are proposed, hazardous waste sites will need 
to be identified and avoided. 

Exception f - Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource.  No impact 
to historical resources will occur because these are minor alterations to land and land use 
limitations because the City is located in an urban area and many existing policies require 
undergrounding.  Utilities are a modern improvement and do not have historical significance.  By 
undergrounding the utility lines, there will be less visual disruption of historic structures and 
sites. 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 3, Packet Page 156



Furthermore, the plan amendments are exempt under CEQA Guidelines Article 5, sections 
15061(b)(3) because CEQA only applies to projects which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment.  It can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 
that the activity in question will have a significant effect on the environment for the reasons 
discussed above.  State law specifies the process if unexpected cultural resources are 
discovered during the excavation/undergrounding work. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:

The Council could not adopt the proposed changes or make amendments. 

DISCUSSION:

The City Council requested that the Planning Commission consider amending the General Plan 
to update the City’s undergrounding policies.  The Planning Commission received a 
presentation on this issue on February 11, 2020 and requested that staff return with proposed 
language changes. On February 24 and April 28th the Planning Commission discussed policy 
alternatives.   The Planning Commission reviewed the revised language and recommended that 
the City amend the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance to require undergrounding for new 
construction.  The Commission also recommended that policy references in the Cannery Row 
Conservation District and Old Town Area Plan be deleted. 

Existing Policy Proposed Policy

General Plan:

Program d.4.2. Underground utilities in 
commercial business districts to maintain 
adequate space for pedestrians and to 
improve the shopping environment.

General Plan:
Program d.4.2.  Undergrounding utilities in 
commercial business districts to maintain 
adequate space for pedestrians and to 
improve the shopping environment. in the City 
of Monterey is a priority to reduce fire 
hazard, minimize visual clutter, and 
maintain consistent service. 

City of Monterey Zoning Code
38-107 Underground Utilities
All electrical, telephone, CATV, and similar 
distribution lines providing direct service to a 
development site shall be installed 
underground within the site, except in the R-1 
and CR districts where this requirement shall 
not apply. The Planning Commission may 
waive this requirement upon finding that such 
installation is infeasible.

City of Monterey Zoning Code
38-107 Underground Utilities
All electrical, telephone, CATV, and similar 
distribution lines providing direct service to a 
development site new building shall be 
installed underground within the site., except 
in the R-1 and CR districts where this 
requirement shall not apply. The Planning 
Commission may waive this requirement upon 
finding that such installation is infeasible.

Cannery Row Conservation District
12.1.c Undergrounding of street lighting and 
other utilities should be encouraged.

Therefore, utility lines and service areas 
should be visually unobtrusive and should be 

Cannery Row Conservation District
12.1.c Undergrounding of street lighting and 
other utilities should be encouraged. 

Therefore, utility lines and service areas 
should be visually unobtrusive and should be 
undergrounded or integrated with the design of 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 4, Packet Page 157



undergrounded or integrated with the design of 
the site and the building.

Utility Lines
Historically, utility lines were located overhead.  
However, with the changing needs of the area, 
lines should be located underground.

12.35 Locate utility lines underground when 
feasible.

a) Where utility lines remain above ground, 
they may be located in a manner similar to that 
seen in the past.

b) Utility, power and communication lines 
serving a building should be underground 
when feasible.  For new buildings, 
transformers and any other power facilities will 
be permitted underground or at grade only.

the site and the building.

Utility Lines
Historically, utility lines were located overhead.  
However, with the changing needs of the area, 
lines shall should be located underground.

12.35 Locate utility lines underground. when 
feasible.

a) Where utility lines remain above ground, 
they may be located in a manner similar to that 
seen in the past.

ab) Utility, power and communication lines 
serving a building shall should be 
underground when feasible.  For new 
buildings, transformers and any other power 
facilities will be permitted underground or at 
grade only.

Old Town Area Plan

Policy 4.2. Support property owners in 
privately funded programs to underground 
utilities.

Old Town Area Plan

Policy 4.2. Support property owners in 
privately funded programs to underground 
utilities.

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached resolution amending the General Plan 
and adopt an ordinance amending Municipal Code Section 38-107. The ordinance amendment 
includes all utilities, including electrical, for new buildings. Encroachments in the rights-of-way 
by communication facilities (not including electrical) continue to be regulated under Section 32-
08.01 et seq. The standards for a deviation from the undergrounding requirement are the same 
in both ordinances. 

Attachments:   1.  Resolution
2.  Ordinance

 

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 5, Packet Page 158

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 RESOLUTION NO. __- ___ C.S.

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY
AMENDING THE GENERAL PLAN TO PRIORTIZE UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING 
AND AMENDING THE CANNERY ROW CONSERVATION DISTRICT AND OLD 

TOWN AREA PLAN TO DELETE REFERENCES TO UNDERGROUNDING

№12/12

WHEREAS, the City Council requested that the Planning Commission consider 
amending the General Plan to update the City’s undergrounding policies;  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered this issue on February 11, 
February 24, and April 28, 2020.

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission accepted public comment on this issue at the 
various meetings;

WHEREAS, the City General Plan contains the following program:  Program d.4.2. 
Underground utilities in commercial business districts to maintain adequate space for 
pedestrians and to improve the shopping environment;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission discussed the following priorities for utility 
undergrounding – reduce fire hazard, minimize visual clutter, and maintain consistent service; 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission discussed the need to eliminate references to 
undergrounding in the Cannery Row Conservation District and Old Town Area Plan to eliminate 
any potential for confusion; 

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey Planning Office determined the project is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (Article 19, Sections 15304 and 
15305, Classes 4 and 5) because the project proposes that utilities be undergrounded, which 
constitutes minor alterations to land and land use limitations. Additionally, the undergrounding of 
utilities is categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15302, Class 2(d), which states that 
“conversion of overhead electric utility distribution system facilities to underground including 
connection to existing overhead electric utility distribution lines where the surface is restored to 
the condition existing prior to undergrounding.” Additionally, the project is exempt from CEQA 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15308 (Class 8) as an action taken by a regulatory 
agency to assure the enhancement and protection of the environment, which includes the visual 
environment of the City.  Furthermore, the project does not qualify for any of the exceptions to 
the categorical exemptions found at CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2.  

Exception a - Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the 
project is to be located.  A project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant.  Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental 
resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially 
adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies.  The project will result in more 
utilities undergrounded as projects are proposed.  This is considered to be a minor alteration to 
land and land use limitations because the City is located in an urban area and many existing 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 6, Packet Page 159



2

policies require undergrounding.  Undergrounding will also occur as funded over a long period 
of time. 

Exception b - Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is 
significant.  This is considered to be a minor alteration to land and land use limitations because 
the City is located in an urban area and many existing policies require undergrounding.  
Undergrounding will also occur as funded over a long period of time.

Exception c - Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment 
due to unusual circumstances.  No significant effect will occur because this is considered to be 
a minor alteration to land and land use limitations because the City is located in an urban area 
and many existing policies require undergrounding.  Undergrounding will also occur as funded 
over a long period of time.

Exception d - Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 
highway. This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 
negative declaration or certified Environmental Impact Report (EIR).  No impact will occur 
because undergrounding utilities will improve the visual character of the environment and any 
scenic highways. The project assures the protection of scenic resources.  

Exception e - Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project 
located on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code.  As undergrounding projects are proposed, hazardous waste sites will need 
to be identified and avoided. 

Exception f - Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource.  No impact 
to historical resources will occur because these are minor alterations to land and land use 
limitations because the City is located in an urban area and many existing policies require 
undergrounding.  Utilities are a modern improvement and do not have historical significance.  By 
undergrounding the utility lines, there will be less visual disruption of historic structures and 
sites. 

Furthermore, the plan amendments are exempt under CEQA Guidelines Article 5, sections 
15061(b)(3) because CEQA only applies to projects which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment.  It can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 
that the activity in question will have a significant effect on the environment for the reasons 
discussed above.   State law specifies the process if unexpected cultural resources are 
discovered during the excavation/undergrounding work. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY 
that it hereby:

1. Amends the General Plan Program d.4.2 to state:  Program d.4.2.  Undergrounding 
utilities in commercial business districts to maintain adequate space for pedestrians 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 7, Packet Page 160



3

and to improve the shopping environment. in the City of Monterey is a priority to 
reduce fire hazard, minimize visual clutter, and maintain consistent service.

2. Amends the Cannery Row Conservation District and Old Town Area Plan to 
eliminate references to undergrounding:

Cannery Row Conservation District
12.1.c Undergrounding of street lighting and other utilities should be encouraged. 

Therefore, utility lines and service areas should be visually unobtrusive and should 
be undergrounded or integrated with the design of the site and the building.

Utility Lines
Historically, utility lines were located overhead.  However, with the changing needs of 
the area, lines shall should be located underground.

12.35 Locate utility lines underground. when feasible.

a) Where utility lines remain above ground, they may be located in a manner similar 
to that seen in the past.

ab) Utility, power and communication lines serving a building shall should be 
underground when feasible.  For new buildings, transformers and any other power 
facilities will be permitted underground or at grade only.

Old Town Area Plan

Policy 4.2. Support property owners in privately funded programs to underground 
utilities.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this 2nd 
day of June, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 8, Packet Page 161



4

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 9, Packet Page 162



ORDINANCE NO.  ____  C.S.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY

1

AMEND MONTEREY CITY CODE 38-107 TO REQUIRE UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING

THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY DOES ORDAIN, as follows:

SECTION 1:

WHEREAS, the City Council requested that the Planning Commission consider 
amending the General Plan to update the City’s undergrounding policies;  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered this issue on February 11, 
February 24, and April 28, 2020;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission accepted public comment on this issue at the 
various meetings;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission discussed how to make the City’s Municipal 
Code consistent with the proposed General Plan amendment; 

WHEREAS, the City of Monterey Planning Office determined the project is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines (Article 19, Sections 15304 and 
15305, Classes 4 and 5) because the project proposes that utilities be undergrounded, which 
constitutes minor alterations to land and land use limitations. Additionally, the undergrounding of 
utilities is categorically exempt pursuant to Section 15302, Class 2(d), which states that 
“conversion of overhead electric utility distribution system facilities to underground including 
connection to existing overhead electric utility distribution lines where the surface is restored to 
the condition existing prior to undergrounding.” Additionally, the project is exempt from CEQA 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15308 (Class 8) as an action taken by a regulatory 
agency to assure the enhancement and protection of the environment, which includes the visual 
environment of the City. Furthermore, the project does not qualify for any of the exceptions to 
the categorical exemptions found at CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2.  

Exception a - Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the 
project is to be located.  A project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant.  Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental 
resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially 
adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies.  The project will result in more 
utilities undergrounded as projects are proposed.  This is considered to be a minor alteration to 
land and land use limitations because the City is located in an urban area and many existing 
policies require undergrounding.  Undergrounding will also occur as funded over a long period 
of time. 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 10, Packet Page 163



Exception b - Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is 
significant.  This is considered to be a minor alteration to land and land use limitations because 
the City is located in an urban area and many existing policies require undergrounding.  
Undergrounding will also occur as funded over a long period of time.

Exception c - Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment 
due to unusual circumstances.  No significant effect will occur because this is considered to be 
a minor alteration to land and land use limitations because the City is located in an urban area 
and many existing policies require undergrounding.  Undergrounding will also occur as funded 
over a long period of time.

Exception d - Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 
highway. This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 
negative declaration or certified Environmental Impact Report (EIR).  No impact will occur 
because undergrounding utilities will improve the visual character of the environment and any 
scenic highways. The project assures the protection of scenic resources. 

Exception e - Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project 
located on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code.  As undergrounding projects are proposed, hazardous waste sites will need 
to be identified and avoided. 

Exception f - Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource.  No impact 
to historical resources will occur because these are minor alterations to land and land use 
limitations because the City is located in an urban area and many existing policies require 
undergrounding.  Utilities are a modern improvement and do not have historical significance.  By 
undergrounding the utility lines, there will be less visual disruption of historic structures and 
sites. 

Furthermore, the plan amendments are exempt under CEQA Guidelines Article 5, sections 
15061(b)(3) because CEQA only applies to projects which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment.  It can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 
that the activity in question will have a significant effect on the environment for the reasons 
discussed above..  State law specifies the process if unexpected cultural resources are 
discovered during the excavation/undergrounding work. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Monterey City Council declares as follows: 

SECTION 1:  Monterey City Code 38-107 Underground Utilities is amended to read as 
follows:
(a) All electrical, telephone, CATV, and similar distribution lines providing direct service to a 

new building shall be installed underground within the site. 
(b) Deviation. A deviation may be granted, but shall be limited in scope to that necessary 

where it is shown that:

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 11, Packet Page 164



(1) Placement underground would result in the violation of other provisions of the 
City Code, including the City’s noise ordinances; or

(2) There are unusual environmental circumstances which would cause:

1. Injury or danger to persons;

2. Landslides, soil erosion, or exposure of trenches;

3. Widespread, long-term, or permanent destruction of vegetation or native 
trees;

4. Serious property damage, including damage to historical or archeological 
resources; or

5. Hindrance to other construction or excessive relocation costs; and

(3) The operator seeking the deviation has proposed a plan for placement that 
minimizes the visual impacts; and

(c) Along a section of roadway where the distribution lines of telephone and electric 
Applications for Deviations.  An application for a deviation must be filed with the City 
Manager, or designee, and shall contain the information required to justify an exception.  

(d) Exemption. This Section does not apply to encroachments by communications facilities 
in the rights-of-way, which are governed by City Code, Chapter 32, Article 8, Section 32-
08.01 et seq. 

SECTION 2: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.

SECTION 3:  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is 
for any reason declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or the effectiveness of the remaining 
portions of this chapter or any part thereof.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
adopted this chapter notwithstanding the unconstitutionality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of any 
one or more of its sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases.

SECTION 4:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days from and 
after its final passage and adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTEREY this _____ 
day of June, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 12, Packet Page 165



APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Mayor of said City

City Clerk thereof  

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 13., Item Page 13, Packet Page 166



Council
No Agenda Report Memo

№10/13

FROM: Hans Uslar, City Manager
Prepared by: Nat Rojanasathira, Assistant City Manager

SUBJECT: City Manager Report on Covid-19 Response Efforts (Not a project under CEQA 
per Article 20 Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5 Section 15061)

The impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic on City services, public health, fiscal impacts, and 
shelter-in-place orders continue to evolve and shift on a daily basis. 

Since the first week in March when the City began temporarily closing City facilities, the City of 
Monterey has maintained up-to-date information on its website at: 
www.monterey.org/coronavirus. 

The public is encouraged to visit the web portal to stay updated on latest news, open/closed city 
services, help for employers and employees, public health resources, virtual services/programs, 
fiscal impacts, labor issues, and other information.  

Daily email blasts supplement the City’s COVID19 information efforts. These emails provide 
accurate, current and relevant information about the pandemic and City services.

In addition, every fortnight, the City Manager addresses the public during special editions of 
"Monterey Mornings with the Manager" on YouTube Live, at 9:00 a.m. every other Thursday 
at www.youtube.com/cityofmonterey.

The City Manager will deliver a verbal report on the City's most recent Covid-19 response efforts 
at the City Council meeting on June 2, 2020.  In addition, Police Chief Dave Hober will provide 
insights on education and enforcement efforts related to the County’s Shelter-in-Place Order.

Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  14.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 14., Item Page 1, Packet Page 167

http://www.monterey.org/coronavirus
http://www.youtube.com/cityofmonterey
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


Council
Agenda Report

№12/12

FROM: Lauren Lai, CPA, Finance Director

SUBJECT: Provide Direction Regarding the COVID-19 FY20/21 General Fund Deficit, 
Proposed Budget Reductions, Strategies and/or Revenue Enhancements (Not a 
Project under CEQA Article 20, Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, 
Section 15061)

RECOMMENDATION:

City Council provides direction regarding COVID-19 FY20/21 General Fund deficit, proposed 
budget reductions, strategies and/or revenue enhancements. 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
It is good fiscal and budget policy to regularly review the financial results of City operations.  In 
addition, governmental accounting standards require that the City Council be regularly updated 
as to the financial condition of the City.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

Staff estimates that the effects of COVID-19 pandemic will devastate the City’s General Fund 
revenues for FY19/20 and FY20/21(2 years) by approximately $31 million.

The loss through the remainder of Fiscal Year 19/20 (mid-March through June 2020) is now $13 
million (or 16.2%), which is $3 million higher than originally estimated in April 2020. In 
conjunction with the Monterey County Convention and Visitors Bureau (MCCVB), staff adjusted 
the City of Monterey’s revenue loss assumptions for Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT), bringing 
total FY20 COVID-19 losses from $10M to $13M. 

For fiscal year FY 20/21, the current estimates project a revenue loss of $18 million (21.7%) of 
an $83 million budget. Additionally, the pandemic created significant financial losses in other 
funds such as Tidelands, Parking, Measure P & S, etc.  Council resolved $10M of the $13M 
FY20 COVID-19 General Fund deficit in April, so the balance of $3M should be resolved in 
FY21.

The FY21 proposed solutions need to address $21M, comprising $3M FY20 COVID-19 deficit 
balance and $18M FY21 COVID-19 deficit.  Moreover, the FY21 budget had a structural deficit 
of $2.8M which will increase to $3.2M due to various program and/or insurance updates, 
however we anticipate this deficit of $3.2M will be resolved with the new voter-approved 
Measure G (½-cent per dollar sales tax).  

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:
The City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as defined by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)(CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA Guidelines”), 

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  15.

Date:  6/2/2020

Item No.:  15.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 1, Packet Page 168



Article 20, Section 15378). In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes the general 
rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a significant effect 
on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to 
CEQA. Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on 
the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities excluded as projects pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project. Because the matter does not 
cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, 
this matter is not a project. Any subsequent discretionary projects resulting from this action will 
be assessed for CEQA applicability.

ALTERNATIVES:  

Council could decide not to provide direction or feedback on the proposed FY 2020/21 budget.  
However, this is not recommended because budget reductions, strategies, and revenue 
enhancements are needed to balance the budget.

DISCUSSION:
On April 7, April 21 and May 21, Council was briefed on the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic and its unprecedented and unpredictable nature and its effects on the City’s budget, 
expenditures and service levels.

The mission of the City of Monterey during this pandemic has been to remain focused on: 
● maintaining public safety as the top priority, 
● keeping the core functions of our local government operational, and 
● to encourage a speedy recovery of our (hospitality)industries.

For reference, the attached May 21 agenda report summarizes the COVID-19 FY20/21 General 
Fund deficit, proposed budget reductions, strategies and/or revenue enhancements. In times 
like these, all possible scenarios and budget reductions and service adjustments need to be put 
on the table.

The City’s short-term and long-term fiscal health depends on actions and difficult decisions that 
need to be made with the Fiscal Year 2021 budget.  Staff will be seeking input from 
neighborhood associations, business associations, and the public-at-large regarding cost saving 
and revenue generating strategies during multiple virtual town hall meetings to be held on June 
1st. Initial feedback from the town hall meetings will be presented to the City Council at its 
meeting on June 2.

Staff is suggesting that Council provides direction with respect to the proposed budget solutions 
including selection of the preferred scenario. Second, we also suggest that Council discusses 
two potential ballot measures and provides guidance and not yet direction.

Departmental Reductions:
Staff is seeking Council direction regarding the FY20/21 General Fund proposed department 
budget reductions, as shown below:

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 2, Packet Page 169



Scenario Discussions:
Staff is also seeking Council direction regarding the proposed solutions for the Average 
Scenario, as shown below:

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 3, Packet Page 170



Staff suggests to use the “Average Scenario” as the preferred budget projection. The average 
scenario results in less program cuts across City Departments (many of these cuts are already 
severe). 

Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT):

Staff seeks Council direction on TOT as it relates to a November 2020 ballot. We are 
recommending to place a 2% TOT rate increase (which would increase the current rate from 
10% to 12%) onto the November ballot, and would result in approximately $4.9 million in 
additional revenue per year (based on 2017/18 TOT revenues):  

● The Monterey County Convention & Visitors Bureau (MCCVB) and the hospitality 
partners expect a continued funding stream from the City using a percentage of TOT 
funds. Staff proposes to set the funding for the MCCVB at 3% of the TOT. This is a fair 
and equitable contribution model that is proportionate to the TOT revenue generated by 
each MCCVB member city (all other member cities, including Carmel-by-the-Sea, Pacific 
Grove, Salinas, Seaside, Marina, Del Rey Oaks and Sand City fund MCCVB at the 3% 
of TOT rate). The additional revenue generated by the TOT increase may help fund this 
goal.

● Timely restoration of a majority of library services is dependent on additional revenues.  
Pre-COVID-19 the library operated seven days-a-week at a cost of $3.2 million.

● The opening of Scholze Park Center (Senior Center) as well as three other recreation 
(park) centers has been requested by our residents and users of our recreation 
programs. Without an infusion through an additional TOT, the programming for some or 
all of these facilities may not be possible.

● The Sports Center operation requires an annual contribution from the General Fund of 
around 25% of the collected user fees plus another contribution of the General Fund of 
around $540K annually for bond payments. Combined, the Sports Center operation is 
supported by the General Fund beyond $1.5 million per year. 

● The Conference Center needs to build up a reserve to support facility maintenance, 
upkeep, and future improvements. Such a new Conference Center reserve may be 
funded through this additional new TOT revenue, further investing in the hospitality 
industry that is an economic driver for Monterey’s fiscal health, resident quality of life and 
essential services.

● TOT funds services that visitors and residents consume and the City provides such as 
roads, medians, parks, beaches, museums, police, and fire protection. Without funding 
mechanisms such as parking fees and TOT, visitors to Monterey consume these public 
services for free.

● Relative to other cities, the City of Monterey has a disproportionate amount of tax-
exempt governmental agencies properties that do not pay property tax.  Those include 
our colleges, military bases and the aquarium.  These valued institutions clearly benefit 
the community but the City still needs tax revenues to provide services.  Therefore, the 
City is more dependent upon other revenue sources, such as TOT, sales and fees. 

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 4, Packet Page 171



● A 2% rate increase is reasonable and consistent with other cities in the Monterey Bay 
Area including those participating in the Conference Community Facility District 
(“CCFD”) contributions, except the three hotels adjacent to the conference center.  As 
shown in the graph below, 10 out of 13 cities surveyed have a higher TOT rate than 
Monterey.   The City of Monterey has the lowest TOT rate in the entire Monterey 
Peninsula, except Del Rey Oaks which does not have hotels.

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 5, Packet Page 172



● Opponents to the TOT rate increase will often cite maintaining Monterey’s competitive 
advantage as a reason for not increasing the TOT rate.  However, comparisons of 
Monterey’s TOT rate to cities and counties representing top competitors such as 
Napa/Sonoma, Santa Barbara, and Lake Tahoe clearly show that Monterey’s TOT rate 
is below our competitors.

Conclusion 

On June 2, staff will seek feedback from the City Council with the goal of adopting budget 
amendments at its meeting on June 16, and consideration of new revenues and/or budget 
reductions.   In order to put the TOT before the voters on the November 2020 election, it 
requires a ⅔ Council vote (4 out of 5) and as a general tax, it would require a simple majority of 
the voter (50% + 1).

ATTACHMENT: 
1. May 27, 2020 Agenda Report - COVID-19 FY20/21 Financial Report on Structural 

Deficit and Coronavirus (COVID-19) Deficit on the City General Fund and Proposed 
Budget Reductions and Revenue Enhancements

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 6, Packet Page 173



Writings distributed for discussion or consideration on this matter within 72 hours of the meeting, 
pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, will be made available at the following link: 
https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 7, Packet Page 174

https://monterey.org/Submitted-Comments


 

City Council 
Agenda Report 
 

 

 

 

 

№12/12 

FROM: Lauren Lai, CPA, Finance Director 
   
SUBJECT: FY20/21 Financial Report on Structural Deficit and Coronavirus (COVID-19) 

Deficit on the City General Fund and Proposed Budget Reductions and Revenue 
Enhancements (Not a Project under CEQA Article 20, Section 15378 and under 
General Rule Article 5, Section 15061) 

RECOMMENDATION: 

City Council receive Financial Report on Coronavirus (COVID-19) Impact on City General Fund 
Fiscal Year 2020/2021 and Various Proposed Budget Reductions and Revenue Enhancements.  

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 

Monterey City Charter section 6.6(e) provides: “[i]f there are insufficient funds available to 
provide for the ordinary and necessary services in any budget year, they may, by an affirmative 
vote of four (4) members of the City Council, reduce the amount to be appropriated for 
Neighborhood and Community Improvements.”    

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Staff estimates that the effects of COVID-19 pandemic will devastate the City’s General Fund 
revenues for FY19/20 and FY20/21(2 years) by approximately $31 million. 

The loss is now $13 million (or 16.2%) through the remainder of fiscal year FY 19/20 (mid-
March through June 2020), which is $3 million higher than originally estimated in April 2020. 

For fiscal year FY 20/21, the current estimates project a revenue loss of $18 million (21.7%)of 
an $83 million budget. Additionally, the pandemic created significant financial losses in other 
funds such as Tidelands, Parking, Measure P & S, etc.  The Monterey County Convention and 
Visitors Bureau (MCCVB) has adjusted the City of Monterey’s revenue loss assumptions for 
Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) from $10M to $13M.  Council resolved $10M of the $13M FY20 
COVID-19 deficit in April, so the balance of $3M should be resolved in FY21.  

The FY21 proposed solutions need to address $21M, comprising $3M FY20 COVID-19 deficit 
balance and $18M FY21 COVID-19 deficit.  Moreover, the FY21 budget had a structural deficit 
of $2.8M which will increase to $3.2M due to various program and/or insurance updates, 
however we anticipate this deficit of $3.2M will be resolved with the new voter-approved 
Measure G (½ cent per dollar sales tax).   

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: 

The City of Monterey determined that the proposed action is not a project as defined by the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)(CCR, Title 14, Chapter 3 (“CEQA Guidelines”), 
Article 20, Section 15378). In addition, CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes the general 

ATTACHMENT 1

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 8, Packet Page 175



  

  
rule that CEQA applies only to activities which have the potential for causing a significant effect 
on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to 
CEQA. Because the proposed action and this matter have no potential to cause any effect on 
the environment, or because it falls within a category of activities excluded as projects pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15378, this matter is not a project. Because the matter does not 
cause a direct or any reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, 
this matter is not a project. Any subsequent discretionary projects resulting from this action will 
be assessed for CEQA applicability. 

ALTERNATIVES:  N/A 

DISCUSSION: 

On April 7 and 21, Council was briefed on the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and its 
unprecedented and unpredictable nature and its effects on the City’s budget, expenditures and 
service levels. 
 
Monterey’s hospitality industry has nearly grinded to a halt, with dire consequences for the City 
of Monterey’s budget. The City’s revenues are dependent on tourism, which accounts for 
approximately 35% of the City’s General Fund, 62% of Measure P and S, and almost 100% of 
Neighborhood Community Improvement Program (NCIP) and Parking Funds.  
 
The mission of the City of Monterey during this pandemic has been to remain focused on  

 maintaining public safety as the top priority,  
 keeping the core functions of our local government operational, and  
 to encourage a speedy recovery of our economic engines with a focus on our hospitality 

industry. 

 
With that in mind, our City needs to be prepared to brace for a wide range of fiscal and 
economic damages, which are occurring and still unfolding. As staff has shared previously, 
temporarily shuttered facilities such as the library, museums, recreation / park centers, 
conference center, and sports center must reopen in a safe manner under approved social 
distancing measures, and in a manner that is fiscally prudent. This report presents short-, mid- 
and long-term considerations and solutions.  The COVID-19 pandemic is causing a significant 
paradigm shift forcing the City Council to consider revenue, expenditures, and service levels in 
a compressed timeline.  Staff will present a summary of this information and request Council 
and general public feedback.    
 
This report should be taken in light of prior years of fiscal reform and reductions.  Major prior 
year considerations include: (1) Fiscal Health Response Plan (FHRP) - addressing structural 
deficit; (2) pre-existing pension obligations; (3) pre-existing unfunded facility repairs; and (4) 
multiple departments made significant cuts to balance the budget, and it’s imperative to 
consider the reduced staffing and service levels of these departments going into the deeper cuts 
identified in this COVID-19 report. 
 
This report includes four major sections: (1) Fiscal Overview; (2) Big Picture Strategy / Policy; 
(3) Broad Service Reductions; and (4) Paradigm Shift Ideas.  In terms of timeline, Staff 

ATTACHMENT 1

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 9, Packet Page 176



  

  
anticipates additional COVID-19 and budget discussions on June 2 and June 16.   The goal is 
for the Council to adopt budget amendments on June 16th, which will be effective July 1, 2020. 
 
The presented data and proposed solutions are made to correct the short-term budgetary 
shortfalls. The City of Monterey has provided continuously high service levels to our residents 
and businesses. It is the intent of the proposed solutions to return to these service levels as 
soon as it is fiscally responsible. 
 
Labor Contracts: 

 
The City is currently in closed contracts with all of the labor groups.  Six of the labor groups 
have contracts expiring June 30, 2021 and one labor group (Fire) has a contract expiring in 
June 30, 2022, but may be reopened for negotiations on station staffing and salary in 
2021.  Therefore, other than layoffs, the City cannot require or impose concessions to achieve 
reductions in expenditures.  All executives (making up a total of 12 employees) have offered 
and the City has implemented concessions.  At this time, these savings will fund a $1,000 
severance to the 81 employees temporarily laid off.    Police management and Fire 
management (making up a total of eight employees) have volunteered concessions.  
  
The City must continue to engage in discussions with the other labor groups to request 
concessions to salary, salary-based premiums, and benefits.  The City does not want to impact 
the ability to recruit and retain talent.  But given that approximately 78% of the general fund 
expenditures are related to personnel (salary/benefits), the reality is that without across-the-
board concessions provided by labor groups the City will need to implement additional layoffs 
and cuts to city services and programs, including public safety.   
 
Fiscal Overview: Devastation of City General Fund FY 21:  
 
Deficit Summary: 
 

Deficits FY 
Adopted 

Updates FY 

Amended 

Proposed 

Solutions 

Comments 

FY20 COVID-19  $0 $13M $M $10M 

$3M 

$10M of CIP/NCIP  
$3M of other 
solutions 

FY21 Structural Deficit  $2.8M $0.4M $3.2M $3.2M Measure G ½ sales 
tax  

FY21 COVID-19  $0 $18M $18M $18M Various Reductions 

      

Total COVID-19 Loss in 
2 years 

 
$31M 

   

 

ATTACHMENT 1

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 10, Packet Page 177



  

  
Staff collaborated with various subject matter experts, regional leaders, staff program 
managers, and others, and corroborated various data resources to derive estimates. Keeping in 
mind this fluid financial situation, below is Staff’s assessment of the FY21 City General Fund 
revenue losses by major categories.  
 
Loss by Revenue Categories:  The table below shows the least worst ($15.8M) (“scenario 
A”) and worst ($20.9M) (“scenario B”) scenarios of COVID-19 deficits by revenue 
categories.  The scenario A assumes significant easing of the shelter-in-place order effective 
June 1, 2020.  The scenario B assumes a second COVID-19 case spike in fall 2020.  The 
average scenario of $18M will be used for budgeting and operations.  Staff will continue to 
monitor, analyze and adjust services (restoring them) as revenues improve and propose budget 
adjustments upwards or downwards. 
 

 
TOT Revenue Losses – Below is the TOT revenue historical trend and FY20 & FY21 
projections.   
 

 
 
  

ATTACHMENT 1

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 11, Packet Page 178



  

  
California Pension System (CalPERS) -- As for CalPERS pension, COVID-19 caused a 
worldwide economic crash of stock markets resulting in significant CalPERS investment 
portfolio losses. Based on the CalPERS webinar on April 8th, the March 2020 year-to-date 
portfolio loss is 4%. CalPERS did not provide an estimated portfolio loss for FY2020 and/or any 
estimate for future employer higher costs. We do not know the extent of how the FY20 
investment losses will increase employer pension costs starting in FY22/23 with a 5-year ramp 
up and 20-year level payment amortization. CalPERS plans to publish the annual valuation 
reports in fall 2020, which will include the FY20 actual investment loss and provide more 
specific COVID-19 fiscal ramifications on employer costs.  The City will need to find solutions to 
resolve this pension obligation. 
 
FY21 Big Picture Strategy / Policy --  This section proposes various strategies and policies to 
solve FY21 General Fund Budget, which Staff seeks feedback.   
 

 Paradigm Shift Strategies -- With this strategy, the City: (1) recognizes that COVID-19 is 
unprecedented relative to prior City catastrophes; (2) considers solutions with the idea of 
“Go Big / Go Broad / Go Simple!” (Jason Furman, Harvard Professor); and (3) act swiftly 
-- unfortunately there is no time for a traditional reiterative community based 
process.  The City needs to re-examine operations and consider what are core City 
functions and cost-recovery policies. 

 Structural Deficit will be addressed with Measure G Funding Strategy -- Fixes the pre-
existing General Fund structural deficit with the new voter-approved Measure G ½ cent 
per dollar sales tax. 

 Pension and Facility Funding Strategy -- Monitoring and instituting long-term solutions to 
tackle pension liabilities and fix City facilities.  Unfunded pension and unfunded facility 
repairs are pre-existing problems which magnify with COVID-19.  

 Fiscal Health Response Plan (FHRP) -- CORE Strategies -- The City continues its FHRP 
CORE strategies to address COVID19.  (1) C - Change Business (2) O - Operational 
Reductions (3) R - Revenue Enhancements (4) E - Employee Concessions 

 Economic Uncertainty Reserve (“rainy day fund”) Strategy -- The City Economic 
Uncertainty Reserve of $13.7M represents 16.6% of General Fund or the equivalent of 
almost 2 months of City general fund operations.  Some of this balance may be used to 
solve COVID-19 revenue losses. Keep in mind this is one-time money (not recurring) 
and in the future, the City will need to restore the rainy day fund and possibly set a 
higher reserve goal given what the City learns from this pandemic. 

 One-time versus Ongoing Solutions Strategies -- The portfolio of costs and revenues will 
include one-time and ongoing components.  To address the immediate challenges and 
maintain long-term financial stability, the strategies will include one-time strategies that 
infuse immediate dollars but do not repeat readily in future periods, while recurring 
strategies infuse dollars repeatedly each period.  Examples of one-time strategies are 
unfunding CIP projects and technology projects.  Examples of recurring strategies are 
workforce reduction, employee concessions, new tax or fee revenues, etc. 

 Priority Based Strategy -- To facilitate decision making, this strategy focuses efforts on 
immediate and urgent priorities.  Those include: (1) public safety - serve residents, save 
lives (2) fix the budget (3) jumpstart local economic recovery  

 Labor Negotiation Strategy -- This strategy balances the City’s ability to recruit and retain 
talented employees with the ability to pay for labor costs, and to the end, the strategy 
seeks employee concessions to possibly avoid some budget cuts and/or layoffs.  

  

ATTACHMENT 1

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 12, Packet Page 179



  

  
 
FY21 Big Picture Strategies of Proposed Solutions to Solve COVID-19 -- Below is a summary of 
the proposed COVID-19 fiscal solutions.   
 

 The City will focus on the average scenario of $21M, comprising $3M FY20 COVID-19 
deficit balance and $18M  FY21 COVID-19 deficit. 

 NCIP projects would not be appropriated for FY21.   
 Employee layoffs would reduce costs and services.   
 Further program costs would be reduced to balance the budget.  
 Economic reserve would be used as a one-time solution.   
 One-year suspension is proposed for Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”, retiree 

medical) savings, vehicle replacement savings, technology projects and/or CIP/facility 
repairs.   

 Revenue solutions -- such as taxes, fees, cost-recoveries -- are all possible, and Staff 
seeks Council direction before making financial assumptions of additional new 
revenues.  Revenues are discussed further in the “Paradigm Shift Ideas” section.   

 

 
 

General Fund - Broad Budget Reductions -- Staff recognizes that service (program) cuts are 
difficult but facing this financial devastation, significant service cuts will be necessary.  Staff 
proposes these budget reductions and seeks feedback from the Council and general public. 
Some of the service reductions may be avoided with employee concessions, new revenues 
and/or other cost reduction strategies.  

ATTACHMENT 1

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 13, Packet Page 180



  

  

 

 
 Police - anticipated retirements/hiring delays of multiple positions and reduced services, 

training, overtime and supplies.  Core functions will be maintained but public safety 
services will be impacted or reduced such as the traffic officers, School Resource 
Officer, Community Action Team, general police presence, the Multi-Disciplinary 
Outreach Team (MDOT) and others. These actions will create a lag in the one-year 
training cycle for officers to be “street ready.”  The positions in police can be funded at 
any time as they will not be eliminated, they will just not be funded. 

 Fire -  freezes/layoff/anticipated retirements of multiple positions and reduces services & 
supplies.  Core functions will be maintained but some public safety services will be 
impacted or reduced such as training and emergency preparedness. 

 Parks - freezes/layoff/anticipated retirements, reduced services and operational 
supplies. 

 Public Works - freezes/layoff/anticipated retirements of multiple positions and 
temporarily assigns multiple positions other funds. There will be an impact to the City’s 
ability to maintain its infrastructure. Other services, supplies and utility costs were also 
reduced. 

 Finance - freezes/layoff/anticipated retirements of multiple positions and reduces 
services and supplies.    

 Human Resources -- reduces service, supplies and recruitment costs. 
 City Attorney’s Office -- reduces court costs and third party service costs. 
 City Manager’s Office --freezes/layoffs, labor cost allocation to other funds and reduces 

services and supplies. 

ATTACHMENT 1

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 14, Packet Page 181



  

  
 Museum - freezes/layoff/anticipated retirements of multiple positions and reduces 

services and supplies. 
 Library - freezes/layoff/anticipated retirements of multiple positions and reduces services 

and supplies. 
 Sports Center and Recreation -- freezes/layoff/anticipated retirements of multiple 

positions and reduces services and supplies. 
 Information Services Department -- freezes/layoff/anticipated retirements of multiple 

positions and reduces services and supplies. 
 Conference Center - freezes/layoff anticipated retirements of multiple positions and 

reduces services and supplies. 

 
Paradigm Shift Ideas -- COVID-19 is causing a paradigm shift -- defined as a fundamental 
change to the approach or underlying assumptions.  The City should consider solutions with the 
idea of “Go Big / Go Broad / Go Simple!”.  Moreover, COVID-19 imposes swift action without 
time for the traditional reiterative process.  Below is a list of some “Go Big / Go Broad / Go 
Simple ideas in no particular order -- and such list is not all inclusive either and Staff certainly 
seeks more feedback. Lastly, this list is meant as a starting point for multiple analyses and 
evaluations. Some of these suggestions will create a robust and, probably, adversarial 
discussions between interest groups and stakeholders. In other words: we put everything on the 
table. In presenting this list, Staff has a responsibility to provide solutions / options with potential 
timeframes:   
 

 
Decision-Making: Next 1-2 Months 
 

 Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) 
o Potential rate increase (August deadline for November Ballot) 
o Adjust NCIP allocation (August deadline for November Ballot) 
o Streamline reporting and collection to monthly (Introduce Ordinance in June) 

 Monterey County Convention & Visitors Bureau (MCCVB) 
o Set new contribution formula @ 3% (June 2020) 
o Consider one-time infusion of funds for economic recovery (June 2020) 
o Determine one-time forgiveness of rental for Visitor Center/French Consulate 

(June 2020) 
 Binding Arbitration 

o Meet and Consult before potentially placing a measure on the ballot to adjust a 
binding arbitration provision in the City’s charter (August deadline for November 
Ballot) 

 Monterey City Disposal Service 
o Renew refuse franchise, increase franchise rate / revenues 

 Consolidate Staff in Multiple Facilities/Locations 
o Reduce utility, technology, infrastructure costs 

 
Potential Implementation: Next 2-3 Months 
 

 Cost Recovery Analysis / Fee Increases 
o Potential fee increases to offset costs (June/July) 
o Establish facility fees to fund capital improvements/projects at Sports Center 

(June/July) 
 Fire Department 

ATTACHMENT 1

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 15, Packet Page 182



  

  
o Discontinue Paramedic Pilot Program (June/July) 
o Explore Fire/Medical Response Fee (July - October) 

 Explore Outsourcing Options 
o Conference Center - potential partnership with MCCVB 
o Veterans Memorial Park Campground 
o Harbor/Marina Operations 
o Custodial Services 

 
Potential Implementation: Next 3-6 Months 
 

 Reduce Hours of Services for Administrative Offices  
 More Self-Services - automations, website, internet based 
 Developer Deposit - approach and administration 
 Internal Service Funds - reduce cost, allocation methods, enhance programs 

o Information technology cost allocations and cost reduction opportunities 
o Continue progress with return-to-work programs to reduce worker’s 

compensation expenses 
o Re-examine general liability plans and risk pool strategies 

 
Potential Implementation: Next 6-9 Months 
 

 Private / Non-Profit Funding Support 
o Continued support from Friends and Foundation of the Monterey Public Library 
o “Sports & Wellness Foundation” for Sports Center 
o Partnership with Non-Profits for Senior Center Operations 
o Continued partnership with sports groups for Ballfield Operations 

 Fire Department 
o Standards of Cover Study (June-October) 
o Potential reductions in staffing (Early 2021) 

 
 
Conclusion -- Staff requests that the City Council receive this financial report on COVID-19 
impacts on the City General Fund FY21 along with various proposed budget reductions and 
revenue enhancement.  Staff also seeks feedback with the goal of continuing the discussion 
and approving elements of the FY 2020/21 Budget on June 2, final adoption of the budget on 
June 16, and consideration of short and mid-term budget strategies. 

 
Monterey’s economy including our City’s revenues will bounce back. The recent Memorial Day 
weekend showed how popular the Monterey Peninsula is. However, for the foreseeable future, 
the short-term and long-term impacts of COVID-19 continues to remain unpredictable and 
impact the speed of Monterey’s economic recovery. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

Council Regular Meeting, 6/2/2020, Item No. 15., Item Page 16, Packet Page 183


	Agenda
	1. - Award a Construction Contract in the Amount of $1,818,555.25 to Granite Rock Company for the USAG POM Pavement Repair 2019 Project for Presidio Municipal Services Agency Projects ***PMSA*** (Catagorically Excluded from NEPA 32 CFR, Not a Project Unde
	2. - Award Municipal Improvements Job Order Contract 2020-2021 for Presidio Municipal Services Agency (PMSA) Projects in the Amount of $1,000,000 to The Don Chapin Co., Inc. ***PMSA*** (Not a Project under CEQA per Article 20, Section 15378
	3. - Award a Construction Contract in the amount of $550,749 for the Casa Verde / Helvic / Portola / McNear Intersection Improvements Project (Exempt from CEQA Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1) *** NCIP***
	4. - Authorize an Agreement with the City of Seaside to Recognize Seaside as the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement Successor
	5. - Authorize the City Manager to Enter into a New Agreement Among Monterey County Public Agencies for the County of Monterey to Provide 9-1-1 Emergency Communications and Dispatch Services (Not a Project under CEQA Article 20, Section 15378 and under Ge
	6. - Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an Agreement with the Monterey Peninsula Chamber of Commerce to Administer Grants for the Covid-19 Local Economic Stimulus Plan (LESP) Utilizing Appropriated Funds (Not a Project Under CEQ
	7. - Adopt the Annual Reports and Approve Resolutions to Set a Public Hearing Date to Levy the Annual Assessment for the Cannery Row Business Improvement District, the New Monterey Business Improvement District, and the North Fremont Business Improvement
	8. - Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract with POM Incorporated for the Purchase of Single Space Solar Smart Meters for On-Street Parking in the Amount of $339,692 (Exempt per CEQA Guidelines Article 19, Section 15301, Class 1)
	9. - Authorize an Escrow Agreement with the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) and City of Del Rey Oaks in order for FORA to transfer $7,269,813 for the South Boundary Road Project into an Escrow Account (Not a Project under CEQA per Article 20, Section 1537
	10. - Authorize Appropriation from the Parking Fund Ending Balance of $336,895 and Amend Resolution 19-147 Awarding a Contract with TIBA Parking Systems, LLC for the Purchase, Installation and Maintenance of Parking Access and Revenue Control System
	11. - Appropriate $8,941 in Donated Funds to the 2019-20 Library Trust Fund Budget (Not a Project Under CEQA per Article 20, Section 15378 and Under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061
	12. - Authorize the Mayor to Send Letters to Monterey One Water, Monterey Peninsula Unified School District, Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, and Transportation Agency for Monterey County on behalf of the City Requesting these Agencies Conside
	13. - Amend the City General Plan and Municipal Code Section 38-107 to Prioritize and Require Utility Undergrounding and Amend the Cannery Row Conservation District and Old Town Area Plan to Delete References to Undergrounding (Exempt from CEQA Per Article
	14. - City Manager Report on Covid-19 Response Efforts (Not a project under CEQA per Article 20 Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5 Section 15061)
	15. - Provide Direction Regarding the COVID-19 FY20/21 General Fund Deficit, Proposed Budget Reductions, Strategies and/or Revenue Enhancements (Not a Project under CEQA Article 20, Section 15378 and under General Rule Article 5, Section 15061)

		2020-04-30T17:42:28-0400
	O'BRIEN.PATRICK.J.1231200319




